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1

Port Elgin, Ontario

1
2
3

--- Upon commencing on Tuesday, October 8, 2013 at

4

9:00 a.m./L'audience débute mardi, le 8 octobre,

5

2103 à 9h00

6
7

--- OPENING REMARKS:
MS. MYLES:

8
9

Good morning,

everyone.
Welcome to Day 19 of the Deep

10
11

Geologic Repository for Low and Intermediate Level

12

Radioactive Waste Project Joint Review Hearing.
My name is Debra Myles; I’m the

13
14

Panel Co-Manager.
Just a few logistics before we

15
16

start the proceedings today.

17

translation.

18

left.

19

Channel 1.

We have simultaneous

The headsets are available just to my

French is on Channel 3 and English is on

Please keep the pace of your

20
21

speech relatively slow as a courtesy to the

22

translators.

23

A written transcript is being

24

created of today’s proceedings.

It will reflect

25

the official language used by each speaker.
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1

Transcripts will be posted on the Canadian

2

Environmental Assessment Registry internet page for

3

the project as soon as they are available the next

4

day.
To make the transcripts as

5
6

meaningful as possible, we would ask everyone to

7

identify themselves before speaking.

8

new participants here today, so I just wanted to

9

remind you, each time you speak, if you could

10

We have some

identify yourself would be very helpful.
As a courtesy to others in the

11
12

room, please silence your cell phones and other

13

electronic devices.
The proceedings are also being

14
15

webcast live.

You can access the webcast through

16

the home page of the Canadian Nuclear Safety

17

Commission at www.nuclearsafety.gc.ca.
There’ll be one 15-minute break

18
19

during both the morning and afternoon session

20

today.

21

12:30 and the afternoon session will begin at 2

22

p.m.

23

There’ll be a meal break at approximately

Emergency exits are located at the

24

very back of the room, the door that you entered

25

through in the middle of the room and to my left
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1

behind the curtain.

In the event of a fire alarm,

2

please leave the building immediately.
If you are scheduled to make a

3
4

presentation today, please check in with a member

5

of the Secretariat at the table in the middle of

6

the room.

7

wearing a name tag to help you identify them.

Each member of the Secretariat staff is

If you are a registered intervenor

8
9

and want to seek leave of the Chair to propose a

10

question on a presentation or if you’re not already

11

registered to participate in the hearing, but would

12

like leave of the Panel to make a brief oral

13

statement, please speak with a member of the

14

Secretariat.
Opportunities at the end of

15
16

today’s session may be provided, time permitting,

17

for questions or a brief oral statement and will be

18

determined by the Chair on a case by case basis.
Anyone who wishes to take

19
20

photographs today or video should speak with the

21

Joint Review Panel Communications Advisor, Lucille

22

Jamault.

23

Dr. Swanson?

24

THE CHAIRPERSON:

25

On behalf of the Joint Review

Good morning.
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1

Panel, welcome to everyone here in person or

2

joining us through the webcast.
My name is Stella Swanson; I am

3
4

the Chair of the Joint Review Panel for the Deep

5

Geologic Repository for Low and Intermediate Level

6

Radioactive Waste Project.
I’m going to introduce the other

7
8

Members of the Joint Review Panel.

On my left is

9

Dr. Jamie Archibald and on my right is Dr. Gunter

10

Muecke.

11

and we also have Mr. Denis Saumure, council to the

12

Panel, with us on the podium today.

13

We have already heard from Ms. Debra Myles

The subject for today’s session is

14

socio-economic issues.

15

oral interventions on today’s agenda and a large

16

number of 10-minute oral statements.

17

will hear the presentations on behalf of the

18

Inverhuron Committee and the presentation from Mr.

19

Eugene Bourgeois before asking our questions.

20

We have several 30-minute

The Panel

Proposed questions from registered

21

participants will be considered once the Panel has

22

completed our questions.

23

I remind everyone here that your

24

proposed questions must be addressed to the Chair

25

and must specifically relate to the presentations
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1

that have just been completed.
As Chair, I will decide if the

2
3

Panel needs an answer to the question and to whom

4

it should be addressed.

5

question as brief as possible.

6

opportunity for making a statement or for debating

7

the views of a presenter.

10

This is not an

Please speak with a member of the

8
9

Please keep your proposed

Secretariat if you have a proposed question on a
presentation.
The Panel would like to welcome

11
12

today the representatives of Health Canada as well

13

as the Ontario Ministries of Agriculture and Food,

14

Rural Affairs, Labour, Municipal Affairs and

15

Housing, Transportation and Tourism, Culture and

16

Sport as well as Emergency Management Ontario.
Before we proceed with the first

17
18

oral intervention I would ask Mr. Haddon to read

19

out an undertaking based on a question that had

20

been asked previously.
MR. HADDON:

21
22

David Haddon, for the

record.

23

So yesterday there was a question

24

to the Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources which

25

has now become an undertaking.

It will be
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1

Undertaking 59 and it reads:

2

“Provide information on the

3

possible causes of the

4

decline in the number of

5

campers at Inverhuron

6

Provincial Park over the past

7

three years and provide an

8

explanation of the

9

fluctuation in camping

10

numbers over the past

11

decade”.

12

--- UNDERTAKING NO./ENGAGEMENT No. U-59:

13

By Ontario Ministry of Natural

14

Resources to the JRP to provide

15

information on possible causes of

16

the decline in the number of

17

campers at Inverhuron Provincial

18

Park over the past three years and

19

provide an explanation of the

20

fluctuation in camping numbers

21

over the past decade.

22

THE CHAIRPERSON:

23
24
25

Thank you, Mr.

Haddon.
Our first oral intervention this
morning is on behalf of the Inverhuron Committee by
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1

Ms. Marti McFadzean.

2

Ms. McFadzean, I would ask you to

3

stay at the table when you finish your presentation

4

in the event that there are questions.

5

Please begin.

6

--- ORAL INTERVENTION BY THE INVERHURON COMMITTEE:

7

MS. McFADZEAN:

Good morning, Dr.

8

Swanson, Dr. Muecke and Dr. Archibald and

9

Secretariat Staff.

10

Thank you for giving us this

11

opportunity to speak to you today.

12

important conversation for us.

It is an

13

My name is Marti McFadzean and I

14

have with me here today, Dale Palin, who is one of

15

our board members and has been our technical

16

support person over the last year and a bit.

17

going to put up a few visual slides because we have

18

some kind of long quotes that I think will be very

19

difficult for people to hold in their minds.

20

want to have that up for you to see.

21

She’s

So we

I’m speaking to you today as the

22

Chair of the Inverhuron Committee.

We are an

23

incorporated group of citizens representing

24

Inverhuron, the second largest population pocket in

25

the -- that is part of the larger Municipality of
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1
2

Kincardine.
We applied to intervene at this

3

hearing because our concerns in some ways are

4

similar in nature to those people who wish to

5

protect the Great Lakes for future generations.

6

But as well, we are the closest neighbour to the

7

proposed site of the repository.

8

feel that it is our responsibility to share some of

9

the local concerns that to date have gone unheeded

10
11

We sincerely

by our own municipality.
We wanted to just quickly cover

12

some of those global concerns that we adhere to,

13

but that you have heard many times already, so I am

14

not going to be spending a lot of time on those.

15

First of all, the -- one of the

16

issues that seems to be drawing us all together is

17

the lack of due diligence in selecting a location -

18

- or in selecting the location for this project

19

since Kincardine alone was studied.

20

The concern of the repository

21

being the first one to be built in limestone, and

22

therefore experimental in nature; the history

23

around the world of other repositories that have

24

allowed water to enter the site and have

25

contaminated the surrounding land; the proximity to
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1

Lake Huron which provides the drinking water to 40

2

million citizens and contains 21 percent of the

3

freshwater -- the world’s fresh water.

4

Also, the need to consult a wider

5

audience because the issue of nuclear waste should

6

require more than just an environmental assessment

7

of the area within 20 -- 10 to 20 kilometres; this

8

is -- this issue is an ethical, social and

9

political question that must be decided

10

democratically by all citizens around the Great

11

Lakes.
Also, the development of new

12
13

technology which may change the way that we deal

14

with nuclear waste; for example, the recent

15

development of the fast neutron reactors, within

16

the last generation that burn 85 percent of the

17

uranium fuel bundles and leave very little -- and

18

leave little waste, the waste that is there is

19

reusable.

20

And also the acknowledgement of

21

the Golder and Associates report which indicated

22

that leaving the waste in situ, repackaging it

23

above ground or building a repository were all

24

acceptable options.

25

Those I believe you have already
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1

heard from other intervenors, so I’m going to move

2

on from them.
You have heard via the submission

3
4

process from many Canadian and American citizens

5

who have those concerns in such numbers that these

6

issues need more study and discussion.

7

I would like to just focus on a

8

wider -- or a recent concern that has been raised

9

and that is the wider profile of the waste that is

10

to be housed in the low and intermediate level

11

repository.

12

The Memorandum of Understanding

13

signed by the Municipality of Kincardine in 2002

14

and the Hosting Agreement that was signed in the

15

fall of 2004, committed the Municipality of

16

Kincardine and Ontario Power Generation to more

17

permanently house low level waste and intermediate

18

level waste at the Bruce nuclear site.

19

On page 10 of Ontario Power

20

Generation’s environmental impact statement

21

summary, it indicates that the low level waste

22

consists of all those things you’ve heard of in the

23

past, mops and brooms and clothing.

24

document indicates that the majority of these

25

wastes may be processed through incineration or

The same
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1

compaction for volume reduction.
At the time, the estimate was 90

2
3

percent of the waste housed in the repository would

4

be low level.

5

report was -- that was presented to and approved by

6

the municipal council in Kincardine contained

7

various estimates around the disposal of waste and

8

the inherent cost of these.

9

The 2004 Golder and Associates

On page 6 and 7, there was an

10

estimate of 77 cubic -- thousand cubic metres of

11

low level waste or about 85 percent and 15 percent,

12

about 15,000 cubic metres of intermediate level

13

waste that was sitting at the Western Waste

14

Management Facility and would be there by 2042

15

making a total of 92,000 cubic metres.

16

In section 2.4.4 of that document,

17

a deep rock vault is modelled and it’s indicated

18

that these vaults will have a capacity of 130,000

19

cubic metres and are expected to handle 115,000

20

cubic metres or 90 percent of low level waste.

21

Golder indicated that while the

22

option would be intended to accommodate

23

intermediate level waste, the current design and

24

cost estimate did not include this.

25

estimate at this time was $927 million for a deep

The cost
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1

rock vault and $648 million for the status quo.
The October 24th, 2012 letter from

2
3

Ontario Power Generation to Dr. Swanson contains a

4

new estimate in section EIS 05225 of $2.1 billion

5

for the deep rock vault and it contains a new total

6

capacity of 203,995 cubic metres.

7

that point had grown $1.2 billion with an

8

additional waste of 70,000 cubic metres, now making

9

the low and intermediate level waste 61 percent low

10

So the cost at

level and 39 percent intermediate.

11

These changes in overall capacity

12

and in the percentages of low to intermediate level

13

waste as well as the cost estimates result us in

14

wondering what the final repository will in fact

15

look like.

16

low level waste has changed to a highly toxic,

17

long-term radioactive material.

18

It appears that the initial majority of

To add to this appearance of

19

elasticity of the project, in early June, when we

20

had the opportunity to meet with Ontario Power

21

Generation personnel, their representatives

22

indicated to our group that the decommissioned

23

waste was still a question mark and we know that is

24

still the question today.

25

However, this issue has come up
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1

recently and Ontario Power Generation is indicating

2

they are looking for a site.

3

This leads our group to ask

4

several questions.

5

also be placed in the repository and would change

6

the varying size of it?

7

operation of -- to hold 200,000 cubic metres of

8

waste need to be doubled?

9

requirement for a new environmental assessment if

10

the percentage of low to intermediate level waste

11

were to remain the same by merely expanding the

12

footprint of the repository?

13

Could the decommissioned waste

Would the 30-hectare

Would there be no

Considering the already staggering

14

cost of this project, will the high level waste be

15

added to this project by a decision of politicians

16

who are feeling the pressure of the cancelled gas

17

plant, the mega-quarry and other projects that have

18

been costly and suddenly cancelled?

19

this project be modified without a further

20

cumulative assessment?

21

If so, could

These above concerns were

22

reaffirmed recently in a document submitted to the

23

Joint Review Panel on July 19th, 2013 where Ontario

24

Power Generation stated that merely the

25

dissemination of information to the public would be
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1

required in order to change the profile of the

2

waste to be deposited in the repository, the

3

configuration of the repository, the

4

characteristics and/or sources of the waste, the

5

capacity, the lifecycle schedule, the monitoring,

6

the socio-economic considerations.
In fact under Item 079 in the

7
8

Commitment Document taken from the Environmental

9

Impact Statement, it would require a communications

10

plan to stakeholders to govern how the information

11

would be relayed for each proposed modification to

12

the DGR.

13

This gives the Proponent an

14

unacceptable amount of scope to be able to

15

drastically change this project if a licence is

16

granted by the CNSC.

17

For us, the lay people at the door

18

of the project, it appears to be a foot-in-the-door

19

proposal without a delineated design, a mandate or

20

a containment profile.

21

We have dabbled into the geology

22

of this project as lay people and our group has

23

read much research concerning the limestone geology

24

of the Bruce site and we are left with a list of

25

what one of our residents has called “our doors of
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1

doubt” and those doors need to be opened, examined

2

and closed tightly before this project can move

3

forward.

4

In the early transcripts of the

5

Bruce New Nuclear Power Plant Project Joint Review

6

Panel of June 26th, 2009, Ms. Janette Anderson who

7

was the expert presenter regarding the geology of

8

Lake Huron spoke to the formation of Lake Huron and

9

the geology of the lake.

10

On page 6 of the

transcript Ms. Anderson said, I quote:

11

“Another interesting finding

12

which was fairly recent is

13

the deep sinkholes discovered

14

at the bottom of Lake Huron.

15

The large portion of the

16

bedrock that’s 40 million

17

years old beneath Lake Huron

18

is karst limestone.

19

relatively soft.”

It’s

20

End quote.

21

We decided to follow-up on Ms.

22

Anderson’s comments and found ongoing research

23

being done by Bopaiah Biddanda of Michigan’s Grand

24

Valley State University and Mr. Russ Green of the

25

Thunder Bay National Marine Sanctuary who are
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1

studying the lake bottom and the shore of Lake

2

Huron.

3

Their recent research indicates

4

that from 10,000 to 8,000 years ago, Lake Huron’s

5

limestone bedrock was exposed -- was exposed due to

6

extremely low lake levels following the last

7

glacier maximum.
Karst sinkholes were created when

8
9

a chemical reaction between the limestone and the

10

acidic water dissolved away passages or holes in

11

the rock, leaving behind weakly supported ceilings

12

that could easily collapse or sink.
The Lake Huron sinkholes were

13
14

subsequently covered with groundwater to the bottom

15

of the lake providing a unique habitat for aquatic

16

life.

17

were given, are predominantly located at the

18

shoreline and slightly interior to the coastline.

19

These sinkholes, according to a map that we

The research that is being done by

20

these two scientists is significant enough to

21

reinforce concern that we have about the lakebed

22

and the underlying rock.

23

In addition, we have heard the

24

presentation by Dr. Charles Rhodes who presented

25

his concerns about the geology.
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1

Dr. Rhodes is adamant that the

2

repository requires an elevation such as Yucca

3

Mountain in order to ensure that no water will

4

infiltrate the repository.

5

concept of digging 600 metres -- a deep hole 600

6

metres below Lake Huron with a large chamber in

7

which to bury nuclear waste is fraught with

8

groundwater and subsurface rock, related cost

9

escalation and performance risks.

He suggests that the

10

Dr. Rhodes had suggested in his

11

presentation that there will be prolonged seepage

12

of water in the ground surrounding the repository,

13

and this seepage will increase the porosity of the

14

rock surrounding the site of the project.

15

The rock pores which originally

16

contained fine solid particles, which Dr. Muecke

17

spoke to Dr. Rhodes about in his presentation, will

18

become filled with water molecules.

19

seepage pumping stops, due to the closure of the

20

repository, the storage chamber will fill with

21

seepage water up to 60 atmospheres.

22

And once the

As the hydraulic pressure inside

23

the repository rises, the water molecules trapped

24

in the rock will enable outward ion transportation

25

through the rock via process known as ion
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1

diffusion.
Dr. Rhodes also states that there

2
3

is no practical engineered waste container and

4

sealing system which will withstand the 60

5

atmosphere hydraulic pressure.
Voids in nuclear waste containers

6
7

will collapse and water soluble nuclear waste

8

components will dissolve into the water inside the

9

storage chamber.
Ontario Power Generation is

10
11

relying entirely on the quality of the surrounding

12

rock and on the storage chamber shaft seal to

13

prevent the water soluble radioactive ions from

14

diffusing from the storage chamber into the

15

groundwater.
The input from the Ministry of

16
17

Natural Resources of July 23rd continues to

18

reinforce the concern about the movement of

19

radionuclides.

20

final input from various ministries in preparation

21

for the hearing which began September 16th.

22

The Joint Review Panel asked for

The response from the Ministry of

23

Natural Resources cautioned that their department

24

continues with a view that the Salina A1 upper

25

carbonate unit and the Guelph Cambrian Shadow Lake
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1

formations are thin permeable layers that represent

2

potential pathways for relatively rapid horizontal

3

advective radionuclide transport away from the

4

repository site.
In addition, they requested that

5
6

Ontario Power Generation consider a more

7

appropriate conceptual model of solute transport at

8

the Bruce site that would feature a more

9

representative geological environment.
Unfortunately, the response to

10
11

these concerns did not move Ontario Power

12

Generation to, quote:

13

“…perform any additional

14

investigations related to […]

15

potential permeable basal

16

unit in the Shadow Lake

17

Formation beyond the updip

18

limit of the Cambrian.”

19

Close quotes.

20

Finally, we have recently heard

21

from two credible scientists during the hearing

22

whose comments have added some more to our doors of

23

doubt.

24

Dr. Wilf Ruland stated that

25

Ontario Power Generation’s assertion that the
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1

intermediate bedrock grouping includes

2

predominantly shale rock formations which can

3

potentially provide a significant water and/or

4

contaminant transport barrier between the DGR

5

repository levels in the deep bedrock and the

6

shallow bedrock formations are inaccurate.
He states that the Silurian

7
8

bedrock formations at the intermediate depth

9

between 170 and 450 are not shales, they’re

10

predominantly carbonates and evaporates.

There’s

11

little in the way of shales in the intermediate

12

bedrock formations, yet only shale can be

13

considered an effective long-term barrier to

14

groundwater.
And of course, we have heard

15
16

recently from Dr. Peter Duinker, who was hired by

17

the Panel to give additional information.

18

raised more concerns about the basic credibility of

19

Ontario Power Generation’s environmental

20

assessment.

21

He has

As laypeople who are really

22

studying all of these and not the people who are

23

doing the actual research, we look at all of the

24

information that is coming to us from the

25

scientists and experts in the field and from the
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1

government’s own departments and feel that the

2

precautionary principle is needed in order for all

3

of us to be the guardians of our lakes.

4

allow the Proponent to disregard the concerns of

5

all of these experts to push forward their plan.

We cannot

The economic efficiencies of this

6
7

location cannot and should not trump any of the

8

geology questions that have left us with our doors

9

of doubt.
I would like to move now into the

10
11

local issues that we have looked at in our

12

community.

13

because we live so close to the Bruce site to focus

14

on the local issues.

15

We felt a tremendous responsibility

We don’t want to focus on an NIMBY

16

kind of approach but we are the only ones who can

17

really look at the local issues and it is our

18

responsibility to bring those to the Panel.

19

So the first one I believe you

20

have heard is that our community was really not

21

included in the public attitude study that was done

22

in November, 2009 for AECOM.

23

In addition, most of our

24

ratepayers, consisting of approximately 2,000

25

family members, were not present nor contacted
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1

during the Kincardine telephone poll in January and

2

February 2005.

3

willing host community.

We, in fact, did not elect to be a

Now I know you’ve heard that

4
5

before but I thought it might be helpful.

6

our own survey.

7

ensure that we are in fact representing the

8

community.

9

We did

We’ve done several this year to

We did our own survey and we asked

10

people who didn’t mind having their names in the

11

public domain to answer the survey and ask us if,

12

in fact, you or a member of your family were

13

contacted by the telephone or independent polling

14

firm in 2005, or if not, did you receive a letter

15

from an independent polling firm or the

16

Municipality of Kincardine asking you the above

17

question, which was the question on the poll.

18

And these are the people who have

19

written back to us who have been comfortable to

20

have us put this in the public domain.

21

has just done a quick calculation -- 89 percent of

22

these indicate no, they were never contacted; 9

23

percent say they can’t remember, which I sure

24

understand, and a couple of people said that they,

25

one received a phone call and one received a
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1

letter.
I have to say because I think it’s

2
3

in the interest of our survey to say that the one

4

person who did receive the letter was the campaign

5

manager of the local mayor.

6

pertinent.

I think that’s

7

(LAUGHTER/RIRES)

8

MS. McFADZEAN:

9

So these are

available if you would like to look at them.
On December the 12th, I made a

10
11

deputation to the Kincardine council to alert them

12

to the above situation and indicated that we had a

13

list of very serious concerns about the project.
If the willing host designation

14
15

included the community of Inverhuron then this was

16

a misnomer.

17

at that time, a package of documents to describe

18

our concerns, along with the relative research that

19

we had done.

I submitted to various council members

20

I am interpreting their lack of

21

response to me to be their commitment to support

22

this project in the public venue as part of the

23

monetary contract.

24
25

Our citizens, our residents are
very devoted to the Inverhuron community.
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Many of

24

1

us have been living here for five, six, even seven

2

generations.

3

growing up and developing lifelong friendships.

4

are vested in this community and we are vested in

5

the well-being of Lake Huron.

Inverhuron for us is fundamental to
We

Over the last year we have been

6
7

following the activities of the Joint Review Panel

8

with great diligence and interest, reading the

9

posted material on the Canadian Safety Commission

10

Web site.

And the Inverhuron committee submitted a

11

document of concerns to the Joint Review Panel, as

12

well as several of our residents have sent in their

13

own submissions to the Panel because of the danger

14

we feel this project brings.
The Hardy Stevenson report was

15
16

very interesting to us.

17

you know, that was -- as you know, that was done

18

for the Municipality of Kincardine and it examined

19

Ontario Power Generation's document entitled the

20

“Socio-Economic Environmental Technical Support

21

Document”.

22

It was a peer document, as

Although Mr. Hardy indicated to

23

the Panel in his presentation on September 16th that

24

his company was satisfied with the socio-technical

25

process, as presented, the Inverhuron Committee
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1

feels that questions raised in his review have not

2

been answered.

3

Our reactions to the review done

4

by the Hardy Stevenson group were twofold; we agree

5

with the comment that was made that the Inverhuron

6

community should have been included in the

7

consultation -- I have the page number and the

8

field studies for that -- and we note the request

9

for a referendum on this issue, which was also

10
11

promoted by Mayor Kraemer during his election time.
Both of these appear to us to be

12

germane to fully engaging the ratepayers within the

13

boundaries of the municipality.

14

Further analysis of the Hardy

15

Stevenson document left us with similar concerns,

16

which were raised in their final report.

17

would just like to review a few of the concerns

18

that were in their final report that for us remain

19

out there and of concern to us.

20
21

And I

Section 10 of that report states - and there's a quote here:

22

"...at a minimum, the

23

research will be undertaken

24

once [...] site preparation

25

and construction phase is
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1

complete and subsequent to

2

any accidents or malfunctions

3

of the DGR or associated

4

operations, resulting in

5

[...] release of radioactive

6

contamination to the

7

environment.

8

inadequate.

9

no radioactive releases to

This is wholly
There should be

10

the public or the

11

environment.

12

has bigger problems than

13

[mere] public relations."

14

We could not agree more with David

If so, the DGR

15

Hardy.

16

collateral damage for the sake of an out of sight,

17

out of mind solution.

18

We cannot allow human assets to be

On page 30 of that document,

19

section 4, under the selection of “Valued Ecosystem

20

Components”, and regarding sustainability,

21

Mr. Hardy explains that:

22

"Communities have [...]

23

adopted sustainability

24

'analysis tools' that assist

25

them to examine [...] new
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1

developments through [the]

2

sustainability lens.

3

tools could be applied to

4

assist with the assessment of

5

the DGR.

6

part of the Socio-Economic

7

[...] Technical Support

8

Document [...] would have

9

helped to determine whether

These

Using [the] tool as

10

the DGR supports or detracts

11

from valued community

12

characteristics as

13

specifically defined by

14

[that] community.

15

the Socio-Economic TSD [...]

16

relies on Public Attitude

17

Research to identify valued

18

community characteristics and

19

indicators of community

20

satisfaction.

21

could have instead

22

acknowledged the community

23

vision, identified how [...]

24

community articulates their

25

[...] goals consistent with

Instead,

The analysis
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the vision."

1
2

End quote.

3

Using a sustainability model would

4

have engaged the wider population and allowed for

5

discussion.

6

engaged 809 people, 43 percent of whom worked in

7

the industry.

Instead, the public attitude research

8

In the fall, the Municipality of

9

Kincardine entered into a sustainability visioning

10

process and asked for volunteers.

11

participate in this exercise in order to be able to

12

understand where Kincardine seemed to be headed in

13

the future.

14

knowledge of the DGR, but I thought it would be a

15

good opportunity to see where it fit in the big

16

picture.

17

I volunteered to

At that point, I had a limited

I attended all the meetings but

18

one, which was the presentation of the

19

sustainability plan, and the DGR was never

20

mentioned nor "assessed", I quote David Hardy:

21

"...to see the fit between

22

the goals and potential

23

changes due to the DGR."

24

In April 2012, the sustainability

25

plan was approved and released.

With three
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1

sentences on page 16 referring to the DGR, the

2

entire report was 59 pages in length.
I confirmed with Jutta

3
4

Splettstoesser, who was also on that committee, and

5

she confirmed with me that she did not hear any

6

discussion about the DGR and in fact is now a

7

participant in the visioning process in Ripley and

8

has asked that the DGR be part of that discussion

9

and she has been refused.
In terms of changes in air

10
11

quality:

12

"During the site preparation

13

and construction, operations

14

and decommissioning phases,

15

various activities and

16

operations may result in

17

changes in air quality.

18

There is a need to be more

19

specific with interactions

20

with VECs.

21

under 'physical assets' [in

22

the VECs [...] Table [...] we

23

would have expected more

24

analysis of how diminished

25

air quality would affect the

For example,
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community character."

1
2

You may recall the presentation on

3

September 26th by James and Brenda Preston, from our

4

community, who spoke about their concerns for

5

physical and psychological health of local

6

citizens.

7

where to turn for information, day-to-day stress of

8

wondering would there be an accident as well as the

9

need for baseline physical and disease data are all

10
11

Noise, worry, reacting to an alarm,

part of that picture.
They emphasized that stress is the

12

perception of a particular person and may not

13

necessarily be monitored on instruments.

14

also like to add to that their concerns, that

15

obviously with air quality diminution there are

16

residents with asthma, chronic obstructive

17

pulmonary disease, and other respiratory illnesses

18

which may be exacerbated.

19

We would

Finally, page 168, the Summary of

20

Potential Interactions between Changes in

21

Groundwater Quality and Socio-Economic Environment,

22

the David Hardy report indicates:

23

"Ground water quality appears

24

to have the potential to

25

affect off-site residential
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1

potable water.

2

true, the interaction needs

3

further discussion since all

4

groundwater quality and flow

5

issues should be able to be

6

managed on site."
Of course, our concern about Lake

7
8

If this is

Huron is exacerbated by that statement.
Finally, in section 17 -- or sorry

9
10

-- page 178 of that document, section 7.2.2, under

11

Indirect Changes, this describes other measurable

12

changes in the socio-economic environment during

13

the site preparation and construction of the DGR

14

that may be associated with measurable changes in

15

natural assets.

16

be indirect changes to property value.

17

There is mentioned that there will

This needs to be discussed in

18

greater detail to determine how, where and why

19

these changes will occur, and if negative, how can

20

we maintain our property values.

21

The fact that we don't have a

22

property value protection plan at this particular

23

moment leaves us really at the aspect of the

24

Proponent who has the final decision on that.

25

The project component -- this is
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1

only done -- sorry -- property value is only done

2

if the owner can prove some form of contamination

3

of their water or soil.

4

discussed as part of this eventual plan and it

5

needs to be discussed before licensing occurs.

6
7

Stigma needs to be

On page 203, section 8.3.1., in
the report by Hardy Stevenson:

8

"There is an expectation of

9

some outmigration of people

10

due to the location of the

11

DGR and [the] replacement of

12

people who would be more

13

tolerant of the DGR."

14

David Hardy indicates:

15

"While this [...] may not

16

occur, it could hardly be

17

considered to be a beneficial

18

effect.

19

should be brought forward as

20

a residual effect.

21

[indeed the] outmigration

22

being an effect where no

23

mitigation measures are

24

warranted, a strong

25

communications program could

If it does occur, it
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1

[perhaps] follow-up [...] to

2

encourage people to stay in

3

the community."
Many of our residents, as we have

4
5

indicated, are founding families from the mid-1800s

6

and early 1900s.

7

generation and those who follow is unthinkable.
We can feel the comments of Chief

8
9

The potential damage to our

Kahgee on Day 1 of the hearing who said that this

10

project is in the heart of their home, the Saugeen

11

-- and home of the Saugeen Nation.

12

this project is in the heart of our home.

13

cannot pick up seven generations of our families

14

and move collectively somewhere else.

15

outmigration, in order to bring in others who would

16

be more tolerant, cannot be an option for Ontario

17

Power Generation.

We also feel
We

Our

The five socio-economic factors

18
19

listed from Hardy Stevenson gravely concern our

20

community.

21

along with unlikely, may not, or to be discussed at

22

some later point, or convenient.

23

They sit on a shelf of unknown answers,

To conclude this presentation, I

24

would like to add some less formal data.

25

Inverhuron Committee surveyed residents of
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1

Inverhuron in the fall, using contact information

2

that we have in our telephone book that gives you

3

access to all our residents, and 86 percent came

4

back saying they were not in favour of the Deep

5

Geologic Repository.
Interestingly enough, the

6
7

Kincardine Independent newspaper did a survey in

8

June and got the same results, 86 not in favour.

9

These results may be as valid as a telephone poll

10

in the middle of winter and certainly do not show

11

overwhelming support of a willing host.
I would like to conclude by saying

12
13

thank you very much for your time.

14

can understand from everything that's been brought

15

forward that there are still some very serious

16

concerns from our community.

17

Thank you.

18

THE CHAIRPERSON:

19

I hope that you

Thank you very

much, Ms. McFadzean.

20

(APPLAUSE/APPLAUDISSEMENTS)

21

THE CHAIRPERSON:

As I stated

22

earlier, we'll reserve questions until after Mr.

23

Bourgeois.

24

table, that would be great.

25

So if you would remain seated at the

And I see, yes, Mr. Bourgeois is
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1

approaching.
So our next oral intervention,

2
3

which also will be 30 minutes, is by Mr. Eugene

4

Bourgeois.

5

MR. BOURGEOIS:

6

THE CHAIRPERSON:

Shall I start now?
Yes.

Please

7

proceed.

8

--- ORAL INTERVENTION BY MR. EUGENE BOURGEOIS:

9
10
11

MR. BOURGEOIS:

Thank you, Madam

Chair and Members of the Panel.
And I'd also like to thank the

12

Saugeen Ojibway Nation for allowing us to have

13

these hearings on their land.

14

OPG, I feel, is to be commended

15

for finally bringing the discussion of what to do

16

with our nuclear wastes to the people of Ontario.

17

It has, however, failed to submit

18

a plan that addresses many important concerns

19

including the ones I will report here.

20

I am requesting that you deny the

21

application on the grounds that it is woefully

22

incomplete and fails to address the very serious

23

health, socio-economic, and safety issues relating

24

to the DGR project.

25

Perhaps more than any other
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1

resident in Inverhuron, we have suffered mightily

2

from the legally sanctioned operations of the Bruce

3

nuclear site.
Moreover, none of the impacts of

4
5

these harmful effects have ever been acknowledged

6

or mitigated by OPG, the industry, or regulators.
The impacts on our farm have been

7
8

so severe, the Ontario Municipal Board recognized

9

that our property was stigmatized by the operations

10

of the Bruce heavy water plant, and awarded us a

11

reduction in assessed property value of 35 percent.
While I understand that the

12
13

historical operations of the Bruce site are outside

14

the scope of OPG's proposal, I believe that an

15

understanding of the site geography is important to

16

be able to determine whether the DGR should be

17

situated at this location.
The physics of the region doesn't

18
19

change with each new project, and it has been the

20

failure to address the conditions described by air

21

physics that have led to the incidents described

22

below.
These are very likely to be

23
24

repeated with the construction and operations of

25

this project.

Experience with this neighbour has
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1

demonstrated that we have our very right to be

2

fearful of future impacts.
Industrial contaminants from the

3
4

Bruce site have routinely fumigated our property,

5

sometimes in highly toxic concentrations.
The first known incident to affect

6
7

us was some flare stack emissions in 1985 when

8

hydrogen sulphide was burned at the site and flared

9

to atmosphere.

I was almost knocked out as I

10

walked into a low lying region by the river,

11

getting a massive headache and nauseous.

12

We knew about the dangers because

13

Ontario Hydro annually visited us -– visited all

14

residents to give us these warning things.

15

Eventually the MOE agreed with my

16

consulting meteorologist, Professor John L. Lumley,

17

of Cornell University.

18

could be exposed to 100 parts per million of

19

hydrogen sulphide when the MOE monitor recorded

20

instantaneous peak concentrations of 20 parts per

21

billion, 5,000 times as much.

22

He demonstrated that we

You have heard Keith

23

Mombourquette, on Saturday night, when he talked

24

about the strong safety culture at the Bruce site.

25

Sadly, that strong safety culture seems to stop at
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1
2

the site boundary.
He was a shift supervisor at the

3

heavy water plant during this period of steady

4

fumigation of hydrogen sulphide.

5

I had changed our farming

6

operation from a confinement system to a pasture

7

management one, and in confinement we would lose

8

between 3 and 5 percent generally, at lambing time.

9

Following this incident and for the next 12 years

10

until the heavy water plant was shut down, we lost

11

between 25 and 35 percent of our lambs annually.

12
13

The following graph demonstrates
the impact on our farm animals, on newborn lambs.

14

On another occasion our entire

15

flock of sheep on pasture went blind temporarily

16

and we discovered this only because they would walk

17

into the fence -- the electric fence.

18

something sheep avoid whenever possible.

19

That's

Although I'd begged and pleaded

20

with Ontario Hydro, either to change the time of

21

year when it engaged in this routine flaring, or if

22

it must do so then, to inform us when it would be

23

happening so I could keep our sheep in, and stay

24

out of harms way myself.

25

Ontario Hydro steadfastly refused
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1

to do either, leaving us at the mercy of our local

2

air, wind and weather patterns.

3

Hydro -- now called OPG -- had few to no concerns

4

about the impact of its operations on the

5

surrounding community.

It's as if Ontario

In 1988 I was affected a second

6
7

time, as was my 11 year old daughter who was

8

outside at the time.

9

pastured our ewes on the grass around our orchard

10

It was late April and I had

and garden just beside our house.
On this occasion it was as if

11
12

somebody came up from behind me and banged me on

13

the head with a large piece of wood.

14

just that intense.

The pain was

I was temporarily blinded, seeing

15
16

bright lights and stars.

My daughter who was

17

playing on a pile of hay mulch became suicidal in

18

the aftermath writing her last will and testament.
As might be imagined this is an

19
20

unfortunate and terrible event for any parent to

21

experience.

22

My symptoms at the time were so

23

severe that our GP sent me to the Occupational

24

Health Clinic at McMaster University.

25

Hanes referred me to Dr. Carbotte, a psychiatrist

There Dr.
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1

who had conducted a series of tests.
These demonstrated that I suffered

2
3

from a central nervous system deficit that had to

4

have been caused by some noxious agents such as

5

hydrogen sulphide.
Although the deficit was unknown

6
7

at the time to the Sulphide Research Network in

8

Alberta, who were helping me, subsequent tests on

9

new knockdown patients there invariably found it.

10

I was tested again six months

11

later and showed marked cognitive improvements,

12

thereby confirming that my symptoms had been caused

13

by hydrogen sulphide, this environmental assault.

14

My daughter didn't fare as well,

15

because the psychiatrists in London believed that

16

the maximum peak concentrations to which we were

17

exposed was 25 parts per billion, as stated by the

18

MOE.

19

used for schizophrenic patients that were

20

inappropriate for her and did not help.

She was treated with a wide range of drugs

21

It took us four years before she

22

was reassessed by a team at Sunnybrook Hospital in

23

Toronto where it was decided that she didn't suffer

24

from schizophrenia at all, but now had a

25

personality disorder caused in part by her medical
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1

treatment.
They recommended Luther Wood in

2
3

Waterloo an institution that assists children

4

overcome their anger and resentment.

5

at Ontario Hydro seemed to care enough about the

6

impacts she's suffered even to inquire about her

7

well-being or the impacts of their operations on

8

our family.

Again, no one

Fire training activities present

9
10

another source of fumigation on our farm.

In those

11

days Ontario Hydro burned Bunker C oil at the

12

facility onsite.

13

visible as a black smoke.

14

bottom of the thermal internal boundary layer where

15

it would meander along windward, dropping to the

16

ground with descending thermals.

The plume from this was highly
It would ascend to the

One such incident was witnessed in

17
18

1992 by an employee while he and I were working at

19

the barn.

20

on time, dropping to my knees as the edge of this

21

plume overwhelmed me.

We rushed home and I failed to make it

Watson Morris wrote about this and

22
23

sent a certified report to the AECB, MOE, and

24

Ontario Hydro at the recommendation of Professor

25

Lumley.

This report was never acknowledged by any
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1

of these bodies, nor did I receive a response.
Ontario Hydro did however, modify

2
3

the times and places when it engaged in big burn

4

fire training, so we did not experience similar

5

events again until 2002.
I wasn't home then.

6

Bruce Power

7

had changed the fuel used so that the smoke was no

8

longer visible.

9

TekFlame, a type of jet fuel.

It now used a product called

10

This plume descended on our store

11

and warehouse driving our customers home and making

12

my wife and staff ill.

13

described the experience as like gulping down

14

diesel.

Sherry, our staff member,

My wife who has a disability

15
16

pension from teaching, due to chronic fatigue

17

syndrome, took longer to recover.

18

incident, Sherry and I met over a nine-month period

19

with Bruce Power staff and developed a protocol for

20

fire training activity that we believed would

21

protect us.

Following this

Unfortunately, without warning or

22
23

notice Bruce Power abrogated that agreement by

24

engaging in fire training, first in May, and then

25

in June of 2008.

Again, my wife was badly affected
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1

because at first she hadn't recognized what was

2

happening.
We sincerely believed at the time

3
4

that Bruce Power was operating differently than

5

Ontario Hydro did, and this incident fully caught

6

us by surprise.
I emailed Dan McArthur, my contact

7
8

at Bruce Power who emailed back and said that he

9

didn't think that they were supposed to do this at

10

those times either.

11

didn't agree.

Bruce Power on the other hand

12

The second incident in June 2008,

13

a month later, happened as I was baling hay with my

14

employee.

15

fire training activity, each of us felt ill at the

16

time and mutually decided to stop work at mid-day

17

because of how we felt.

18

store with the windows open was very distraught and

19

disoriented.

20

symptoms for what they were and brought Ann to a

21

higher location in our house and safety.

22

While we didn't notice the fumes from

And my wife who was in our

It was Sherry who recognized the

Bruce Power’s response was to

23

instruct its employees not to talk to us and with a

24

litter to Siskinds, our law firm, threatened to sue

25

us if we were to talk about how it had fumigated
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1

our house and property, harming my wife.
In the spring of the next year, I

2
3

suffered a heart attack without knowing I’d had

4

one.

5

talked about with Bruce Power went undiagnosed

6

until it was discovered in September of that year

7

that she had ovarian cancer.

8

to deny without any supporting evidence that its

9

activities fumigated our house and farm.

However, Ann’s pain in the gut, which we

Bruce Power continues

We are also constantly fumigated

10
11

with radioactivity from this site.

EIS 03-88

12

describes the radiological environmental monitoring

13

program data for 2009, the year Ann had surgery for

14

ovarian cancer.

15

contained a very high 1,736 becquerels per litre of

16

tritium.

In it, our leafy vegetables

Six other locations in the LSA

17
18

were sampled; these values ranged from 24.1 to 69.1

19

becquerels per litre.

20

appears to be a magnet for airborne pollutions from

21

the Bruce site.

22

location below the escarpment and our very local

23

wind and weather patterns.

Clearly our farm location

This is most likely caused by our

24

Bruce Power accounts for these

25

anomalies by referring to the restart of Bruce A
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1

and local meteorological conditions.

Baie du Doré,

2

right next door to Bruce A did not have values

3

remotely close to the ones recorded on our farm.

4

Despite this information, the impacts on our farm

5

continue to be ignored.
Our experiences have led us to be

6
7

extremely fearful of airborne pollutants.

8

have been life-threatening.

9

we have much less resilience to fend off future

10

They

We are now in old age,

attacks.
Our experience with both the

11
12

industry and the regulator have taught us two

13

things.

14

whatever the regulator allows it to do.

15

is that the regulator will defend the industry’s

16

right to do what it is doing.

The first is that the industry will do
The second

Shareholder residents --

17
18

stakeholder residents, it would appear, are simply

19

collateral damage in any environmental anomalies.

20

We can’t afford that luxury anymore.
Ann has been in and out of surgery

21
22

for the past four years related to her ovarian

23

cancer.

24

my heart attack, my breathing as a result of flare

25

stack emissions has become very laboured whenever I

While I have more or less recovered from
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1

do strenuous work.

2

last year.

I had to sell our sleep flock

Ann has a persistent cough

3
4

following her last set of chemotherapy treatments.

5

Without question, our concerns about small

6

particulate matter is paramount.
We know fully that OPG will do

7
8

whatever you, as a Panel, permit it to do, as a

9

result of this application.

We need you, Madam

10

Chair, we need you to stand up for us, the innocent

11

victims of this industry and regulatory

12

nonchalance.
After 25 years and regular

13
14

appearances before the AECB and CNSC hearings,

15

Commissioner Barnes finally demanded that the

16

regulator convene a meeting with us relating to our

17

experiences of fumigation at the Bruce site.

18

was to be the very first time we had been given an

19

audience.

This

Ken LaFreniere of the CNSC was

20
21

Chair of the meeting with CNSC and MOE staff

22

present.

23

present by phone from London, while CNSC legal and

24

compliance staff were present by phone from Ottawa.

25

MOE had specialists and legal staff were

Our lawyer from Siskinds, Paul
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1

Scott, was present by phone and Ann and I were

2

present.

3

following her surgery and chemotherapy although she

4

was still taking chemotherapy and susceptible to

5

infection.

It was Ann’s first trip out of the house

Mr. LaFreniere opened the meeting

6
7

dramatically by clapping his hands together

8

forcefully and stating unequivocally that as far as

9

the CNSC is concerned, we have closed the book on

10

this subject.

I ignored his insensitivity and went

11

on to present as carefully as I could why both

12

regulators ought to have been concerned.

13

fell on deaf ears.

Our pleas

14

Dr. Barnes never followed up.

15

Bruce Power does not account for

16

the excessively high radioactivity in our garden

17

vegetables directly but states that variances are

18

due in part to our local meteorology.
It’s correct to have made this

19
20

observation.

As with everything else, flying dust

21

particles will find their way to our home as well

22

and possibly in devastating concentrations.

23

won’t know until it happens and then, assuming we

24

survive the assault, we will get to travel the

25

regulatory merry-go-round yet again and it doesn’t
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1

need to be this way.
In our submissions, I have

2
3

submitted pointed questions about how industrial

4

pollutants that are dispersed through air can be

5

measured and modelled.

6

Panel that these models can be back tested for

7

known events.

8
9

MOE has confirmed for the

This would confirm their validity.
As you also heard, neither OPG nor

the CNSC are concerned to do so.

I provided some

10

robust model variables to be considered.

11

waiting for answers.

12

I’m still

The same is true for noise.

In

13

2005 and 2007 -- is a long time ago -- and that is

14

when empirical data was last collected.

15

however that empirical analysis can create

16

embarrassing circumstances for OPG, so it just

17

rests on its laurels.

18

It seems

Instead, it chooses to adopt World

19

Health Organization standards for noise of 45

20

decibels A for ignoring that our night noise is

21

probably 15 decibels or less.

22

makes two trips an hour at nighttime, it won’t

23

disturb the hourly averages even as it destroys the

24

needed sleep of those of us who are old and

25

recovering from illnesses.

Perhaps if it only
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OPG claims to follow Kincardine’s

1
2

2008 noise bylaw, but it doesn’t.

3

states in part:

This bylaw

4

“It may not operate any

5

equipment in connection with

6

construction during certain

7

hours.”

(As read)

8

That is this bylaw.

9

We in this community have lost

10

significant values in our properties.

I have

11

raised this first with the submission pointing out

12

the flawed analysis OPG uses to deny stigma effect,

13

and secondly, following the Inverhuron Committee

14

tour of the site when Scott Berry and Gordon

15

Sullivan requested that I show them my result.
Apparently, OPG didn’t check the

16
17

CEAA registry.

18

data -- they sent back the very same data they put

19

in their EIS.

20

values have fallen behind Port Elgin’s property

21

values between 2009 and 2012 by some $33,600 for a

22

total of $160 million that we resident stakeholders

23

have lost in our property value.

24
25

The very same data -- the very same

It shows that Kincardine’s property

In any event, that’s not the sort
of stigma that concerns OPG.

It’s concerned about
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1

a stigma that’s caused directly by radioactivity

2

from the DGR and its activities.

3

evaluation, the losses from this source alone that

4

would trigger the property value protection plan

5

and the hosting agreement if any resident were

6

foolish enough to take on this facility.

It is property

7

No resident stakeholder could make

8

this claim though because in EIS 05-214, OPG states

9

bluntly that it’s impossible to identify

10

radioactivity on the basis of its source.

11

for OPG, it holds the upper hand in all

12

negotiations.

Happily

No resident stakeholder was given

13
14

funding to help understand or prepare for this

15

hearing.

16

from Dr. Muecke on October the 3rd stated that “you

17

can’t expect anyone to go through all this material

18

on their own without expert help”.

19

Frank King, in response to a question

But the Inverhuron community

20

doesn’t rank high enough on OPG’s VECs of concern

21

to receive any funding whatsoever.

22

with Bruce Power’s threat of suing us and OPG’s

23

threat to recover its cost awards from the IDRA,

24

it’s very dangerous for us to intervene.

25

Even worse,

This is how OPG manufactures
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1

consent.

2

community with individuals being intimidated by

3

Bruce Power’s and the OPP’s threats.

4

That’s what makes us a willing host

Without funding, these monies have

5

had to come directly from our pockets to pay for

6

legal and expert advice.

7

resident stakeholders have to contend with falling

8

property values in light of the DGR, we have to dig

9

into our retirement savings simply to intervene.

10

Not only do we as

The CEA staff said to me early on

11

in the process that we didn’t have to have legal

12

advice and protection.

13

have said anything that OPG or any of them

14

disagreed with, we would need that protection.

15

But if we should happen to

Do you, Members of the JRP,

16

believe that innocent resident stakeholders who are

17

the frontline victims of this DGR project should

18

bear the weight of financial ruin merely to

19

participate fully and meaningfully in this

20

environmental assessment?

21

OPG has distributed many millions

22

of dollars to others to assist them in their

23

investigation, why did we get nothing, particularly

24

in light of Frank King's comments?

25

Groundwater in Inverhuron has been
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1

contaminated by radiological leaks -- radioactive

2

leaks from RWOS1.

3

to Mary MacKenzie when it told her that the tritium

4

in her well did not come from either the air or the

5

lake, since each was different than the levels

6

found in her water -- her well.

OPG stated as much in a letter

A Board Member Document of the

7
8

AECB at the time observed that these would be

9

resolved as, indeed, it was when OPG and AECB staff

10

said things were resolved.
When members of the community

11
12

asked for empirical evidence to support that view,

13

when I asked for this evidence in a submission for

14

these hearings, CNSC staff merely stated that

15

“tritium standards around the world vary”.
Is this what Dr. Binder means when

16
17

he refers to the CNSC as a science-based decision-

18

making unit?

19

staff that make these opinions.

20
21
22

It must be, because these are his

OPG fails to identify what it
means by "community" in the EIS.
I raised these concerns in one of

23

my very first submissions to the CEAA registry.

24

Our local community has felt excluded, as have many

25

in the broader local one, as well as the community
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1

at large.
Notwithstanding this, OPG

2
3

maintains that we have had community consultation.

4

That means OPG has told us what to think and

5

refuses to engage in dialogue, meaningful or

6

otherwise.

7

If we should happen to have

8

thoughts different from the ones OPG requires us to

9

have, we are simply vocal dissidents.

10

Although it has spent some 12

11

years promoting this concept here, the Panel has

12

heard time and again no one seems to have been

13

informed about the DGR project.

14

certain members like me, who lives here full-time,

15

and seasonal residents.

16

Polls excluded

When the Inverhuron Committee was

17

struck last September, the founding members were,

18

on the whole, shocked and dismayed to have learned

19

about this only at the very last moment.

20

struck because the IDRA was hamstrung by OPG's

21

threats and so could not, itself, intervene freely.

22

It was

The Inverhuron Committee could and

23

has intervened freely, but it has taken our members

24

a long time to learn just how potentially harmful

25

this DGR is to our collective and individual
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1
2

interests.
OPG claims to follow best

3

international practices with respect to waste

4

storage and repositories.

5

peer group international jurisdiction separates

6

siting hearings from licensing hearings.

7
8
9

However, every other

Seventy-five (75) percent of these
separate long-lived wastes from short-lived ones.
The IAEA defines high level waste

10

as long-lived radioactive waste according to the

11

reference Marie Wilson provided us.

12

as if by fiat, she insists that high level wastes

13

must be both heat generating and long-lived.

14

Nonetheless,

OPG, in its submissions to the

15

record, states otherwise.

16

the word "hot" refers to radioactivity.

17

In EIS 04109, it states

Contrary to the hosting agreement

18

that OPG signed with Kincardine, OPG is using the

19

DGR to store what it acknowledges in this response

20

to be high level wastes and -- except that it now

21

prefers to call them refurbishment wastes.

22

It also states it will not be --

23

it will be storing fuel fragments in the DGR.

24

Presumably fuel fragments are not used fuel because

25

they're called fuel fragments.
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Both of these are high level

1
2

radioactive wastes because both are long-lived and

3

hot.

4

by the hosting agreement, but each is included in

5

the DGR.

Both are to have been excluded as identified

We still don't know what wastes

6
7

are going to be stored in the DGR.

8

be whatever we can get away with.

It appears to

In the open houses and community

9
10

meetings leading to the EIS, 95 percent of the

11

waste by volume was to be low level waste, with 5

12

percent intermediate.

13

20 percent intermediate.

Now, it's 80 percent low and

Will it be 20 percent low and 80

14
15

percent intermediate tomorrow?

16

DGR be?

What size will the

OPG stated it would be 200,000

17
18

cubic metres in the EIS, then it said it could be

19

doubled in size, and then that could be doubled in

20

size if it changed the site footprint.
An environmental assessment is

21
22

meant to be a planning tool.

How is it possible

23

for us to use it as a planning tool when we don't

24

know what wastes are intended to be placed in the

25

DGR?
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When we asked how the shaft would

1
2

be sealed at the NGO site tour, OPG stated it

3

hadn't decided yet.

4

environmental assessment until OPG has some

5

definite and definitive plans?

Can't we wait to approve this

Do you, as a Joint Review Panel,

6
7

not have a responsibility to all current and future

8

citizens to make sure this process is open and

9

transparent?
OPG claims to have communicated

10
11

extensively with our Michigan neighbours in the

12

Great Lakes and Cities Initiative according to

13

statements in the impact statements on the CEAA

14

registry.

15

These folks seem to have had the

16

same difficulties seasonal residents and local

17

stakeholders have had because they don't seem to

18

recall the discussions either.

19

Up and down the coast,

20

municipality after municipality is passing a

21

resolution opposing the DGR.

22

The Michigan State Senate passed a

23

resolution opposing the DGR.

School children on

24

both sides of the border plead with us not to bury

25

nuclear wastes in the Great Lake Basin.

INTERNATIONAL REPORTING INC.

It's not a

57

1

difficult logic to understand.
Over-confident and sloppy

2
3

engineers and scientists have caused great harm in

4

the past, often with the best of intentions

5

otherwise.
There are no known safe levels of

6
7

radioactivity.

8

assumptions of safe levels are continuously revised

9

to more restrictive ones as we learn just how wrong

10
11

What we do know is that past

our assumptions have been.
We don't know what health impacts

12

this radioactivity has caused here because, well,

13

these health impacts haven’t been studied here.

14

During the hearings, Dr. Thompson

15

asserts that the CNSC has adopted the industry

16

standard of a linear no-threshold model of impacts

17

from ionizing radiation; the lower the

18

concentration, the lower the impact.

19

This contrasts starkly with

20

jurisdictional bodies like the CERES Commission in

21

England that argues that there is a growing body of

22

evidence suggesting radioactivity bioaccumulates in

23

living tissue and chronic low dose exposures may be

24

more harmful to cells than acute ones.

25

The tree ring analysis that I
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1

submitted from my questions on October the 7th

2

demonstrated that both tritium and carbon-14

3

bioaccumulate.

OPG is not worried.
There's no need to worry about

4
5

health impacts from radionuclides in our air,

6

water, ground and food because those impacts

7

haven't been studied here.
Cumulative effects of exposures is

8
9
10

not a concern because OPG uses conservative models.
Ask it.
Is this what Dr. Binder means when

11
12

he claims CNSC as a regulator is science-based?

13

Must be because that's the standard required of OPG

14

by CNSC staff.
We cannot know now that the Great

15
16

Lakes will not be compromised in the future by the

17

DGR and, with it, some 21 percent of the fresh

18

water.

19

For what?
OPG has maintained until recently

20

that it's only for mops and rags.

These are waste

21

packages that are safe enough for us to handle

22

without any shielding, stuff that could be used as

23

landfill in the not too distant future, but that

24

story was just a ruse, a teaser to make us believe

25

there was nothing to worry about.
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OPG's sole reason for choosing

1
2

this site was because the municipality requested

3

it, and no other ones did.

4

it was never shopped around?

Could that be because

When it comes to used fuel, there

5
6

appears to be no end of municipalities wanting to

7

bury it in their back yard, so many that NWMO had

8

to close the door on accepting new applicants.

9

Other inventors have asked this

10

question, too, why would municipalities that want

11

high level waste not want the mops and rags

12

proposed for the DGR?
OPG claims the geology of this DGR

13
14

is sound.

However, the same bedrock sequence

15

pervades all of Southern Ontario.

16

When I asked Diane Barker at an

17

open house in 2010 whether this was an ideal site

18

or whether there might be more appropriate ones

19

elsewhere in Ontario, it went unanswered until

20

Scott Berry answered it the week before I wrote

21

this.

22

Apparently, no other municipality

23

in Ontario requested the DGR.

In spite of similar

24

host rock anywhere and virtually everywhere, no

25

other site has been studied.
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OPG doesn't consider the political

1
2

costs associated with choosing this location in the

3

Great Lakes Basin, yet community after community on

4

both sides of the border in this basin are taking

5

valuable council time to write and pass resolutions

6

opposing the DGR.
They believe, quite correctly, to

7
8

be part of the affected community by this project

9

yet none of these communities has been adequately

10

consulted, nor have their opinions been sought.
Each of these communities is

11
12

concerned about its drinking water, which comes

13

from the lake, about agricultural product that is

14

irrigated by it, about the impacts on tourism,

15

about the impacts on enjoyment of property; these

16

are the very same concerns expressed by many of us

17

in the immediate community.
We have a local small business

18
19

here selling wool that caters to tourism with

20

summer sales generally in the past in the 50 to

21

$60,000 range.

22

Sales have simply fallen off a cliff and we’ll be

23

lucky -- I think we had about $6,000 of sales this

24

summer.

25

Our store used to be very busy.

The cottage grocery and restaurant
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1

in the middle of Inverhuron tells a similar story.

2

Our garage in Underwood has the same story.
The independent assessment study

3
4

warned of this that it would affect tourism.

5

appears to have been a sound warning.

6

take responsibility for this.

7

doesn’t back up its opinion with data.

OPG doesn’t

Once again, OPG

Please do not fail us, Madam Chair

8
9

It

and Members of the Panel, tell OPG that it must

10

present a plan that addresses all the significant

11

issues and concerns this DGR represents to us, the

12

host community.

13

again in this willing host community by OPG.

14

plan has failed to make its case and must not be

15

allowed to go forward.

We have been penalized time and

Thank you.

16
17

(APPLAUSE/APPLAUDISSEMENTS)

18

THE CHAIRPERSON:

19

This

Thank you, Mr.

Bourgeois.
We are now going to take a break

20
21

and after the break we’ll resume with questions for

22

both Inverhuron community and the -- and Mr.

23

Bourgeois.

24

--- Upon recessing at 10:09 a.m./

25

L’audience est suspendue à 10h09
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1

--- Upon resuming at 10:32 a.m./

2

L’audience est reprise à 10h32

3

THE CHAIRPERSON:

4

Welcome back,

everyone.
We’ll proceed with questions based

5
6

on the presentations from the Inverhuron Committee

7

as well as Mr. Bourgeois.
And I’m glad to see all three of

8
9

you up at the front which was much preferable.
So Panel Members, did you have

10
11

some questions?

12

--- QUESTIONS BY THE PANEL:

13

MEMBER MUECKE:

The Panel would

14

like to follow-up concerns raised by Ms. McFadzean

15

and this -- these questions are directed to --

16

first to OPG and then to CNSC.
Which DGR design changes, in terms

17
18

of capacity, risk characterization or monitoring,

19

would trigger new public consultation and, in

20

particular, what would have to be the magnitude of

21

change to trigger new public consultation?
MS. SWAMI:

22
23
24
25

Laurie Swami, for the

record.
I believe the intervenors referred
to a response that was put on the record on July
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1

19th of this year, which describes some of the

2

things that would trigger public consultation.

3

I think I’ve also talked about how

4

we would have a community advisory council going

5

forward and that would be also an opportunity to

6

describe and discuss any of these changes.

7

I would describe these changes as

8

not the same as, for instance, if we move forward

9

with decommissioning waste in this particular low

10

and intermediate level waste DGR, we would enter

11

into a regulatory process which would involve a lot

12

more dialogue and discussion and that is something

13

that of course we would follow as required.

14

Other things such as the layout of

15

the DGR facility would be something that we would

16

take and discuss with the public, characterizations

17

of the source of the waste, if that was somehow

18

changed slightly, not as significantly -- a

19

significant change to the layout of the facility.

20

And so that’s covered in this particular submission

21

and it goes on to describe some of the other things

22

that we would discuss with the public.

23

I think what would be important in

24

that aspect is it’s not a wholesale change of the

25

DGR or its footprint; it’s more of the minor
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1

changes that will come as we get into the more

2

detailed design of the facility.
And Mr. Wilson can probably

3
4

provide a little bit more of some of the designs

5

that are still to be considered as we get into that

6

phase of the project.
MR. WILSON:

7
8

Derek Wilson, for the

record.

9

And maybe just if I can step back

10

a bit, I think maybe, Dr. Muecke, your question is

11

coming around some of the discussion around the

12

initial 135,000 cubic metres that has now become to

13

200,000 cubic metres based on an inventory and

14

evolution of the inventory plan and so on.

15

those changes to the inventory and to the design

16

have been communicated as part of the ongoing

17

dialogue arriving at the project description which

18

is sitting in front of us which is our 200,000

19

cubic metre as disposed volume.

And

So with respect to the design

20
21

itself and as indicated in the submission, there

22

may be some modifications and slight modifications

23

based on in situ measured conditions when we arrive

24

underground.

25

the relative dimensioning of those emplacements

However, the 31 emplacement rooms and
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1

rooms is essentially fixed at this point based on

2

the inventory that we have in front of us.
MEMBER MUECKE:

3

So I guess there

4

are -- in terms of defined triggers -- sorry --

5

what I’m hearing is that it -- consultation will

6

only be invoked if those triggers mean a major

7

change in the design or the risk character and what

8

-- then the question of -- in the public mind it

9

becomes what is major?
MS. SWAMI:

10
11

Laurie Swami, for the

record.
I’m -- I guess from my perspective

12
13

I would say consultation never ends and so a

14

trigger to begin a new consultation phase, in that

15

sense, would be triggered by a significant change

16

to the capacity of the DGR.

17

So we put forward a safety case

18

based on this proposal which is the 200,000 cubic

19

metres for low and intermediate level waste from

20

operations and refurbishment of our existing

21

plants.

22

If we were to come forward and say

23

that we wanted to make a significant change that

24

would trigger us into an environmental assessment

25

or regulatory process that would be appropriate at
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1

that time and that would be the primary trigger.
But again, I want to come back to

2
3

the ongoing dialogue with the community.

We

4

anticipate continuing to do that on a regular

5

basis, so the need for a specific trigger is not

6

something we’re looking for.

7

community on an ongoing basis so that they would

8

understand the evolution of the design and

9

operations of the facility.

We want to engage the

10

MEMBER MUECKE:

11

could outline the major components of that -- on

12

that ongoing council.
MS. SWAMI:

13
14

Well, perhaps you

Laurie Swami, for the

record.
So in setting up a community

15
16

advisory council or an organization such as that,

17

we would look to implement models that we’ve used

18

before.

19

It would involve working with

20

community members, potentially elected officials

21

and other stakeholders in the area; it could be

22

business groups would participate.

23

for a broad range of views to join us in the

24

discussion of the ongoing operations of the Western

25

Waste Management Facility as well as this

We would look
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1

particular project.
It would be an opportunity for us

2
3

to bring forward other experts.

4

Medical Officer of Health yesterday as an example.

5

It might be an opportunity from time to time for

6

that group to hear about that information.
So we would look to have a broad

7
8

We heard from the

range of perspectives.
It would be an opportunity for OPG

9
10

to bring forward results of our ongoing operations,

11

what the safety statistics are, as we've heard some

12

questions about that.

13

the public so they understand how we function in

14

our operations.

We'd like to provide that to

We would review any events that

15
16

took place during operations or the project.

17

would give them an opportunity to really understand

18

the facility.

19

It

It also gives us an opportunity

20

from time to time to bring them on to the facility,

21

let them see how the project is progressing.

22

gives a much more first-hand experience so that

23

they can fully appreciate it.

24
25

It

It also gives us an opportunity -should there be a need to make a change as we –-
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1

you know -- get into the detailed work, we would

2

bring that forward and let them understand and –-

3

understand the rationale for those changes and

4

provide us some feedback if that was appropriate.

5

MEMBER MUECKE:

6

Could we have the CNSC perspective

7

on that?
MR. ELDER:

8
9

Thank you.

Yes.

Peter Elder, for

the record.
There are a couple of aspects that

10
11

I'd like to cover.

One is what would require

12

formal change in the licence under the Nuclear

13

Safety and Control Act.

14

includes the concept of a licensing basis which in

15

this case is assumptions that are in the safety

16

case.

So the licence now

So around the waste, there are two

17
18

assumptions around the volume of waste, and the

19

characterization of that waste.

20

between low level and intermediate level.

21

consider that all to be part of their safety case

22

assumptions.

23

So that is the mix
We

Any change to those assumptions

24

requires actually a change to the licence that only

25

the Commission can approve.

So there is a ---
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1

while the –-- you know, we can't say OPG can't

2

apply, it's not -– there's -– there are distinct

3

limits in this current licence that are based on

4

the safety case they have submitted.
So they would need to come and ask

5
6

for a licence amendment to change that safety case.
There is also requirements under

7
8

the Canadian Environmental Assessment Act.

The

9

regulations associated to that would -– that define

10

triggers for a new environmental assessment.

These

11

are based on the -– on expansions, percent

12

expansions of the facility.

13

top of any changes under the Nuclear Safety and

14

Control Act.

So that is over and on

In terms of consultation, there is

15
16

in the licence that we have proposed to the Panel

17

for this one, a requirement that OPG implement

18

their public information program.

19

That public information program

20

requires two things, is that said if OPG has said

21

they're setting up an advisory council, then they

22

actually have a legal obligation to actually set it

23

up.

24
25

In the reporting, we've made sure
that the reporting requirements include a
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1

requirement that the report on that –- to the

2

public –- annual reports -- so the annual report

3

comes formally to the CNSC, but it must be made

4

publicly available.

5

describing their public information and

6

consultation activities during the previous year.

7

So the public actually would be

8

able to see and question whether those activities

9

actually occurred.

And it would include OPG

Those reports are normally

10
11

presented to -– we also then -– staff do an annual

12

report to the Commission -– or have been doing on

13

these type of facilities -– that then would

14

summarize our view of whether they were meeting

15

those licence conditions around public information.
MEMBER MUECKE:

16
17
18

Thank you, Mr.

Elder.
MEMBER ARCHIBALD:

I have just

19

have one follow-up question on this, and this is

20

concerning the public information program that both

21

OPG and CNSC are reporting on.

22

A concern by the intervenors –-

23

and we have heard –- is that there appears to be

24

little uniformity or broad based, or inclusive

25

information into the public information system.
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How would the planned activities

1
2

try and incorporate all views?

3

elected municipal officials, members of OPG, and so

4

on, there appears to be a bias in the minds of some

5

of the intervenors, and how would you incorporate

6

the views of all people in the community?
MS. SWAMI:

7
8

It seems that

Laurie Swami for the

record.
I'll ask Mr. Powers to describe

9
10

how we've gone about trying to incorporate the

11

views in this project based on the communication

12

and consultation program that we had in place

13

specific to this intervenor, and the different

14

opportunities we've provided for seeking input.
And I'll let Mr. Powers speak to

15
16

that, and going forward of course as I've

17

mentioned, it would be a broad based community -–

18

community that we would look to get and seek their

19

input.
MR. POWERS:

20
21
22

Kevin Powers, for the

record.
Inverhuron as part of Kincardine

23

was one of the focal points of our outreach

24

programs over the past 10 years.

25

extensive engagement with Inverhuron in particular,

And we've had
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1

dating back to at least 2004, when we had our first

2

briefing with the Inverhuron District Ratepayers

3

Association.
In December of 2004 in fact, we

4
5

toured the executive –- the directors of the IDRA

6

at our storefront facility and at that point they

7

sent a letter based on our briefing on the DGR to

8

all of their members.
In it they do talk about the

9
10

exhaustive and comprehensive outline that we did -–

11

that we gave them.

12

talked about the –- that intermediate waste must be

13

properly shielded to reduce lethal radiation.

They do mention that we had

And they go into quite a bit of

14
15

detail about what Inverhuron residents should do in

16

the upcoming poll and how they should have their

17

voices heard.

18

That was just the beginning of our

19

outreach with Inverhuron.

20

with the membership at their annual general meeting

21

from 2004 to 2012 inclusively, and had about 20

22

interactions with the committee -– with the

23

Ratepayers Association.

24
25

We had annual briefings

The Inverhuron Committee here
formed, last year, and we have been engaged with
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1

them and in fact, toured them around our facility

2

this year.
MEMBER ARCHIBALD:

3

I believe one

4

of my specific questions, how would the

5

implementation of public support and consultation

6

be achieved?
Would there be any mechanism built

7
8

into a process to include members from all aspects

9

of the society, not just council members by vote or

10

by community polling, any such selection process,

11

would that be a manner or part of this

12

incorporation?
MS. SWAMI:

13
14
15

Laurie Swami, for the

record.
In selecting –- obviously there

16

can only be so many people on a Community Advisory

17

Committee -- but typically we go through a

18

selection process.

19

In the committees that we've

20

established in our other communities, this is done

21

by a facilitator –- an independent facilitator.

22

We actually keep the facilitator

23

to manage the meetings on our behalf, so that

24

everyone's view can be presented in a very

25

forthright way, without feeling that it's an OPG
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1

only committee.

2

effectively.

And that has worked very

When they go through the selection

3
4

process, we would look to make sure that there was

5

a broad range of views, and that the facilitator

6

was able to select community members based on that

7

as well, so that they would go through a process of

8

making sure if there were not enough –- or many,

9

many volunteers to come to the committee, that

10

would be one aspect to select the community

11

members.

12

We typically also make these

13

meetings available for anyone to just voluntarily -

14

– you know -– participate.

15

committee member, but at least to observe and see

16

the ongoing activities.

17

Perhaps not as a

And finally, generally, media is

18

present during our meetings so that they can report

19

back on the activities that take place.

20

On a regular basis the committees

21

then file a report which is put on the Web site,

22

independently prepared with the support of the

23

facilitator, not with the support of OPG, so that

24

it's an independent report of the activities and

25

observations that the committee provides to the
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1

community.
The members that are participating

2
3

are selected generally because they represent

4

groups within the community, so they may have

5

another constituent that they report back to on the

6

half of, and through their participation.
So it's quite a -– actually quite

7
8

an involved process that we have people

9

participating with us in those other forums.
And so we would anticipate that

10
11

the same thing would happen here; that there would

12

be leaders or a selected representative from

13

community groups that would be probably be put

14

forward as candidates for these types of

15

committees.

16

But of course, what we would want

17

to do is seek feedback from the community on what

18

they would like to do as well.

19

So I'm trying not be too

20

prescriptive because we need to hear also from –-

21

as we go forward in this work, that the community

22

is satisfied with our approach.

23
24
25

MEMBER ARCHIBALD:

Thank you for

that additional information.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

This is again to
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1

OPG.
Following up on that description

2
3

of the proposed Advisory Committees –- Community

4

Advisory Committees.

5

in hearing from OPG why you didn't already have one

6

that looked like that, at least with respect to the

7

existing Western Waste Management Facility, if not

8

including the evolving design and plans for the

9

DGR?
MS. SWAMI:

10
11

The Panel would be interested

Laurie Swami, for the

record.
I would look to some of the

12
13

committees that were already established and were

14

providing what we thought was that feedback.

15

as we came into -- closer to this hearing process,

16

we also began to see that there were people that

17

had concerns.

18

And

And of course, through our

19

outreach program, we reached to them sort of on an

20

individual basis, but in recognition of that and as

21

we've heard through this hearing, it's very

22

important that we establish something that all

23

views can be brought forward to OPG.

24

I think that it's merely a timing

25

issue that in the early days of this project we saw
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1

the work that was done with the municipality seemed

2

to address the concerns.

3

houses, the work of all of the speaking

4

engagements, et cetera, that we had was to seek

5

that input.

The work of the open

And as we move forward, we need to

6
7

formalize that process so that it's maintained

8

throughout the life of the project.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

9

I have a question for Ms.

10
11

Thank you.

McFadzean.

12

You referred to “doors of doubt”,

13

and another metaphor you used was “there were items

14

sitting on a shelf of unanswered questions”.

15

therefore, you called for the use of the

16

precautionary principle when dealing with your

17

doors of doubt.

And

So the Panel would be interested

18
19

in your understanding that perhaps you have now

20

acquired even through these hearings proceedings.
Are you and your committee still

21
22

concerned regarding the application of the

23

precautionary principle in light of the

24

uncertainties that still surround the proposed

25

project?
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And by that, we mean we are

1
2

hearing that you are not convinced by OPG's

3

assertion that they included assumptions that were

4

very conservative such as they did assume a direct

5

connection with formations such as the Salina A and

6

Guelph so that radionuclides could zip right up to

7

the surface.
They also asserted that they used

8
9

a lot of other conservative assumptions to maximize

10

the potential for radiation to reach the surface,

11

and that was their way of dealing with some of the

12

doors of doubt.
The Panel would like to explore a

13
14

bit more why that approach that was used by OPG is

15

unconvincing.
MS. McFADZEAN:

16
17

Related to the

precautionary principle.

18

Well, as I had said at the very

19

beginning, we had thought originally about trying

20

to do a more in-depth geological study because we

21

were concerned about the lake, basically.

22

realized that we were not in a position to be able

23

to do that.

24

so we chose -- each group of us -- to go out and

25

get more information about the geology.

And we

We didn’t have any funding or anything
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And when we compared some of the

1
2

things that we had researched with what OPG's

3

geology presentation was, we felt that there were

4

things coming forward that gave us concern, which

5

became our doors of doubt.

6

hearing we heard again from Wilf Ruland and then

7

from Charles Rhodes and then from Peter Duinker.

And then during the

And so in fact, we went from

8
9

having the doors of doubt to feeling that since

10

there were layer upon layer of things added from

11

people who really had a lot more technical

12

information than we did, but, indeed, they had

13

their doors of doubt, we moved from that to feeling

14

that if this is the case, then we feel that a

15

precautionary principle should be kicked in and

16

that there should be either further study, further

17

sites looked at.

18

open.

We felt everything should remain

19

THE CHAIRPERSON:

20

The next question is to OPG as

21

well as to CNSC.
The Panel have heard Mr. Bourgeois

22
23

and his concerns.

24

concerns?

25

Thank you.

How does OPG respond to such

What processes does OPG have in
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1

place, perhaps already associated with the Western

2

Waste Management Facility, or do you intend to

3

change or enhance these processes in support of the

4

proposed DGR?
For example, Mr. Bourgeois

5
6

mentioned, among others, noise.

7

intend to reduce or eliminate the burden on the

8

public, for example, in terms of having to obtain

9

their own technical or legal advice?
And the exact same question over

10
11

to CNSC.
MS. SWAMI:

12
13

How does OPG

Laurie Swami, for the

record.
So the process -- I heard two

14
15

questions, just to be clear, so I'll start with the

16

first one, which is the process to respond to

17

concerns.

18

elaborate on my response.

And I'll ask Mr. Powers to further

The process to respond to

19
20

concerns.

21

expressed by the public, we talked, I think,

22

Saturday about the number that you could call or

23

email to let us know that you had a concern.

24
25

So if we were to receive a concern

We would, of course, respond to
the individual to let them know what we were doing,
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1

but at the facility we would sort of go through a

2

process of trying to see what we would have been

3

doing that could cause such a concern.
So in this particular case in the

4
5

DGR, we would perhaps be doing activities of the --

6

moving the rock to the surface and that might have

7

caused a noise event, if you will, that we could

8

track back to what would have resulted in the

9

complaint.

And we would work with that individual

10

to see if that was the reason for it, we would then

11

put in place mitigation to try and prevent that

12

from happening in the future, if that was the type

13

of event that it was.

14

So we typically look at the

15

complaint and backtrack it to our operations to see

16

how we can modify our operations to address that

17

concern so that we wouldn't have noise or we

18

wouldn't have that dust issue going forward.

19

And I think perhaps Mr. Powers has

20

a little bit more of how we would deal with the

21

public on such an event.

22
23
24
25

And why don't we finish that part
of the question and come back to the second part?
THE CHAIRPERSON:

The Panel would

also appreciate hearing, relative to your existing

INTERNATIONAL REPORTING INC.

82

1

operation at the Western Waste Management Facility,

2

perhaps by -- with the assistance of some

3

illustrative examples, if you have any, to help us

4

understand the processes that now exist and then

5

any further refinements or improvements to that

6

process.
MR. POWERS:

7
8

Kevin Powers, for the

record.

9

As we noted a few days ago, there

10

have not been any complaints or calls regarding the

11

Western Waste Management Facility over the past

12

five years.

13

throughout Ontario, including our nuclear

14

facilities at Pickering and Darlington.

15

receive calls about noises that people hear that

16

may or may not be related to our facilities.

However, we do have many operations

And we do

In order to address those

17
18

concerns, we have, of course, a number available 24

19

hours a day, seven days a week which people can

20

call.

21

response within an hour or so from an OPG employee.

And they will get an immediate response or a

We then will take that concern and

22
23

go to our operations and find out, as Ms. Swami

24

said, whether or not this is related to our

25

operations.
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And we will continue to work with

1
2

the concerned resident to find out the cause of

3

that even if it is not from our facilities.

4

will perhaps call the municipality and find out

5

whether it had something to do with them or one of

6

our neighbours.

We

7

And so we do work cooperatively

8

with residents and concerned residents to try and

9

help them resolve issues that they may believe or

10

that actually did come from our facilities.
MS. SWAMI:

11
12

Laurie Swami, for the

record.
So the second part of the question

13
14

was how would we reduce or eliminate burden on the

15

public to address any concerns that they may have.
And you know, I feel a little bit

16
17

-- I'm focusing on the CAC significantly.

18

my experience on that was we did go through a

19

period of time at our other facilities where there

20

was a lot of concerns expressed by the public on

21

how we would operate our facilities and just

22

general concerns about potential effects on the

23

public.

24
25

However,

And we went through a very lengthy
process of identifying what those concerns were.
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1

We created at that time what was called a community

2

working group, rather than an advisory council,

3

established a sort of a common list of what those

4

concerns were, and then OPG took the responsibility

5

for addressing those concerns on a regular basis.

6

And that worked its way into what

7

we now have as the Community Advisory Council where

8

we can come back with any issues that might be out

9

there.

And it provides an opportunity for public

10

members to bring forward issues that they may have

11

observed or felt in the environment.

12

would continue to do it that way.

13

And so we

Through those types of bodies and

14

facilities you can extract information as well

15

about concerns that are developing and address them

16

early so that they don't become something that's a

17

burden on the public to do research and try to

18

understand what the issues may be.

19

responsibility, and we take it very seriously, to

20

work with the public to understand their issues,

21

and to the extent we can, address them.

22
23
24
25

THE CHAIRPERSON:

It is OPG's

And just a quick

follow-up, Ms. Swami.
Do these existing committees and
working groups include access to independent
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1

technical experts, if the need arises?
MS. SWAMI:

2
3

Laurie Swami, for the

record.
We haven't had a need for that

4
5

type of work.

When we had the work in Pickering we

6

were then entered into an environmental assessment

7

process, which of course has independent

8

consultants that would do peer reviews of the

9

study.

Similar to what was done here, where

10

capacity is provided to the municipality to hire

11

independent peer reviews of certain aspects of the

12

work.
Because it is important, from a

13
14

community perspective, to be able to do that type

15

of work with qualified people who can do an

16

effective review of that and so that capacity was

17

certainly provided here, as it was in our other

18

communities.

19

THE CHAIRPERSON:

So over to CNSC.

20

And as from the regulatory point

21

of view, when the kinds of concerns that

22

Mr. Bourgeois has raised this morning come to your

23

attention, what are you existing processes and do

24

you have plans specific to the DGR related to

25

those?
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MR. ELDER:

1
2

the record.
I'll just go back in and how we

3
4

So -- Peter Elder, for

have dealt with such complaints in the past.
First of all, we make sure that --

5
6

initially that the licensee has thoroughly

7

investigated that and reported their findings to

8

us.

9

this one -- and communicated back to the person,

10

If there's any remaining uncertainty around

the public.
If there's any remaining

11
12

uncertainty, we have done independent

13

investigations by ourselves, up to including

14

publishing those results in peer reviewed studies.

15

So try and give some credibility to the results

16

that we have independently verified.
In terms of going forward, we have

17
18

done, in the last couple of years, a lot more --

19

provided a lot more clear direction about what we

20

expect public information programs to be for the

21

licensees.

22

2012 that very -- much more clearly puts out the

23

requirements around this public information program

24

so that licensees are required to actually have a

25

database of all comments they receive from the

There's a new regulatory document from
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1

licensees that is available for us to -- from the

2

public -- was available to us to actually audit and

3

see that they are addressing concerns that they get

4

from the public.
We have tried to maximize the

5
6

amount of information that's available on our Web

7

site to make sure that we're providing proper

8

information on the Web site.
Also, going forward, especially on

9
10

the burden situation is we have in the recent, in

11

the last two years, been given the power to provide

12

participant funding for formal hearings.

13

is something that was done routinely under CEAA in

14

the last two years where we now have the power to

15

do that on our -- for license renewal hearings, and

16

we started to do that for the last couple of years.

17

So that there is, again, a formal

So this

18

-- when we have announcement of a hearing there

19

will also be an announcement saying there is

20

participant funding available if a member of the

21

public or organization wanted to get money to do

22

their own independent review of the licensee's

23

application.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

24
25

Thank you,

Mr. Elder.
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1

In your response, I took note, in

2

particular of a couple of things.

3

that CNSC, if there is still a need to investigate

4

an issue, would do your own investigation, and you

5

referred to publication and peer reviewed

6

literature, et cetera.

7

One of them is

Do you also have any plans for

8

making that information more accessible and making

9

it easier and more comfortable, or even have a

10

process at all, that gives citizens, like

11

Mr. Bourgeois, a little bit more access and a

12

little less trying experiences in coming -- getting

13

to the bottom of some of these situations?

14

Because we've heard throughout the

15

hearing that publication of information, just one

16

way, is clearly -- still led to a situation where

17

we get, for example, the kinds of evidence we're

18

hearing at this hearing.

19

And it -- I'm asking you, in terms

20

of interaction, person-to-person, with the general

21

public, who feel that they have not been heard, on

22

behalf of the regulatory agency.

23

MR. ELDER:

I guess in the past,

24

and we would look at it -- we've done this in two

25

ways, is either we have used a public meeting of
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1

the Commission to present the information, which

2

I'm not saying that that is the best way to do

3

this, I'm just saying what the past practice was.

4

For some other projects, and

5

thinking around what we've done in Port Hope, we

6

actually then -- and when we had done the

7

independent study we actually set up a workshop or

8

a public information session where members of the

9

public -- it wasn't a talking one.

They have

10

booths so that you could come up and talk to the

11

specialist in various areas.

12

So that it was an open house, you

13

come in and we would have our specialists there

14

with some information, but then they could talk

15

one-to-one with the members of CNSC staff.

16

we've done this in some other areas as well.

And

17

THE CHAIRPERSON:

18

Panel Members, did we have any

19

Thank you.

further questions?

20

Thank you very much.

21

I think we need to shuffle chairs

22
23
24
25

a bit so we can bring Dr. Leiss forward.
Oh I'm sorry; I'm suffering from a
low caffeine level this morning.

I apologize.

Mr. Bourgeois, if you could take
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1

your seat again.

I neglected to pay attention to

2

the fact that there's actually quite a list of

3

participants who want to ask questions.
So our first participant with a

4
5

question is Mr. Storck.

6

--- QUESTIONS BY THE PUBLIC:

7

MR. STORCK:

8

Chair.

9

Committee.

Thank you, Madam

I have a question for the Inverhuron

Taking notes as the talk was

10
11

presented, a comment was made about a concern that

12

the socio-economic or the sustainability analysis

13

did not take into account community vision.
And I'd like to ask the Inverhuron

14
15

Committee if they feel that the official plans for

16

the community of Kincardine or even Bruce County

17

should have played a role in the sustainability

18

analysis?

19

THE CHAIRPERSON:

Ms. McFadzean?

20

MS. McFADZEAN:

21

what I was focusing on when I mentioned that David

22

Hardy spoke about the sustainability process being

23

a much better way to reach out to the community to

24

come up with a vision that was going to reflect in

25

fact what the community should look like.

I believe that's
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1

that's why I had assumed that the DGR would be part

2

of that.
I have to say, when it was not

3
4

mentioned, and we really spent an awful lot of time

5

at those committee meetings talking about

6

transportation into town, tourism, culture,

7

theatre, bicycle paths, walkways, it was the vision

8

that I had of Kincardine, so when I walked away I

9

was really quite happy and reassured that this was

10

-- I was in synch with where the community was

11

going.

12

THE CHAIRPERSON:

13

Mr. Storck?

14

MR. STORCK:

Thank you.

If I could ask

15

another question related to Mr. Bourgeois’

16

statement?

17

My question is, sitting in the

18

audience there seems to be a huge disconnect

19

between what OPG and CNSC are saying with respect

20

to response to personal complaints.

21

to get into personal issues, but I -- my question

22

is, can anyone explain the disconnect between the

23

processes we’re hearing about today with OPG and

24

Nuclear Safety Commission, this apparent disconnect

25

between that and between the testimony we’ve heard

I do not wish
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1

this morning?
THE CHAIRPERSON:

2

Yes, Mr. Storck,

3

and in fact that was part of the reason for the

4

Panel’s question.
I’m going to direct this again to

5
6

CNSC because the Panel understands from your

7

evidence, Mr. Bourgeois, that many, if not all of

8

your issues really are Bruce nuclear -- related to

9

the operation of the Bruce nuclear plant.

10

Is that

correct?
MR. BOURGEOIS:

11

It’s not entirely

12

correct, Madam.

Some of the operations are from

13

Bruce Power, some are from OPG.

14

tritium and radioactivity that continuously

15

bombards us, some of it is coming from the

16

incinerator and they may be alpha particles that

17

attach to small particulate matter that I end up

18

breathing, and I can no longer breathe.

For example, the

THE CHAIRPERSON:

19

Thank you

20

for that clarification.

21

get back to the disconnect business for both OPG

22

and CNSC.

23

Okay.

Okay.

So we’re going to

And again, this is why I asked

24

about the Western Waste Management Facility.

25

have heard a lot of concerns around the
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1

incinerator.

Apparently, according to Mr. Powers,

2

you presented evidence that there have been no

3

formal complaints.

4

what we are hearing this morning.

5

like a little bit more information regarding that.

6

And also, the same to CNSC.

That’s a disconnect between
So we would just

7

So first of all to OPG, please?

8

MS. MORTON:

9

Hello.

Lise Morton,

for the record.
So I’ll try to address, I think

10
11

there’s quite a few questions in there, but I’ll

12

try to address it as best I can.
So with respect to the incinerator

13
14

-- well, let me go back a step.

15

question I heard was that we’ve identified that

16

there have not been any complaints.

17

the Ministry of Environment also had an undertaking

18

and they’ve responded, I understand.

19

records we have no identified complaints of noise

20

or emissions in the last five years.

21

verified as well by the Ministry of the

22

Environment.

23

I think the first

And I believe

So in our

And that’s

So again, that would be complaints

24

where people have formally identified concerns

25

through that formal process.

So we have no

INTERNATIONAL REPORTING INC.

94

1

identification of those concerns.
We have heard what people’s

2
3

concerns are about the incinerator throughout the

4

hearing and it typically comes down, of course, to

5

emissions and I’ve provided information with

6

respect to how the incinerator’s licensed under

7

both the Ministry of the Environment and the

8

Canadian Nuclear Safety Commission, how those

9

emissions are very low with respect to derived

10
11

release limits.
We’ve also heard, I believe,

12

through the course of the hearing and we’ve talked

13

about the need for more transparency of that

14

emissions information.

15

on Saturday, I think it was, that we’re going to

16

move towards trying to make that information more

17

understandable, more available to the public, and

18

we’re looking at doing that in 2014.

19

So I believe we identified

Maybe as well to point to some

20

specifics, the CNSC had an Undertaking No. 25, and

21

I’m sorry, I don’t have the registry number

22

available, but there’s a really good explanation in

23

that Undertaking No. 25 around the incinerator, how

24

it operates, the emissions results, and it gives

25

the results of the stack testing that includes
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1

things like dioxins and furans and particulate.

2

there’s very good information in Undertaking No.

3

25, so I won’t repeat that here.
Was there another part of the

4
5

So

question there?
THE CHAIRPERSON:

6

I think based on

7

-- you’ve already given, thank you, Ms. Morton, a

8

good overview of what OPG has learned through the

9

hearing and what some of your intentions are going

10

forward.
So I think that’s sufficient

11
12

evidence from OPG’s side for now, but I would now

13

go over to CNSC and ask you the same question.

14

MR. ELDER:

15
16

So Peter Elder, for

the record.
I walked through some of the

17

processes we have used.

I’d like to point out, in

18

terms of Mr. Bourgeois’ complaints about the

19

hydrogen sulphide, we actually did walk through all

20

those processes over many years.

21

independent research reports.

22

You know, it was made available to the public.

23

we felt at the time, and this was over many years

24

in the late ‘80s into the ‘90s, that we did a

25

thorough review of those concerns.

We did

We published this.
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1

In terms of the complaints and --

2

but that doesn’t obviously necessarily say that the

3

member of the public is fully satisfied, you know.

4

But we didn’t ignore those complaints.

5

very thorough investigation of them.

We did a

6

In terms of the complaints around

7

the fire testing, I know, you know, that facility,

8

while it’s on the Bruce site, is not officially

9

regulated by the CNSC.

Nevertheless, we made sure

10

that when we got complaints, we raised them both

11

with Bruce Power and with the Ontario Ministry of

12

Environment that does provide certificates for that

13

facility, and it did result in Bruce Power changing

14

how they use that facility.
What, unfortunately, Bruce Power

15
16

can’t completely control is wind changes during a

17

test.

18

where the wind did change during testing.

And we recognize there were some situations

And this is a fire fighting

19
20

facility.

So they are required to actually train

21

their firefighters on real fires.

22

safety requirement to change their firefighters.

23

We feel they actually did a fairly good job of

24

trying to minimize any offsite effects from those

25

changes.

So there is a
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So I guess as has been said, our

1
2

position is that we’ve always tried to do best

3

efforts to make sure these concerns were addressed,

4

and that includes doing years of scientific studies

5

on them as well.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

6
7

Thank you, Mr.

Elder.

8

Dr. Greer, you had a question?

9

DR. GREER:

10

Thank you, Madam

Chair.

11

Dr. Sandy Greer, for the record.

12

I have two questions and they both

13
14

pertain to Mr. Bourgeois’ presentation.
First of all, I would just like to

15

cite the Health Physics Society who made two

16

position statements.

17

position statement was that:

In September 2005, one

18

“Low-level radioactive waste

19

management needs a complete

20

and coordinated overhaul.”

21

For example:

22

“Waste classification and

23

disposal requirements for any

24

type of radioactive waste

25

should be based on its
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1

potential risk to public

2

health and safety, not on its

3

origin or legislative

4

[nature].”

5

As recently as February 2013,

6

another position statement of the Health Physics

7

Society focused on uncertainty in risk assessment.

8

For example, it pointed out that it should be

9

“…recognized that credible

10

scientific studies may lead

11

to honest differences in data

12

interpretation and support of

13

competing theories and that

14

calculations based on

15

different theories may lead

16

to risk estimates that are

17

significantly different.”

18

So it mentioned the linear-no-

19

threshold model as one model.

It also said:

20

“…perhaps even a threshold

21

below which no detectable

22

radiation health risk

23

exists.”

24
25

So in other words, I’m concerned
about a lack of clarity during my more than three
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1

weeks of attending this hearing to understand how

2

the Proponent and the CNSC are trying to deal with

3

the reality that how risks about low level

4

radiation and intermediate waste have been

5

considered in the past and becoming known to be

6

inadequate.

7

proactive actions or studies that are currently

8

underway or that they are willing to undertake to

9

improve the situation given the huge health and

10

But I haven’t clearly heard any

environmental risks.

11

Thank you.

12

THE CHAIRPERSON:

13
14

Dr. Greer, I’m

struggling to find the question.
DR. GREER:

Okay, the question is,

15

are there any current studies being undertaken in

16

Canada given our regulatory system because it

17

impacts on the regulatory system of how well it’s

18

protecting the public.

19

So are there any more recent

20

studies being done in how to determine the effects

21

and cumulative effects of low level and

22

intermediate level waste?

23

THE CHAIRPERSON:

So Dr. Greer, as

24

you know, yesterday and also on September 27th, we

25

did have presentations from the CNSC regarding
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1

their epidemiological studies.

2

We have had presentations from

3

other health-related officials and we have had a

4

lot of evidence presented to the Panel related to

5

the remaining uncertainty and how OPG has responded

6

to that uncertainty by using highly conservative

7

assumptions.
So I guess what I’m wondering is

8
9

over and above what we’ve already heard, what

10

specifically about the risks associated with low

11

and intermediate level waste is still missing in

12

your mind from the evidence before the Panel?

13

DR. GREER:

I -- what I hear from

14

the OPG is that it seems to be very rigid in

15

sticking with its original script about what it has

16

been doing and is doing and I don’t feel a sense of

17

trust in its willingness to improve and enhance

18

responses to these serious health and environmental

19

risks.

20

And similarly, the CNSC has

21

identified certain studies, but I just don’t feel

22

clear in my mind about a really genuine

23

understanding that much more needs to be done to --

24

because this proposed DGR can have such devastating

25

impacts and the cumulative effects, it still raises
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1

a question about how well they’re being addressed.

2

THE CHAIRPERSON:

3

Dr. Greer, what I’m hearing from you is -- there’s

4

two key words in what you’ve just presented to the

5

Panel.

6

key phrase is the “remaining uncertainty or

7

remaining work that is yet to be completed”.

The one key word is “trust” and the other

The Panel has certainly heard this

8
9

So to sum up,

and in fact our next presenter and the rest of the

10

day, as I said yesterday, will be exploring trust a

11

lot.
But essentially what we have

12
13

before us is a safety case that has been presented

14

to us by the Proponent and has been reviewed by the

15

regulator and that’s why we keep hearing the same

16

answers because they have presented their safety

17

case.
We have heard evidence about the

18
19

pros and cons of that safety case, so -- and the

20

Panel is very aware of the pros and cons evidence

21

that have been placed before us.
So I’m not entirely sure what else

22
23

either OPG or the CNSC can present to the Panel as

24

evidence at this time, over and above what we’ve

25

already heard.
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But just in case, I will double

1
2

check to make sure that I have paraphrased the

3

situation correctly, both from the point of view of

4

OPG and the CNSC.
Let’s get the answer to the first

5
6

one first please.
DR. THOMPSON:

7
8

start.

So if I could

So Patsy Thompson, for the record.

9

So in terms of the questions that

10

Dr. Greer are asking about, you know, the different

11

scientists assessing data and coming to different

12

interpretations, that is understood and it’s the

13

best mechanism to move forward with new hypotheses,

14

development of new laboratory studies, to try to

15

understand and resolve the differences in

16

interpretation.
We have talked over the last few

17
18

days about the epidemiological studies that the

19

CNSC has done.

20

work that we have funded an external -- external

21

agencies to do for us on exposures of laboratory

22

animals to very low levels of tritium and alpha

23

emitters in uranium and radium in the environment

24

at levels that are -- levels of naturally occurring

25

or around licensed facilities.

What we haven’t talked about is the

INTERNATIONAL REPORTING INC.

103

That work comprises work over

1
2

several generations, looking at all kinds of

3

indicators, genetic, biochemical, protein analysis;

4

there’s a whole slew of parameters that are being

5

looked at.
I’m also on the Scientific

6
7

Advisory Committee of an institute that is doing

8

research in this area, and last year, I, with

9

experts from other countries, reviewed the research

10

that is being conducted at very low exposures on

11

different types of indicators of stress and stress

12

response.

13

that area that we don’t often hear about because

14

it’s not dealing with people and risk factors.

15

And there’s a lot of work going on in

And -- but it’s by continuing to

16

do that work that we’ll have a better understanding

17

of what happens in cells and with genes that will

18

help us to better understand what we are seeing.

19

But in the meantime, the other

20

studies allow us at least to see and to make sure

21

that, you know, the populations and the workers

22

around nuclear facilities are being protected.

23

it’s not that nothing else is being done.

24

THE CHAIRPERSON:

25

MS. SWAMI:

But

OPG?

Laurie Swami, for the
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1

record.
I think Dr. Greer has raised a

2
3

very important concept of trust in the community,

4

something that’s very important for OPG to ensure

5

that we have that trust.
Given what we’ve heard today or

6
7

over the course of these hearings, you know, we

8

obviously want to be responsive.
I’ve talked about the Community

9
10

Advisory Council as one means of being responsive

11

to the community.

12

not something that by making a commitment here in

13

this hearing will suddenly change the feelings that

14

the intervenor is presenting, and it’s something

15

that we need to work on over a very long period of

16

time to build that trust, to demonstrate what we do

17

to provide information.

18

I would also comment that it’s

I also think to this process of

19

the independent reviews that are done.

20

look at the geoscience work or the safety case or

21

the environmental assessment, we often will go to

22

independent reviewers as part of that process

23

because we understand this is a very technical

24

matter and it’s not easy for people to, you know,

25

pick up fairly lengthy documents and really
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1

understand what we’re talking about.
We tend to talk in jargon, in a

2
3

different language, so it’s important to have

4

independent science views on what we have done.

5

That’s an important part of what we’ve done.

6

an important part of the process that you have

7

underway as well.
And so that will take time.

8
9

It’s

It

will go through process and over time, what we want

10

to do is demonstrate why we believe it’s a good

11

project, seek the views of others and incorporate

12

that into our process.

13

time.

And again, that will take

14

THE CHAIRPERSON:

15

Dr. Greer?

16

DR. GREER:

Thank you.

Okay, well, thank you

17

very much.

18

Swanson, because Dr. Thompson, this morning, now

19

has added more to the public record about the other

20

studies that she had not previously mentioned, so

21

thank you very much, Dr. Thompson.

22

I appreciate your indulgence, Dr.

My next question; in regard to the

23

studies that the CNSC is doing on tritium, I just

24

have this second question because it also pertains

25

to Mr. Bourgeois’ concerns that it was as long ago
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1

as 1996 that the Grey-Bruce Health Unit did a study

2

on tritium.

3

report stated:

Even though its executive summary

4

“[…] it [was] limited in

5

scope […] relatively short

6

duration [in summer and only

7

dealt with] 51% [of the

8

shoreline property owners].”
The final sentence is:

9
10

“It may be possible that,

11

within different time periods

12

and seasons, the movement of

13

tritium through the water

14

supply would be substantially

15

different.”
So I would just like to ask

16
17

whether more local and regional studies would be

18

able to be part of the larger study and outreach

19

that the CNSC is doing or would it be the

20

responsibility of an Ontario-based authority to

21

pursue more recent studies of tritium?

22

THE CHAIRPERSON:

23

DR. THOMPSON:

24
25

CNSC?

Patsy Thompson, for

the record.
I can come back after lunch with
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1

the undertaking, but we did submit an undertaking

2

with data of the two drinking water supply plants

3

that go back to 2000.
But to respond more directly to

4
5

Dr. Greer’s question, certainly if there’s an

6

interest in the community, we can do detailed

7

tritium sampling around the community and report on

8

those results.
So it’s Undertaking Number 43,

9
10

sorry.

11

THE CHAIRPERSON:

12

Ms. Martin?

13

MS. MARTIN:

14

Thank you.

Good morning, Dr.

Swanson and Panel.

15

I had a couple of questions; the

16

first one is what is the numerical values that are

17

attached to minor and major changes to the proposed

18

DGR?

19

constitute a major in terms of either number --

20

percentages?

What would constitute a minor, what would

21

THE CHAIRPERSON:

OPG, I think

22

we’re back to trying to get a handle on what really

23

is a major change and whether you can provide --

24

Ms. Martin, I think a lot of this has to do with

25

the percent of low level versus intermediate level,
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1

for example.

Is that what you’re getting at?
MS. MARTIN:

2

I’m getting at that

3

and also the size of the -- of the actual

4

structure.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

5
6

percentage change.

7

MS. MARTIN:

8

THE CHAIRPERSON:

9

As it creeps along.
As it creeps

along.

10

Okay, OPG?

11

MS. SWAMI:

12

Right, the

Laurie Swami, for the

record.
And my memory is -- perhaps I need

13
14

caffeine.

The expansion is specified in the Act.

15

I just cannot remember the number.

16

Okay, we’ve got some help.

17

MR. KING:

18
19

Frank King, for the

record.
I’ll talk about the capacity and

20

then the nature of the waste, the differences.

21

application for the licence and the granting of the

22

licence will be done under a licensing basis.

23

There’s a licensing basis referred to in the

24

Licence and Licence Condition Handbook.

25

The

The safety case is part of that
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1

licence basis.

The inventory that was assumed in

2

the safety case is part of the licence basis.

3

OPG would not be allowed to put in wastes which

4

contravene the bounds of that safety case unless it

5

went back to the CNSC and sought the proper

6

authority.

So

With respect to the volume of the

7
8

facility, the licence application is for the 31

9

rooms people are familiar with.

To start any

10

construction different than that later on would

11

require CNSC approval.

12

I believe the reference for the

13

volume is in the CEAA Act, regulation pursuant to

14

CEAA Act which from memory, it’s a 35 percent

15

expansion of an existing facility requires an

16

environmental assessment as well.

17

be over and above any dealings with the regulator

18

on any level of expansion.

But that would

19

THE CHAIRPERSON:

20

Did you have anything to add, Mr.

21

Elder?
MR. ELDER:

22
23
24
25

Thank you.

Peter Elder, for the

record.
I guess the only thing I would add
is that what OPG has asked for right now is a
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1

construction licence.

They will actually need to

2

come to the CNSC to get a licence to operate, which

3

at point, is where you would be seeking permission

4

to introduce radioactive waste.
So at that time, which will be

5
6

done through a public hearing, there will be a

7

thorough review of -- they will need to update

8

their safety case at that time to show that it’s

9

still satisfactory based on any new knowledge they

10

have determined through construction.
So you cannot -- it will not creep

11
12

-- well let’s say there will not be a change during

13

the construction phase, it’ll be thoroughly

14

reviewed again before you go into operation.

15

THE CHAIRPERSON:

Ms. Martin?

16

MS. MARTIN:

17

Now, I think I understood Ms.

Thank you.

18

Swami to say that -- talking about the council the

19

Advisory Council, and that the rationales for any

20

changes would be discussed with people on that

21

council and the community.

22

does the discussion also have any kind of a veto

23

power?

24
25

And I’m just wondering

Like what if the committee or the
community says, “We don’t want that”, what happens
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1

then?
THE CHAIRPERSON:

2

OPG, I think

3

what Ms. Martin is getting at is, to what extent

4

the existing or planned Community Advisory

5

Committees would have any participation in

6

decision-making?

Is that kind of it in a nutshell?

7

MS. MARTIN:

8

MS. SWAMI:

9
10

Yeah.
Laurie Swami, for the

record.
The committee is called a

11

Community Advisory Committee which is, by nature,

12

an opportunity for the community to advise on

13

operations and certainly is something that we take

14

into consideration.

15

Some of the things that we’ve

16

talked about in that committee -- and I realize

17

this doesn’t address specifically Ms. Martin’s

18

concern, would be, if we were talking to the

19

community about a particular issue.

20

best way to communicate that more broadly within

21

the community would be a way that that committee

22

could advise us, as an example.

23

What is the

There’s other issues -- we’ve --

24

in the local community on Lake Ontario, we’ve had a

25

significant problem with algae blooms which some
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1

could believe was a result of the thermal plume

2

released from our facilities.
And so we’ve done a lot of work at

3
4

trying to address the concerns the community has

5

raised with that because it obviously affects usage

6

of beach and whether there was things that we could

7

do in our operation to try and mitigate those types

8

of effects through the use of our cooling water and

9

things of that nature.
So it gives the opportunity for

10
11

the community to bring those types of issues

12

forward so we could consider how we could help to

13

mitigate effects.
MS. MARTIN:

14

I have one question

15

for Ms. Morton, and she said yesterday that there

16

were two wells being tested at Inverhuron and one

17

was shallow, one was deep.

18

was in the wells, like if there was tritium or what

19

the levels were.
MS. MORTON:

20
21

And I didn’t hear what

Lise Morton, for the

record.
Yes, so what I referred to

22
23

yesterday is the Bruce Power 2012 Environmental

24

Monitoring Program report and I actually did this

25

the other day.

If you Google Bruce Power REMP,
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1

it’ll actually show up.

2

available on Web sites.

So it’s very easily

So the values as they are exactly

3
4

quoted in the 2012 report, the deep well is called

5

BR37 in Inverhuron village and it showed a tritium

6

average of 18.72 becquerels per litre.
The shallow well is called BR32 in

7
8

the report, and that showed a tritium average of

9

21.3 becquerels per litre, if that’s helpful.

10

MS. MARTIN:

11

THE CHAIRPERSON:

12

Thank you very much.
Thank you, Ms.

Martin.
I’ve been informed that our next

13
14

scheduled speaker, Dr. Leiss, actually has to leave

15

again at 1 p.m.

16

remainder of the questions on these two

17

presentations until later today so that we can

18

proceed directly to Dr. Leiss’ presentation and

19

questions.

20

So I will have to hold the

Thank you very much.

21

(SHORT PAUSE/COURTE PAUSE)

22

THE CHAIRPERSON:

Welcome Dr.

23

Leiss, and please proceed.

24

--- PRESENTATION BY DR. WILLIAM LEISS:

25

DR. LEISS:

Thank you.

INTERNATIONAL REPORTING INC.

114

I apologize for the time

1
2

constraint.

It’s because the day was -- I

3

originally was scheduled on the 10th and the change

4

made it impossible for me today to stay beyond.

5

could have done it easily on the 10th.

I

I have a short PowerPoint

6
7

presentation, based on my paper.

8

it very quickly to leave as much time as possible

9

for exchanges of views on these matters.
Next slide, please.

10
11

I'll go through

That's just

some basic information.

12

Next slide.

13

copies of titles I've written on books on risk

14

across many different areas.

15

and Responsibility.
Mad Cows and

Mother's Milk.
And the next one, In the Chamber

18
19

The first one, Risk

Next one, please.

16
17

I wanted to show just

of Risks.
So these are extensive case

20
21

studies on issues in managing risk.

22

expertise in this general area, not on any specific

23

areas of risk.

24
25

Next slide, please.

So my

I was asked

to write an overview presentation on the

INTERNATIONAL REPORTING INC.

115

1

literature, especially the more recent literature

2

on the concept of stigma, and with special

3

reference to stigma associated with hazardous

4

waste, and in particular, nuclear waste as a

5

subcategory of hazardous waste.
So very briefly, as an overview of

6
7

what I've written, the very notion of stigma itself

8

is originally a Greek word.

9

shame, fundamentally; to indicate disapproval on

10

the part of a larger community, usually for some

11

minority within the community.

12

years -- that's an old concept -- in more recent

13

years, the concept of stigma has been applied very

14

broadly to technologies, products and places.

It means a mark of

And in more recent

15

And with respect to places, that

16

is an actual region or an area in a community or a

17

region, some obvious form of environmental

18

contamination in a particular location, which may

19

cause harm to a community, in social or economic

20

terms.

21

Next slide, please.

In the U.S.,

22

where you have the most extensive discussion of

23

stigmatization of place, the most common reference

24

is generally to contaminated sites from older

25

industrial facilities, many of which require
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1

extensive cleanup, and these are often referred to

2

as so-called super fun sites.
But more recently, in the 1990s,

3
4

during a long fight waged by the State of Nevada

5

against locating the U.S. National Repository for

6

High-Level Nuclear Waste at Yucca Mountain, this

7

particular case at Yucca Mountain dominated the

8

discussion of stigmatization of place.
Next slide.

9

There is a more --

10

and the most recent complete book on the subject,

11

which is a collection of essays, entitled, “Risk,

12

Media and Stigma,” there are extensive essays on

13

Yucca Mountain and that concept of stigmatization

14

of place.

15

volume, although it is on chemicals and not on

16

nuclear waste.

17

journal articles and reports on the subject which

18

are listed in my paper.

And indeed, I have a chapter in that

And there are a large number of

19

Next slide.

20

in its application, especially to technologies,

21

products, and places, a special case of what we

22

call perception of risk; that is, a belief that

23

someone or something in our environment might cause

24

us harm.

25

Stigma is basically,

A stigma implies, also, a special
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1

type of harm, one which is unnatural and permanent;

2

a kind of harm that cannot be made better or

3

mitigated.

4

category, an extreme category of perception of

5

risk.

6

us to be careful when we encounter the concept and

7

its argument that it's applied to a particular

8

case.

So it is really kind of a special

And this characteristic of stigma requires

Next slide.

9

As noted earlier,

10

stigma means a mark of shame, representing

11

disapproval of the community.

12

and this is what I call the strong sense of stigma,

13

when it's applied to people, because this is the

14

older and traditional concept.

15

important concept when it's applied to people.

And what I call --

It's a very

It is very common in human

16
17

societies in the past and even today.

18

common is the stigma associated with homosexuality,

19

for example.

20

because it's also said to be unnatural.

21

you know, I mentioned that as a characteristic of

22

stigma, and that is a special kind of perception of

23

harm; an unnatural form of behaviour that might

24

contaminate others who come into contact with it.

25

What is

We have many, many cases of -That's, as

It's not unknown in our own
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1

societies even today and in some societies in the

2

world, it is now punishable by death.

3

countries in Africa and the Country of Iran, it is

4

punishable by death.

5

stigma, stigma in a strong sense, is very important

6

and it's very important for all societies to come

7

to terms with it.

8
9

Many

This is why this type of

Next slide.

In general, when it's

applied to people, stigmatizing is a perverse form

10

of social bonding by the majority against a

11

targeted minority.

12

by far of course, is that of Nazi Germany, in which

13

not just homosexuals, but especially Jews, Gypsies,

14

and the mentally ill, were all stigmatized and

15

persecuted, robbed, and put to death in

16

extermination camps.

The worst case in modern times,

17

Because this process of marking

18

people with shame, excluding them from the larger

19

community, representing what they are as unnatural

20

and a threat to the community, this strong form of

21

stigma must always be taken very seriously, and we

22

must always be on guard for it, which is why, for

23

example, I, among other things, am a supporter of a

24

Canadian legislation and practice which seeks to

25

outlaw hate speech.

Speech is usually the first --
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1

where it starts.

Unless you nip it in the bud, it

2

can go further.

3

as applied to people.

4

important concepts for societies, including our

5

own, to come to terms with.

This is a strong sense of stigma
It's one of the most

Next slide.

6

I regard all other

7

applications of stigma as much weaker than this,

8

with much less power and much less need for society

9

to respond, because I think that those extensions,

10

while interesting, don't represent really strong

11

underlying arguments.

12

reference to consumer products and technologies.

13

They're not very important.

It’s sometimes used with

I mentioned in my paper a couple

14
15

of classic instances which are in the literature,

16

studies of what happened to Tylenol when the

17

product was poisoned in the early ‘80s, what

18

happened to apples when there was a concern about a

19

pesticide called Alar at the end of the 1980s.
And you know, those are

20
21

interesting discussions, but really they don't

22

really lead anywhere.

23

about Tylenol or apples?

24

forgotten.

25

I mean, who today worries
They're very quickly

Adding stigma to that doesn't
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1

really explain anything new about those

2

controversies; they're explainable in their own

3

terms of what happened, and so as a result, this

4

application and the application to technologies

5

simply are -- tend to be local phenomena that don't

6

have any lasting impression.
But place is a little different

7
8

because place is where people live, and since

9

stigma applies to people, then it can be

10

transferred to place.

So we have -- we take more

11

of a look at stigmatization of place than we do

12

with stigma attached to products or technologies.

13

Next slide.

14

I think if you ask yourself, well,

15

what is a stigmatized place?

Well, it’s a place

16

where there's actual evidence of a site with

17

serious environmental contamination.

18

many such sites in most industrial countries,

19

especially hazardous waste that's not properly

20

contained.

21

evidence about these things and these are types of

22

cases which require very detailed investigation and

23

remediation and so on.

There are

This is -- you know, you have plenty of

24

Or you might say a stigmatized

25

place is a neighbourhood or city with high crime
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1

rates and many abandoned homes, long-term poverty,

2

declining property values.

3

Detroit.

And you can think of

Although it's quite interesting,

4
5

you have to be very careful because you're saying

6

are these trends?

7

within recent memory, a city like New York is said

8

to be a terrible place because of high crime rates.

9

That's gone.

10

And trends can change.

One

Certain types of responses to that

solved the problem.
So you have to be careful saying,

11
12

are you talking about something that's unnatural?

13

Remember, we used that word in the sense that

14

that's permanent; it'll never go away.

15

not likely to be sensibly applied to this type of

16

stigma.

No, it's

Or you think of -- and again, I'm

17
18

-- all of these things are in the literature -- a

19

city or a town which has been gradually losing its

20

traditional business industrial base; so it’s not

21

contaminated, but it’s in a long-term decline

22

because economics change and sometimes people talk

23

in the literature about stigma applied to this.
Well, is that -- does that make

24
25

sense?

I mean the problems that they have are very
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1

common problems.

2

respond to that and recover to shift their emphasis

3

of their economic activity because they would like

4

to reinvent themselves to keep their young people

5

in place and so on.

6

and Canada about these long-term declines and so on

7

and people try to come to terms with that.

So you think of the Maritimes

But again, it would be very odd to

8
9

Some communities are able to

think of this as a permanent condition, as

10

something that you can’t do anything about.

But

11

the strong sense of stigma says, “You can’t do

12

anything about that.

13

that’s why I say these are weaker senses of stigma.

You are marked forever”.

14

Next slide, please.

15

So is place stigma permanent?

So

I

16

just wanted to give a few specific cases of that.

17

And so for a long time in Canada, we’ve read a lot

18

about the Sydney tar ponds.

19

form of environmental contamination.

20

bad.

21

Well, it’s been cleaned up, finally, at long last.

22

Took too long, but it’s been cleaned up.

23

now a park there.

24
25

That was a terrible
It really was

This was toxic waste on a very large level.

There’s

Cities with blighted
neighbourhoods can recover.

There are actually
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1

investors betting on Detroit’s recovery right now.

2

They’re putting their money in early.

3

changed; many small towns and regions can reinvent

4

themselves.

5

evidence, when you ask for evidence, shows that

6

stigmatizes a place where it happens is by no means

7

permanent.

New York has

And so in general my feeling is the

8

Next slide.

9

The problem is that people write

10

about stigmatization of place and this is true of

11

the large literature on Yucca Mountain in the 1990s

12

and this is very extensive.

13

for that entire decade.

14

It was a primary case

You’re not dealing with stigma,

15

you’re dealing with anticipated stigma; that is

16

people predicting, “Oh, this is going to happen if

17

you put this here”.

18

different, it seems, you’re not carrying stigma

19

you’re worried about it, and of course maybe you

20

should worry about it.

21

Okay and that’s a little

It remains to be seen.

I always thought that was a little

22

odd because it never -- I mean I know Las Vegas

23

because I like to go hiking in the deserts.

24

Vegas is only 50 miles from Death Valley.

25

to go hiking in the deserts of Arizona and Southern
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1

California, so I make a quick trip through Las

2

Vegas to get out of there as fast as I can.

3

You look around and it’s really

4

interesting, but it never is clear to me that the

5

type of people who do go there for tourism would be

6

bothered by -- if there was a well-engineered

7

facility deep under a mountain 80 miles away.

8

fact, I often thought the solution to that problem

9

was to put a casino on top of Yucca Mountain and

10

In

they would come.
But really you have to say to

11
12

yourself okay, you’re worried this might happen.

13

Okay, that’s legitimate.

14

to advance in terms of whether or not you really

15

think that this -- can you really say this is going

16

to happen?

17

Well, what are you going

People -- so my view is that,

18

since I’m a Proponent of the risk approach, ask the

19

questions about risk management.

20

facility like that which you think might have a

21

long-term impact on the viability of a nearby

22

community, ask tough questions about the safety

23

assessment and the safety case and keep asking them

24

until you’re satisfied.

25

the trade-off between risk and benefit for the

If there’s a

Ask tough questions about
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1

community -- and those questions have been asked

2

for this facility and for many others -- and keep

3

asking those until you get evidence-based answers

4

that you can trust.

5

Next slide, please.

6

So my argument for the way I

7

structured the paper was that in the last decade,

8

there’s been a huge sea change.

9

actually in the literature on stigma, especially

It’s reflected

10

when it applies to sites for nuclear activities and

11

nuclear waste repositories in particular.
So you have much less in the

12
13

literature of the last 10 years about

14

stigmatization of place that there’s really nothing

15

new to say about because it was always about

16

anticipation of stigma and much more about the sea

17

changes.
Say all right, if you’re worried

18
19

about the communities, worry about that directly.

20

Worry about the communities’ actual participation

21

in the activities that will lead up to the possible

22

approval of a project such as a waste repository,

23

because in the past the fact of the matter was

24

people weren’t asked.

25

on them.

Those choices were imposed
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All the hazardous waste facilities

1
2

that later created problems, there were -- there

3

was no willing host community there.

4

was dumped there without people’s consent and they

5

later had the problems to clean up.

That stuff

6

In my view, advance to the point

7

where you can talk about consent changes the whole

8

stigma discussion partly because you can have that

9

discussion before the project happens.

You can ask

10

about whether or not the impacts on the community

11

will be acceptable in relation to safety and other

12

indicators of community well-being that are

13

important to people.

14

You can pose those questions and

15

with an evidence-based approach, you can actually

16

say, “Well, what could I do before this ever

17

happens to put my mind at ease about those things”.

18

So that is the change that these questions can now

19

be asked where in the past, they couldn’t be asked.
And you have a wide variety of

20
21

answers.

22

complete study of this -- communities are asked

23

about these things and in some cases they say no.

24
25

As the paper shows -- and it’s not a

A long time ago, now, the Japanese
asked all of their municipalities whether they

INTERNATIONAL REPORTING INC.

127

1

would like to host a repository.

They didn’t get a

2

single positive answer, so they’re sort of stuck.
South Korea did a process for

3
4

community referenda on the location of a waste

5

repository because they have a large nuclear

6

industry and they need a waste repository and most

7

communities said, “No, thanks, not interested”, but

8

one said yes, and it’s proceeding.
Sweden did this kind of process

9
10

and a number of communities said, “No, not

11

interested”; it stopped right there, and two said

12

yes and it’s going ahead there.

13

also you have a willing host community.

And in Finland

I think this changes the whole

14
15

nature of the discussion.

16

no upfront.

17

process does for the high level waste, “Well,

18

maybe, tell me more”.

19

It allows people to say

It allows people to say, as Canadian

And the -- there the safeguard is

20

-- and Canada has learned a lot from Sweden and

21

Finland and I’m talking about NWMO and the high

22

level waste process where -- because I mention that

23

because there the process has been laid out so very

24

clearly in advance in documents in written form

25

namely, “Well, this is how we’ll proceed; step one,

INTERNATIONAL REPORTING INC.

128

1

we’ll do this”.

And the first whole series of

2

stages allow a very easy opt out.

3

a little bit and now I’m no longer interested”.

4

Okay, fine.

5

step and some people will say yes and then you can

6

go on.

“Well, I learned

And then you want to go to the next

I mean obviously they’re only at

7
8

the first step, the preliminary expression of

9

interest, but they retain complete autonomy in that

10

process at any time and will do so a long time down

11

the road.
I think this has changed

12
13

everything, so one -- as the communities -- as this

14

community now proceeds down the road and

15

participates in the discussion about the project,

16

all these questions can be asked.

17

view, from the view -- from the -- looking at the

18

literature, this change is noticeable and

19

meaningful and I think very important.
Next slide.

20
21

And so in my

I think I’m pretty

much done.

22

I am done.

23

So I -- as I said, I was asked to

24

look at the literature, I did that.

I’m aware now

25

that there are other discussions of stigma in the
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1

submissions to this -- to these hearings.

2

wasn’t asked to comment on those.

3

some comments on those if there were questions

4

along those lines.

6
7

I would have

THE CHAIRPERSON:

5

I

Thank you, Dr.

Leiss.
We’ll proceed directly to some

8

questions from the Panel and then as quickly as

9

possible to some questions from participants before

10

you have to leave.

11

--- QUESTIONS BY THE PANEL:

12

MEMBER MUECKE:

Dr. Leiss, in your

13

submission you emphasize the importance of a

14

willing and informed host community for the siting

15

of a nuclear waste project.

16

Could you elaborate for the Panel,

17

in particular, how much of the information should

18

originate from the Proponent versus an independent

19

-- versus independent sources?

20

DR. LEISS:

Yes, I think that is a

21

very important question because for all of these

22

facilities the information is -- most of the

23

information is highly technical in nature.

24

geological; it’s engineering design and hardest of

25

all is risk assessment, and we’ve heard some of
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1

that discussion.

That’s what I’m very familiar

2

with and the fact that a risk assessment inevitably

3

carries uncertainties.

4

So it is incumbent upon project

5

proponents to come forward with both -- with two

6

fundamental statements, the EIS, the Environmental

7

Impact Statement, and the safety case.

8

have to do this for any hazardous waste facility

9

and that includes nuclear facilities, and that will

10

You would

be highly technical information.
The issue of trust is fundamental

11
12

here.

13

And I should say also it’s not just geological

14

engineering information, the kind of information

15

that’s in the almost 500-page study that’s

16

submitted on socio-economic and environmental, the

17

technical support document.

18

information too.

19

assess critically.

20

It becomes really, very, very important.

That’s expert

A lot of that is difficult to

You have to have a process by

21

which interested parties can assure themselves that

22

that information is trustworthy.

23

which can be provided under the formal procedures,

24

intervenor funding, funding for studies.

25

what you would need is independent peer review.

This is something
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1

You don’t -- normally you don’t need additional

2

studies because it would be surprising if the

3

proponents avoided discussing any serious issue.

4

That would be too easy to find them out on.
Normally you need peer review to

5
6

say, “Well, had they really looked at the whole

7

story, had they looked at all of the relevant --

8

including the recent literature, had they looked at

9

all the risk issues,” and so on, and so on.
Maybe also that’s part of a

10
11

panel’s role to do that type of assessment, but

12

because the information is highly technical, once

13

you involve communities, the procedures for

14

satisfying the community that the information base

15

is reliable is probably the most fundamental thing

16

of all in these procedures.

17

MEMBER MUECKE:

18

this up by asking, are there any metrics to judge

19

the level of understanding of an informed public?
DR. LEISS:

20

Could I follow

I think the move to

21

willing host communities is interesting for many

22

reasons, and one of them is because it gives both

23

sides; that is, the Proponent and the community, a

24

very large incentive to get it right as they

25

proceed.
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This is not true of where you

1
2

don’t have to ask anybody’s permission.

3

try to get it through as quickly, as easily, as

4

possible.

5

to be forthright and transparent and to be sure

6

that the communities’ views are being accurately

7

reflected in the feedback that they are getting,

8

because you’re going down a road which becomes very

9

expensive, and if you go too far down that road and

10
11

You just

It gives the Proponent a large incentive

have to back up, it can be catastrophic.
That’s happened, by the way, a

12

number of times, including an oil controversy most

13

people have forgotten about in Ontario in the

14

1980s, where they wanted to start a new hazardous

15

waste facility in Southwestern Ontario.

16

a long way down the road before that was cancelled.

17

People hopefully have learned from that.

They went

18

On the other side, it gives the

19

willing host community a very strong incentive to

20

be very sure, when they come forward, that they

21

have some initial basis and that they keep that

22

basis of support as information is gathered.

23

So I think that it’s incumbent

24

upon both the community, whatever the process there

25

is for signalling community consent, and that can
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1

vary.

There are legal aspects to that, political

2

aspects.

3

strong incentive for the community to get this

4

right because you can even foresee where the

5

process is elaborated, as NWMO has, into a long

6

series of stages.

7

have to start signing.

8

close to the end, financial penalties if you change

9

your mind.

Whatever that process is, there’s a

At some point you’re going to
And you may even have, very

That would make sense to me, actually,

10

if you’ve gotten all that information and all of a

11

sudden things have fallen apart.

12

So with those incentives, I think

13

both the Proponent and the community have to have a

14

very clear vision as to how this evolves stage by

15

stage and that both are clear that it’s on track as

16

they’re in line with their expectations for each

17

stage of the process.
And if they’re not clear about

18
19

that, they better repair that very quickly.

20

MEMBER MUECKE:

Thanks very much.

21

One more question.

The Panel has

22

heard from the Proponent that initially divisive

23

issues concerning siting of waste sites in a

24

community can actually lead to future higher

25

cohesion.
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Are you aware of this phenomenon

1
2

in the nuclear waste siting histories?

3

what are the ingredients of the process that led to

4

such positive end results?
DR. LEISS:

5

And if so,

It doesn’t ring a real

6

bell to me that the level of division would lead to

7

higher cohesion.

8

happening because early division would maybe get

9

out issues that are then addressed and then

I mean, I can imagine that

10

addressed satisfactorily so that in later stages

11

people say “Well, I was worried about that in the

12

beginning; now I’m not.”

13

hypothetically.

14

where information is highly technical, that you

15

might get that response, but I know of no evidence

16

on that issue.

17
18

I can see that happening

It makes sense to me, especially

MEMBER MUECKE:

One last one

there, if you don’t mind?

19

DR. LEISS:

20

MEMBER MUECKE:

21

is provided with several choices for dealing with

22

nuclear waste by the waste generator, how important

23

do you consider an independent risk assessment for

24

an informed decision?

25

DR. LEISS:

Okay.
When a community

I would say that the
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1

risk assessment applies to the safety case

2

primarily.

3

if you say I’m comfortable with the safety case

4

since there’s never any zero risk, ever, to say I’m

5

comfortable with the safety case means that they

6

really have demonstrated to me that the risk is

7

acceptable.

8

terms.

That is because in layperson’s terms,

That’s what it means in layperson’s

So for me, certainly for a nuclear

9
10

waste facility, everything turns on the safety

11

case, partly because of the long-term issues, the

12

long-term management issues.
And therefore -- and the safety

13
14

case, for me, rests on the risk assessment which

15

leads to the conclusion of acceptable risk if it’s

16

-- if it does lead to that conclusion.

17

it seems to me that that’s the area in which you

18

would be most interested in having an independent

19

peer review of the risk assessment.
MEMBER MUECKE:

20

Therefore,

And the context in

21

which I -- I should have provided a little bit more

22

context.

23

DR. LEISS:

24

MEMBER MUECKE:

25

Okay.
Is if the

community is given the choice between an
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1

underground deep depository and let’s say keeping

2

it aboveground?

3

DR. LEISS:

4

because I was part of the technical assessment

5

group for the NWMO way back in -- God, was it 2004

6

now -- the assessment team report which you can

7

still get on 150 pages.
I was happy to be a part of that.

8
9

I’m familiar with that

I was part of a dozen members of that, some of

10

whom, like me, were independent.

Because I think

11

no other country had ever before done a comparative

12

risk assessment in which they evaluated multiple

13

options at the same time.

14

doing one case at a time.

Everybody was always

15

And so we insisted on this method

16

by which we reduced the number of plausible methods

17

to three.

18

high level waste, but I know the method because of

19

that -- deep underground storage, surface storage

20

in a centralized facility.

21

brought together but left on the surface.

22

thirdly, leave it where it is, which in Ontario

23

means at the sites, on the surface, at Pickering,

24

Darlington and Bruce.

25

Deep underground storage -- this is for

That is all the waste

We did comparative risk
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1

assessments.

In other words, we tried to evaluate

2

those three management options against a set of

3

criteria which included things like cost but also

4

all the environmental criteria and the terrorism

5

risk aspect.
There were actually eight major

6
7

criteria so we had a matrix.

It was a complex

8

decision matrix.

9

need to help you resolve and all the members of the

Actually there is software you

10

group gave an opinion on each of the decisions so

11

you get a very complicated matrix and the software

12

helps you get the bottom line.
So the outcome of that which was a

13
14

recommendation from NWMO to the federal minister

15

that the Deep Geologic Repository was the preferred

16

site was accepted after a long period of study.
That’s the only place I know where

17
18

the different management options, including on

19

surface and below surface, were considered side by

20

side.

21

THE CHAIRPERSON:

22

MEMBER ARCHIBALD:

Dr. Archibald?
Dr. Leiss, in

23

your written summary, you had written that a

24

community’s right to withdraw its initial

25

willingness to participate extends well into the
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1

first series of steps in the planning process up to

2

the point where a go/no go decision is required.

3

Would you believe that a go/no go

4

point can be reached and that sufficient steps for

5

facility planning have taken place such that a

6

decision for the community could be fairly

7

established?
DR. LEISS:

8

Well, in a sense, we

9

have to believe it because at least communities in

10

two countries, Sweden and Finland, have gone that

11

far.

12

a stage in a long process that started way back

13

with the initial expressions of interest of

14

communities, many of whom in Sweden said no.

They have gone past the go/no go and that was

And leading to -- and it’s, in a

15
16

sense you might say, it’s no coincidence that all

17

three, because Sweden has a double community

18

commitment, Finland has a single.

19

communities that are familiar with nuclear

20

facilities.

All three are

That doesn’t surprise me one bit.
I don’t think it’s a necessary

21
22

condition, but it’s interesting that it went that

23

way.

24
25

So they’ve been through that process.
Canada, I think, NWMO which is

what I know best, was very influenced by what was
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1

happening in Sweden and Finland during the period

2

between 2004 and 2010, when the first sketch of

3

their process for selecting a willing host

4

community came out.

I think was 2010 from NWMO.

Very familiar with what was

5
6

happening in Sweden and Finland, so that’s why --

7

and I have given all the URLs in my paper because

8

I’m very familiar with that.
That’s why the NWMO process for a

9
10

high level site is a carefully staged set of many

11

stages in community involvement before you get

12

toward the end.
And I believe, my personal belief

13
14

is, because that’s been articulated so well in

15

advance and communities can study that -- they have

16

studied that, many of them have accepted that, that

17

I really think -- I would be surprised if there

18

were any surprises down the road because it’s been

19

carefully thought out and there are many, many

20

points at which you can say -- at the early stages

21

where you -- “No, I want to stop.

22

go further”.

23

I don’t want to

And can also happen in reverse

24

because NWMO has to characterize geologically all

25

of the willing host communities.

Some of them will
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1

probably not qualify or rank as highly as others.

2

So there’s a double decision process.
But the community has a number of

3
4

points at which it can opt out before you start

5

getting serious about this.
Now, I say that, I know it’s high

6
7

level waste, but it’s the only -- actually, the

8

only process I know in the world -- and I’ve looked

9

around a lot for this because I was involved for a

10

long time on that -- in which anybody has laid out

11

in advance that careful a road map.

12

other country that’s done that.
MEMBER ARCHIBALD:

13

I know of no

And in

14

addition to the community willingness, this go/no

15

go point, must also one of the aspects for decision

16

making be based upon the highest possible technical

17

competence of a proposal?

18

would the host willingness be a primary?

Is that a primary or

DR. LEISS:

19

I think that would

20

come first.

21

call -- it’s the safety case, which includes

22

characterization of the site.

23

In terms of -- that is the -- well I

When we look at the historical

24

background, we find what I describe namely that in

25

the past over a very long period of time, these
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1

type of facilities were imposed on communities

2

without their consent, often with expensive and

3

tragic results.
That’s why I think the change is

4
5

so important.

I think actually the record shows

6

that in Canada, for nuclear waste facilities, you

7

already have 30 years of work or more on a safety

8

case.

It goes way back.
You already had a safety case at

9
10

the time of the Seaborn Panel in the late 1990s

11

which imploded, and for actually for good reason.

12

I think Blair Seaborn did a marvellous job on that.
What Seaborn did was -- the direct

13
14

result of that was the creation of NWMO in a very,

15

very different robust process.
But you already had a safety case

16
17

there.

I mean, the predecessors to OPG have been

18

working on that already for 20 years by 1996.
So historically, in fact, it does

19
20

come first.

And I don’t think you would approach a

21

community if you didn’t have a safety case in hand.

22

Therefore, I think that’s where you start and the

23

second is, because this is -- the safety case is

24

very difficult, technically challenging, very

25

complex.
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1

And then you get to the second

2

stage, you can say okay, community engagement is

3

the way I’m going to go, but then, you know the

4

process -- we’ve discussed this about translating

5

that information into publicly understandable

6

terms, especially the risk assessment and getting

7

people to trust your safety case is no mean

8

challenge.
So that’s as big a challenge

9
10

actually as making the safety case in the first

11

place.

12

that business.

13
14
15

If you don’t know that, you shouldn’t be in

MEMBER ARCHIBALD:

Thank you very

THE CHAIRPERSON:

Dr. Leiss, given

much.

16

the potential connection between stigma and a

17

belief that the DGR is marked by what you would

18

term excessive risk, as well as what the Panel has

19

heard as the first time ever tried type risk, and

20

these views are held by many of the intervenors

21

that have presented to this Panel so far.

22

What is the likelihood that there

23

will be a stigma of place due to the DGR relative

24

to the fact that it’s viewed as excessive or novel

25

and how could this be mitigated?
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DR. LEISS:

1

Well, I sometimes when

2

I’m thinking foolishly regard myself as a prophet.

3

I’m a great fan of Gandalf in Lord of the Rings,

4

the White Wizard.
But this is plagued, the

5
6

literature on stigma and its application to citing

7

issues for a long time, namely that, well, how can

8

you tell?

9

happen?

10

How can you predict what’s going to

I’m especially -- as I said I’ve

11

read some more submissions since I completed the

12

paper and I’m especially sensitive to the views of

13

the Aboriginal peoples.

14

submission from Saugeen Ojibway Nation, the section

15

of their submission on stigma, because in fact,

16

Aboriginal peoples have borne stigma in North

17

America for many, many years.

18

And I’ve read the

I mean, it’s not as bad as it used

19

to be; it used to be horrible.

20

of those earlier periods.

21

I grew up in some

I remember that.

So I take that very seriously.

22

But I ask myself, does it help the case?

23

read the most elaborate presentation, which is in

24

fact the SON submission because I think it’s very

25

competent in its later sections, well researched
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1

and so on, when it deals with risk because that’s

2

evidence-based discussion.

I can handle that.

But in risk, we ask -- we don’t

3
4

say, well, is this going to happen?

Well, maybe it

5

will, maybe not.

6

probability or the likelihood that it will happen?

7

And because we’ve done this so much, we have very

8

robust methodologies.

9

problem in risk terms, I can answer it.

We ask ourselves what’s the

If you put me to this

Well, I can tell you the kind of

10
11

people who can estimate probabilities of harm

12

because we do this all the time for everything in

13

our society.

14

now because it didn’t used to be safe?

15

tell you, yeah, it’s safer than it’s ever been

16

because we’re really good at estimating risk and

17

taking mitigating measures.

We do this for -- well, is blood safe
Well I can

If you put it in those terms, I

18
19

can help you.

I can estimate the likelihood and I

20

can estimate the consequences.

21

how bad it will be because that’s what risk

22

management people do.

If it does happen,

How likely is it to happen and if

23
24

it happens, how bad will it be?

25

strong methods.

And there are

So when -- in the later part of
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1

the SON submission, when you get into that type of

2

discussion, yeah, those are good questions.

3

are questions that can be answered.

4

to trust the answers.

5

at least I got evidence.

Those

Now you have

Okay, you get into that, but

When I read this stigma section,

6
7

I'm saying, well, maybe it'll happen maybe it

8

won't, but how am I going to know?

9

there, all I can say is no.

And if I stop

We can't do this,

10

because that might happen, and there will be bad

11

things.
That's why I'm happy with stigma

12
13

discussions, and much more happier with the later

14

discussion in that same submission which deals with

15

issues on which we can have some evidence.

16

So, because I've read the -– more

17

of the material that's been submitted to you in the

18

interim after I wrote my -– after I wrote my

19

initial paper, I have a suggestion for those who

20

are worried about stigma.

21

actually help.

22

I think this would

Because what I read in the

23

Kincardine peer review of the –- was done by Hardy

24

Stevenson Associations -– a peer review of the TSD

25

-- the big 500-page socio-economic.
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I read –- I read an interesting

1
2

statement:

3

process, the following commitment was made by the

4

project Proponent –- and this is a quotation:

5

is prepared to address and monitor stigma effects”.

6

I say, good.

7

That as a result of the peer review

Okay.

That can be used.

“OPG

If

8

you're –- if you're worried about stigma, this is

9

what you would do.

10

And this is my suggestion, that if

11

you worry about stigma, anybody, SON or anybody

12

else, this commitment has been made, prepared to

13

address and monitor stigma effects.

14

to operationalize it.

15

Well, actually I know how you can do it.

Now, we have

How would you do that?

16

My suggestion is that anybody

17

who's worried about stigma, should approach OPG

18

with a request to discuss and negotiate an

19

operational strategy for monitoring potential

20

stigma effects with respect to this project.

21
22
23

Because it said –- they have said
they are willing to do this.
But we need to operationalize it.

24

And the reason you need to do it early is very

25

simple, because to monitor the effect you need a
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1

baseline, and you need baseline data.
The simplest example -- because

2
3

it's also mentioned separately -- is property value

4

protection.
This is –- sometimes comes up; it

5
6

has been discussed briefly in the TSD document.

7

It's also been a commitment –- separate commitment

8

of OPG that there will be such a plan.

9

Well, that's part of –- that's

10

part –- I would roll that into the larger stigma

11

discussion, because that's one of the possible

12

adverse impacts.

But there are others.
With respect to the submission

13
14

you've had from the farmers, I would say, well,

15

prices for agricultural products is a possible -–

16

they have said -- is a possible stigma effect.

17

Okay.

18

tourism, SON, okay, put it in.

19

Put that in to the program; revenues from

But, if you are going to monitor -

20

- address and monitor stigma effects for any impact

21

that you think is relevant to your concerns that

22

make up stigma -- I mentioned three, property

23

values, as -- could be residential property values,

24

agricultural prices, and revenues from tourism.

25

You need baseline data. That is you need it –- data
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1

now, but not one year data, you need trend data.
What –- what’s the trend?

2
3

say the last decade.

4

to negotiate timelines for this.

Just –- you -– but you have

Let's pick a number.

5

Let's

Let's say

6

you get trend date for the last 10 years, for

7

tourism revenues, residential property values in

8

the relevant area -– because you have to define the

9

area -– and agricultural prices.

And then what

10

stigma impacts do is say, okay, then we'll choose a

11

comparable indicator.

12

trend data for the same datasets and we'll monitor

13

that going forward.

It could be Ontario-wide

14

If it turns out that –- because

15

you have to agree on what effect you are going to

16

measure when you say I'm going to measure stigma

17

effects –- so I've given you three.

18

others, but that's part of the negotiation.

19

got to agree on that, okay, these are the relevant

20

indicators.

21

There could be
You

Then you've got to collect

22

baseline data, that's sort of uncontaminated,

23

that's before you've had controversy so it gives

24

you objective baseline data unrelated to the

25

project proposal, and then you monitor going
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1

forward.
So, agree on the effects, agree on

2
3

the data that would demonstrate effects or not.

4

And thirdly -- so three points –- let's say third

5

point is, that there's no point in doing this

6

unless you have a plan –- and that would be

7

incumbent on OPG -– that if you find in the future,

8

stigma effects, what are you going to do?
Because don't bother collecting

9
10

the data and doing all this work if you going to

11

say –- if you're just going to have a cry session

12

over it.
What are you going to do to

13
14

mitigate them?

There's always things you can do

15

for mitigation.

The easiest thing is property

16

value protection.

17

commitment that the property values in the region

18

under question, if they decline more than the

19

relevant average elsewhere there will be

20

compensation.

You can actually provide a

21

That's well known in the

22

literature –- you can -- that’s been well

23

described.

24

You can provide property value compensation, if you

25

can prove effects from a specific cause but to do

That's an example of what you can do.
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1

that you need a procedure.

2

suggestion.

3

So that's my

It's in fact -– it's the only way

4

in which -– in my mind, the stigma discussion can

5

have any useful outcome from these proceedings, is

6

to develop something like this, because you already

7

have the commitment.

8
9

If you didn't have that I wouldn't
be able to say that.

You've got it so use it.

But

10

you've got to negotiate the terms of this type of

11

commitment, and I think you should start now.

12

THE CHAIRPERSON:

Thank you.

13

Second question is, you have

14

emphasized the importance of the willing host

15

community, and you referred us to an article, which

16

was a link in your submission to an OECD report,

17

which we reviewed with interest.

18

And in there, the authors

19

discussed the phenomenon of the boundary extensions

20

of the definition of a willing host community.

21

In other words, it may start of as

22

a particular spatial or political boundary, and

23

then depending on the social and political forces

24

you start getting changes in the boundary.

25

This Panel has certainly received
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1

ample evidence about that.

And in fact, we've even

2

had a suggestion that the boundary is the entire

3

Great Lakes Basin.
So in –- what advice might you be

4
5

able to offer, or evidence to the Panel regarding

6

settling on the boundary of a willing host

7

community?
DR. LEISS:

8
9

You don't ask easy

questions.

10

(LAUGHTER/RIRES)

11

DR. LEISS:

It would, in part --

12

one will have to be flexible going forward because

13

this is new territory.
We have -- so far as I know –-

14
15

before the NWMO process which has advanced to the

16

point where you have 10 potential hosts.
You don't have –- you basically

17
18

have Swan Hills, Alberta which is a useful –- not

19

nuclear but it is hazardous waste and people should

20

look at that because it's really the only good

21

example.

22

It was a long time in the planning

23

and it's been in operation a long time, and from

24

what we can tell, successfully.

25

have the other examples Sweden and Finland going

And of course you
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1

forward.
But still, we're at –- we're at an

2
3

early stage, and I would say, project Proponent

4

here since people are actually engaged and it'll

5

have to happen with the NWMO process with the other

6

communities for high level wastes.
Project Proponent and community

7
8

should get on that discussion very early.

I think

9

they're -– especially because we have a process in

10

which we are using third parties.

NWMO is a third

11

party, in a sense, OPG's a third party, but it's a

12

Crown corporation and operates with certain

13

independence but really in Canada, governments

14

stand behind that.
Not much happens with those

15
16

entities even though they're independent without

17

government needing to approve.

18

matters, that's both levels of senior government,

19

province and federal.

And nuclear

20

They've got to get involved early

21

on because this is not something that –- let's say

22

you have a really willing host community.

23

something a community can handle or actually solve

24

by itself.

25

not government, who's going to solve it?

So who's going to solve it?
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Somebody has to take the

1
2

initiative to say, this is the relevant boundary

3

for the host.

4

well, if we're moving stuff, these are the

5

transportation corridors outside the boundary.

And then they also have to say,

Remember -- if people have long

6
7

enough memories –- that's what -- it was the

8

transportation corridors that torpedoed the

9

original plan for Port Hope.

Remember when Brian

10

Mulroney promised that he'd move all of that stuff

11

there?
That was sabotaged by the

12
13

communities along the roadways where that waste was

14

going to move.

15

eighties.

It was way back in the early

You’ve got to solve that if you’re

16
17

going to move it from outside the boundary, so

18

that’ll be something for the high level waste

19

repository.

20

and it will be an issue in this case, because

21

you’re going to be moving two-thirds of it,

22

roughly, from Pickering and Darlington.

23

You’re going to be moving all of it

Somebody’s got to -- somebody

24

outside the community and outside the project

25

Proponent has to define the relevant boundary of
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1

the host community.

In a sense, you have to do

2

that for the stigma effects study because you have

3

to say it’s within this set of geographical

4

boundaries that I’m going to look for stigma

5

effects and not -- you know, not in Ottawa or

6

Peterborough, I’m going to look wherever.

7

And secondly, you have to define

8

the issues in the transportation corridors that is

9

outside the host boundary and you ought to do that

10

sooner rather than later.

It’s -- but it’s not

11

something that the willing host community can do;

12

beyond their power.

13

THE CHAIRPERSON:

Thank you.

14

Next question, you emphasized in

15

your written submission the need for abundant and

16

credible information.

17

about the credibility of the information, in

18

particular, concerns about so-called “interpretive

19

bias” and another phrase that was brought to our

20

attention, “cognitive capture”, leading to a lack

21

of trust in information provided by the OPG as well

22

as the CNSC.

23

The Panel has heard a lot

The Panel’s question to you, Dr.

24

Leiss is in your experience, particularly in risk

25

communication, what are the key determinants of
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1

credibility?
DR. LEISS:

2

I think in -- when --

3

let’s focus on risk because that’s the bottom line

4

for the safety case and the safety case is, in my

5

mind, fundamental to a community’s decision that

6

they would like to be a host.
The safety case is very, very

7
8

difficult.

9

you have to -- and the first instance say has the -

10

- have the relevant parties, in which case would be

11

the Proponent and the regulators, made a reasonable

12

effort to make the information accessible and

13

understandable at a level of the ordinary citizen.

14

This -- so you say, “Well, that’s impossible”; it’s

15

not impossible, it’s just hard work and it takes a

16

lot of money and effort.

17

The information is highly technical, so

I used to go around saying before

18

I got discouraged and gave up that project

19

Proponents should spend as much money on risk

20

communication as they do on risk assessment. I mean

21

I gave up, never got anywhere with that argument,

22

but I still believe it.

23

And then it comes to the crunch

24

where you have credibility and you have a highly

25

technical information base and you say to people,
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1

“Trust us”.

Well, they don’t anymore.
This has changed a lot over time,

2
3

so you need some other solution and I’ve written

4

about this.

5

controversies and it’s basically the same.

I’ve examined this in many risk

It’s have you made a significant

6
7

effort to explain yourselves in understandable

8

terms and where there are legitimate issues of

9

expert interpretation -- and that’s easy in risk

10

assessment because uncertainties are very high, so

11

you can dispute about uncertainties until the cows

12

come home.

13

sufficient level of independent judgement on the

14

really key point -- you don’t need to do

15

everything, on the really key points that people

16

have additional basis for trust.

17

Have you made an effort to get a

When you have done that and you

18

say, “Well, I’ll take that” as the Proponent and as

19

the regulator that’s my responsibility to create

20

that trust in the information we provide when I

21

think it’s your obligation.

22

it, it remains to be done.

23

If you haven’t done

But how else are you going to be a

24

believable source, a credible source, unless you’ve

25

made the effort because you can’t just put the EIS
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1

and the safety case on a pile of documents on the

2

table and say, “Here it is, trust us”.

3

to be some other process.

There has

You, yourselves, as a Panel, may

4
5

be doing some of that.

6

in your Terms of Reference which is to make an

7

independent judgement say on the safety case.
But there are solutions to these

8
9

I don’t know whether that’s

things.

Sometimes in countries like Canada, much

10

more so than the U.S., you will go to an

11

independent body of experts which are the national

12

academies -- and in the U.S. the National Academy

13

of Science does this every day of the week -- and

14

say, “Here’s a set of questions.

15

independent answer to them”.

Give me your

And I’ve spent a lot of time on

16
17

that and I’ve set up the Canadian process that the

18

Royal Society of Canada uses for that type of thing

19

and those are credible documents.

20

definition they are.

By -- almost by

So sometimes when it gets really

21
22

sticky and you have a variety of well-informed

23

technical positions, there are solutions to that

24

type of thing.

25

Now, it can’t be done overnight;
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1

although it doesn’t take forever, but you have to

2

ask yourselves, “Are there particular points on

3

which the public still has a plausible reason for

4

being uneasy”, and somebody has to make that

5

judgement.

6

It will be the Proponent and the

7

regulator together making that judgement, I think,

8

because the Proponent is the one that says, “Is

9

there something which if we go further down the

10

line and we haven’t addressed this it’s going to

11

cause this to blow up in our faces”.

12

And for my mind, if there is it

13

will be something about the fundamental safety case

14

or the fundamental issue about safety and

15

acceptable risk because in the end I think that

16

most people and most citizens in a country like

17

Canada have good judgement; they can tell whether

18

they’re being conned or not.

19

And if they get enough help from

20

the Proponent on the highly technical information

21

and the basis for the believability of that

22

information, I think they will buy it.

23

But someone has to make the

24

judgement that we have looked at this, we don’t

25

think that there are really any remaining hot
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1

buttons where people can legitimately say, “You

2

haven’t done a job on this and here’s some of the

3

reasons why”.
Now, in the end, you’ll never

4
5

satisfy everybody, but you should be able to say,

6

“I’ve taken the most serious questions about risk

7

and the acceptability of risk and I’ve answered

8

them”.

9

ahead -- go down the road with the community

If you can say that, I think you can go

10

further on and test out that willingness further

11

down the road.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

12

And it’s my

13

final question; you state that there is no need to

14

add stigma to the mix of expert assessment of risk

15

plus risk perception.

16

very good reasons for why you would do that.

17

then on the basis of that if one accepts this then

18

the Panel is assuming you are recommending a

19

process of risk-based decision making which is what

20

we’re hearing.

21

And we’ve certainly heard
So

What are the -- apart from the

22

risk communication which you’ve just explained to

23

us, apart from that, what are some other key

24

components of a truly effective and inclusive risk-

25

based decision-making process, specifically with
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1

respect to the proposed DGR?

2

DR. LEISS:

3

of the risk-based approach is that a detailed

4

method for arriving at a robust decision has been

5

the subject of intensive work, roughly starting in

6

the 1970s.

Well, the advantages

The first version where people

7
8

tried to work out a process -- and it relates to

9

credibility and trust and so on -- a process

10

because the risk information, it will always be

11

highly technical, was a U.S. report in 1983 from

12

the National Academy of Sciences and that

13

stimulated a lot of further work, including in

14

Canada, where Health Canada developed early on in

15

the 1980s -- and I was involved with them at the

16

time -- a Canadian version of this.
And if I showed it to you, it’s a

17
18

stage process.

19

want to arrive at a robust decision which is risk-

20

based, you do first this, then that, then that,

21

then that.

22

that order, you can’t do it.

23

It has 8 to 10 stages where if you

It’s very rigid.

Unless you do it in

You start with -- I’ll give you

24

just a few of the technical terms, the hazard

25

characterization, what’s the bad thing that can
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1

happen; then the exposure characterization.

2

if the bad thing is in the environment, who will

3

likely be affected by it because some of them are

4

very population specific.

5

Well

And then, okay, if we know those

6

two things we can then do a very formal analysis

7

about what’s the probability that this will happen,

8

and then consequences analysis, what’s the -- what

9

will be the bad things that will happen if the

10
11

event comes to pass.
So risk is a combination of

12

probably times consequence.

And you try to do this

13

-- you try to do this in advance.

14

risk estimate based -- if you have enough of that

15

early preliminary information.

16

to basically do it before you have the body count.

17

Give you one example, on the very

You can do a

The whole idea is

18

highest level, the inter-governmental plan on

19

climate change does a risk-based approach to the

20

question of future climate change with the idea

21

that if you look -- if you think that something

22

really bad is going to happen way down the road,

23

take some action now because, actually, if you wait

24

long enough, there will be nothing that you can do.

25

And so the problem now of talking
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1

about uncertainties and all the climate change

2

deniers and saying, “Well, even the people of good

3

will will say let’s wait and see”, actually, you

4

can work this out in the climate models.
If you wait long enough and you

5
6

keep putting emissions in the air, there will come

7

a time when you won’t be able to reverse it.

8

You’ll -- there’ll be other effects that you didn’t

9

intend, like release of methane from permafrost,

10

that will act as multipliers.
So you actually try, and that’s

11
12

what IPCC does, try to estimate in advance and say,

13

“You may not see the effects now, but if you wait

14

until you see all the effects, it’s eat, drink and

15

be merry because you won’t be able to change them”.

16

That’s what risk estimation tries to do.
And a lot -- there’s a lot of

17
18

modelling involved in this.

19

safety case, the risk assessment for deep

20

geological repository, they’re going to be

21

modelling the underground formations, modelling the

22

effects under a variety of your right scenarios,

23

your -- say, well, what if this happens, what will

24

the effects be.

25

So when they do the

If you keep going down that list
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1

because you’ve got that done and then you get in --

2

that’s the whole risk assessment thing.

3

a good idea of the level of risk, which is what you

4

get at the end of the safety case.

You’ve got

Well, this is it, folks.

5
6

Technically, these are the probabilities, these are

7

the consequences.

8

contamination.

9

radiation.

10

You’re going to get groundwater

You’re going to get release of

How likely is it given the fact that

you’re going to do this, this and this?
Then you say, okay, have I got an

11
12

idea?

Then you go into risk management.

Have I

13

got an idea what the public thinks about these type

14

of risks, the risk perception?
Have I got some idea of risk

15
16

benefit trade-offs?

17

to manage something, not to abolish it, but to keep

18

using it safely.

19

for.

20

Because you’re usually trying

That’s what we do risk management

All the chemicals that we have,

21

they’re all hazardous.

They’ll all kill you at

22

some level of exposure.

Every chemical we use.

23
24
25

The whole idea is to say, okay,
what’s the level that’s safe or acceptable.
And then, well, we got to talk to
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1

people about this, we got to understand people’s

2

perception of risk, communication of risk.

3

to understand what the trade-offs might be.

4

risk is -- and then we have to understand risk

5

mitigation.

We have
If the

If the risk looks to be a little

6
7

bit too high, what can we do to lower it?

8

you can.

9

more safety procedures.

You can always mitigate risk.

Because
Add some

In the blood system, they do that

10
11

all the time.

Canadian Blood Services, in my view,

12

is the best risk regulator in Canada because they

13

have the most high profile case.

14

there to be contaminated blood again.

15

spent a lot of time on that issue.

Nobody ever wants
And I’ve

You look at it -- you don’t try to

16
17

wait for the body count, say is this -- could this

18

happen.

19

it looks like a little too high on the probability

20

side.

21

risk, all in advance of something bad happening.

Well, we’ve put in these measures because

Let’s put in some more measures to lower the

You go through all that.

22

You then

23

say, okay, now I’m satisfied.

I’ve done all these

24

nine steps.

25

sell and now I’m going to try to sell it to the

I think I’ve got something that I can
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1

public.

And then, because things change, I’m going

2

to keep monitoring.
If you’re doing risk assessment of

3
4

lead, you would find out that and ask, well --

5

whether ingestion of lead is safe for infants, you

6

would find out, oh, 50 years, the answer kept

7

saying the current level is not safe.

8

been lower and lower and lower because there’s new

9

information.

It will have

So you keep monitoring.

10

And if

11

the information changes, you change the risk

12

assessment.
That’s the procedure at every step

13
14

of that way is evidence based.

15

is evidence based, which is why I think you can

16

have confidence.

17

confidence in the blood supply to say it’s never

18

been safer.

19

you the number.

20

blood in Canada contaminated by HIV is one in eight

21

million.

22

That’s 10 years of donations.

23

Every single step

As for example, I have enough

And I can tell you that -- even give
The risk of finding a unit of

Basically, that’s too low to worry about.

And you say, okay, I’m okay with

24

that because I know that the one in eight million

25

doesn’t mean that there’s ever going to be a case
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1

of one.

That’s the risk estimate as to

2

probability.
So that’s what you do.

3

That’s why

4

I believe risk-based decision making is an

5

advantage to everyone because at every step of the

6

way it’s evidence based.

7

There’s some way of figuring out

8

whether the choice is right or wrong at every step

9

of the way.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

10
11

Thank you very

much, Dr. Leiss.
We’ll try to address as many

12
13

questions from participants as possible before we

14

run out of time.

15

first on Mr. Monem.

16

--- QUESTIONS BY THE PUBLIC:

17

MR. MONEM:

18

So we would like to call on --

Alex Monem, for the

record.
Thank you, Madam Chair.

19

And for

20

the benefit of Dr. Leiss, I’m with the Saugeen

21

Ojibway Nations.

22

I’d like to have a free-ranging

23

conversation about these topics, but I’m going to

24

try to keep my questions few in number.

25

We’ve moved a little bit from a
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1

stigma discussion into risk-based decision making

2

discussion, and I appreciate that.

3

like to go back to stigma for a second.

But I would

I understood Dr. Leiss not to say

4
5

that stigma was irrelevant to decision making but,

6

rather, that it is a very difficult effect to

7

predict and the consequences of a stigma are

8

difficult to predict so better to move on to the

9

management of stigma effects.

10

So before I move on –--

11

DR. LEISS:

Yes, precisely.

12

MR. MONEM:

Okay. s I also

13

understood Dr. Leiss to suggest that -- or maybe to

14

infer that stigma -- potential stigma is difficult

15

to prevent and also -- it’s difficult to prevent

16

and, at some level, we should be considering

17

mitigation measures.

18

Have I got that right?

19

MS. MYLES:

20

Okay.

Sorry to interrupt

you, Alex.
Dr. Leiss, you have to -- it won’t

21
22

record on the transcript unless you do a full

23

answer, okay?

24
25

Thanks.
DR. LEISS:

Yes, that’s right.

I

did say that there is a way in which you could, if
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1

you design the process right, have a procedure for

2

mitigation of stigma.

3

MR. MONEM:

And that’s what I’d

4

like to talk about, the mitigation of stigma.
So in your presentation in your

5
6

report, you gave some examples of destigmatization,

7

if I could call that, Tylenol, apples, communities

8

reinventing themselves.

9

submissions and you’ll know that, for us around the

You’ve read our

10

commercial fisheries, it’s not feasible for SON to

11

reinvent themselves in that regard.
Do you have any suggestion what

12
13

other mitigation measures we could be looking at if

14

reinvention is not an option would be?
DR. LEISS:

15

Well, if -- you

16

mentioned the fisheries specifically.

17

looking at it from the risk point of view, there

18

are a number of different threats over time,

19

ecosystem threats to the fisheries.

20

climate change.

21

One of them is

There are other reasons why a

22

particular fishery might decline.

23

pollution reasons why it might decline.

24
25

I -- again,

There are

So we’re talking about challenges
to a way of life that I’ve -- I agree, one would
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1

make a strong effort to preserve to the extent

2

possible that you can overcome these challenges,

3

one of which might be the challenge represented by

4

this new facility.

5

climate change.

But there are others such as

And you might -- I can’t give you

6
7

mitigation measures on the spot.

I think it would

8

be very -- there’s not a lot of experience in that,

9

but there’s an opportunity now to do this and to

10

sit down with people who might have more experience

11

than I do and actually work this out.
You might -- I’m just speculating

12
13

off the top of my head.

If the wild fishery

14

declines -- let’s use a neutral reason.

15

climate change because climate change will affect

16

various fisheries.

17

this fishery.

18

it does.

19

to as the cause at a specific facility, but a

20

larger phenomenon.

Let’s say

I don’t know if it’ll affect

Let’s say for the sake of argument

And so it’s not something you can point

Okay, is there a possibility of

21
22

changing the fishery into a farm fishery, which we

23

do elsewhere in the world now?

24

possibility?

25

a different way.

Is that a

So that you can preserve a fishery in
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Well, that would be the kind of

1
2

question you would pose if you were faced with a

3

conundrum about -- I’ve got now an effect I’m not

4

happy with, which is a decline of my fishery.

5

some specific cause, you might ask the question is

6

there something I can do that would preserve the

7

essentials of that way of life in a different way.
So I would simply encourage that

8
9

For

type of thinking.

10

MR. MONEM:

Thank you.

11

In your suggestion in your

12

proposal to the Panel that people who are concerned

13

about potential stigma effects should make

14

themselves known and we should embark on a process

15

of identifying potential impacts, gathering

16

baseline data and developing mitigation strategies

17

-- I have two questions on this.
One, it strikes me from what

18
19

you’ve said that, at some level, there has to be an

20

acceptance of the impacts but a decision that the

21

trade-off, the risk benefit trade-off, is

22

acceptable.

23
24
25

Is that true?
DR. LEISS:

Which risk benefit

MR. MONEM:

The overall benefits

trade-off?
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1

of the project ---

2

DR. LEISS:

Overall, overall.

3

MR. MONEM:

--- versus the risk to

4

maybe one aspect you care about.
DR. LEISS:

5

Certainly that

6

judgment has to be made, either by the regulator, a

7

Panel, or both.

8

always make in a risk management decision making,

9

that benefits exceed risks in some measurable way.

That’s one of the judgments you

So someone has to make that

10
11

judgment.

The discussion about -- because of the

12

difficulty in operationalizing stigma effects, that

13

discussion, I think, has to be held separately.

14

It’s not necessarily the same discussion.
And what I would say is that,

15
16

quite frankly, at the time I wrote the paper I

17

hadn’t seen those -- I was delighted to find a

18

sentence about OPG’s commitment in there about

19

addressing and monitoring stigma effects.

20

this is a potential breakthrough.

21

territory.

22
23
24
25

To me,

It’s new

It’s a huge opportunity.

I hope

that it’s not passed up.
MR. MONEM:

Sorry; I’m going to

rush through two more questions.

I stated that
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1

last question badly.

2

If we are into the process of

3

monitoring stigma effects and we determine that

4

there is, in fact, a stigma effect that’s being

5

realized, we’re no longer in prevention mode.

6

We’re in sort of acceptance and mitigation mode.

7

DR. LEISS:

Yes.

8

MR. MONEM:

Is that correct?

9

DR. LEISS:

Yes.

10

MR. MONEM:

Okay.

So given that

11

the community is in that position, when should they

12

be given an opportunity to decide whether or not

13

they will accept those kinds of trade-offs or those

14

kinds of risks?

15

this as early as possible in the process?

And would you recommend that we do

16

DR. LEISS:

17

looking at the larger trade-offs, haven’t you

18

already made that decision?

23

Isn’t that what

the submission says?

21
22

You don’t like them.

Isn’t that true?

19
20

Well, if you’re

MR. MONEM:

Sorry; I missed the --

DR. LEISS:

I mean, isn’t the

-

24

submission that you’ve already made saying that you

25

do not find the trade-offs to be acceptable, the
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1

larger trade-offs?
MR. MONEM:

2

I don’t believe that

3

the submission said it that way.

4

submission said that we don’t understand what the

5

trade-offs are yet.
DR. LEISS:

6
7

I’ve read it that way.

8

clear, myself.

9

be clarified, then.

I think the

Okay.

Fair enough.

I thought it was pretty

But that’s okay.

Maybe that should

If you don’t think the trade-offs

10
11

are clear enough, then certainly someone should

12

make them clearer.

13

process.

14

That’s fundamental to this

THE CHAIRPERSON:

And Dr. Leiss, I

15

believe the question was and when in the process

16

should this discussion be taking place with respect

17

to -- and let’s make this very specific, the

18

potential for stigma, however difficult, that

19

discussion might be.

20

Monem is making is by the time we know there’s

21

stigma, it’s too late.

Because I think the point Mr.

22

DR. LEISS:

Well ---

23

THE CHAIRPERSON:

And it's really

24

difficult to make that trade-off decision in light

25

of what you’ve just told us, which is it’s hard to
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1

predict in the first place.

2

DR. LEISS:

No, no, no.

That’s

3

why I found the -- let me try to clarify that.
My view is that if this

4
5

opportunity represented by OPG’s commitment is

6

understood clearly now and people take up the

7

challenge, don’t -- I would say don’t let it just

8

sit there.

9

Now, I do -- I recognize that -- I

10

mention the property value protection was separated

11

out, although that’s really part of -- in my view,

12

part of the process of stigma.

13

OPG said that they would deal with a plan for this

14

once they got an operating licence.

15
16
17

Okay.

And I believe the

That somebody should say

whether or not that’s acceptable.
My view is that there is no

18

reason, in principle, for not entering that

19

discussion and negotiation now before the operating

20

licence is issued.

21

principle why that could not take place because

22

what you’re agreeing on is a process, and a process

23

can be designed now.

24
25

I can think of no obstacle in

In fact, for measuring stigma
effects, it’s very important to get that done as
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1

soon as possible so we can separate out the before

2

and after.

3

decent measure.

Otherwise, you’re not going to have a
So my view is do it now.

4

THE CHAIRPERSON:

5

Mr. Monem?

6

MR. MONEM:

7

Chair.

8

stop now.

Thank you.

Thank you, Madam

I have many, many more questions, but I’ll

THE CHAIRPERSON:

9

Very

10

unfortunately we only have time for about one more

11

question before Dr. Leiss has to leave.
The Panel will consider various

12
13

ways and means, Dr. Leiss, for us to be able to get

14

back in touch with you, maybe even by phone, either

15

now or like this week or when we reconvene toward

16

the end of the month.
DR. LEISS:

17

I am -- I do apologize

18

again.

It was because of the late switch of dates.

19

And certainly I’m at your disposal.

20

me even to come back toward the end of the month, I

21

might be able to do that.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

22
23

news, yes.

24

on you.

25

If you wanted

That’s welcome

And it was our end that changed things

DR. LEISS:

Yes.
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THE CHAIRPERSON:

1
2

And we certainly

understand that.

3

I think we all have been really

4

benefiting from this, so we will do our utmost to

5

be able to continue the discussion.

6

DR. LEISS:

Okay.

7

THE CHAIRPERSON:

And thank you

8

very much, and I think we should let you get on

9

your way.

10

DR. LEISS:

11

THE CHAIRPERSON:

12

us can take a meal break and reconvene at 2:00 p.m.

13

--- Upon recessing at 12:57 p.m./

14
15

Okay.

L’audience est suspendue à 12h57
--- Upon resuming at 2:01 p.m./

16

L’audience est reprise à 14h01

17

THE CHAIRPERSON:

18
19

And the rest of

Good afternoon.

Welcome back, everyone.
Before we proceed with our next

20

30-minute oral intervention, we did have some

21

questions left over from this morning because we

22

had to move directly to Dr. Leiss’ presentation.

23

So we will deal with the remaining questions from

24

participants on the presentations by the Inverhuron

25

Committee and Mr. Bourgeois, now.
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So the first question would be

1
2

from Mr. Mann.

3

--- QUESTIONS BY THE PUBLIC:

(Continued)

4

MR. MANN:

5

I'm seeking leave to ask a

6

Thank you, Dr. Swanson.

question to OPG.
I'm shocked and appalled about the

7
8

treatment that Eugene Bourgeois has received over

9

the past 30 years from OPG, Ontario Hydro that went

10

unchallenged here today.
Before OPG can even start to earn

11
12

our community's trust that it says is very -- so

13

very important, OPG must repair the breach of trust

14

with Mr. Bourgeois over the past 30 years.

15

can't trust OPG to admit when OPG fails or is

16

wrong, OPG will never earn our trust related to

17

anything else.

If we

My question, Dr. Swanson, is will

18
19

OPG acknowledge how OPG has failed and harmed

20

Mr. Bourgeois and his family, and what will OPG do

21

to try to repair the damage OPG has caused

22

Mr. Bourgeois and his family, most of which is

23

irreparable?

24

THE CHAIRPERSON:

Mr. Mann, this

25

is not the proceeding for that kind of a question.
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1

We did hear from OPG this morning in direct answer

2

to my question about how to proceed in -- first of

3

all, how they proceeded in the past and how they

4

intend to proceed in the future when things like

5

Mr. Bourgeois' -- or issues like Mr. Bourgeois has

6

raised this morning come up.

7

definitely not the place for that type of question.
I would ask Ms. Swami, perhaps, to

8
9

reiterate the commitment going forward to dealing

10

with these sorts of matters.

11

MS. SWAMI:

12
13

But this is

Laurie Swami, for the

record.
We talked this morning and in

14

previous days about establishing a Community

15

Advisory Committee where issues and concerns could

16

be raised so that they could be discussed and

17

resolved to the extent possible.

18

I guess I would also add I'm not

19

sure I was complete this morning, you asked me what

20

we would also do going forward, and I’d give an

21

example of one particular element of our

22

communication and consultation program that we

23

haven't discussed before.

24
25

But in fact when Mr. Bourgeois
raised concerns about the geoscience for this
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1

project, Mr. Jensen actually attended at his home

2

to provide him a briefing so that he could be

3

apprised of what the project was all about.

4

the kind of thing that we'd be doing in future.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

5
6

Thank you,

Ms. Swami.
Mr. Mann, I'd like to pursue a

7
8

That's

little bit further with Mr. Bourgeois first.
So Mr. Bourgeois, you heard me ask

9
10

this morning about person-to-person contact, and

11

how we could move forward and avoid some of the

12

unfortunate experiences you've had.
So could you confirm that what

13
14

you're really looking for is that person-to-person

15

contact and dealing with issues as they come up in

16

as open a manner as possible?
MR. BOURGEOIS:

17
18
19
20
21

Yes, my name is

Eugene Bourgeois.
And I can confirm that that is
part of what I would like to see happen.
One of the grave and great

22

concerns is, as Mr. Mann mentioned, the lack of

23

trust, and part of that lack of trust is that we as

24

resident stakeholders don't actually get to

25

question in a meaningful and knowledgeable way the
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1

assumptions and assertions and the science that the

2

industry does.
It takes a tremendous amount of

3
4

money and cost, in both personal time and effort in

5

order to be able to make those -- ask those

6

questions and to become informed.
And I agree that -- with

7
8

Ms. Swanson, or Swami, sorry, that Mark Jensen did

9

come, and I was very, very gratified that he did.
My wife -- I couldn't leave my

10
11

wife at that time to go and see him because she was

12

having chemotherapy and he graciously came with

13

Marie Wilson and we spent probably two and a half

14

hours and I was able to raise questions.
It was there that I learned that

15
16

many of the questions that I was asking, it was not

17

the right time to ask that question, there would be

18

a right time to ask that question, and I would have

19

an opportunity of asking those questions at the

20

right time.
But I was able to ask the

21
22

questions at the time, even though I didn't get an

23

answer, and that was good, but it left me with more

24

questions.

25

So I asked about back testing of
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1

models, air models -- air monitoring models, MOE

2

said they could do that.

3

said they don't want to be bothered with doing

4

that.

OPG and CNSC have both

5

You know, there are things that

6

would help create the trust, to know that there's

7

openness.

8

Dr. Thompson -- more than anybody, I would love --

9

I would love to see all of this stuff be true, all

If -- the RADICON study that

10

of the data, all of the science that they refer to,

11

all of the opinions they express, I would love for

12

them to be true.
I don't live there hoping that all

13
14

of this stuff is false.

Why would I live there and

15

exposes myself to these dangers?

16

exposed to the danger, so, you know, it's water

17

under the bridge.

18

any way, it's just that I don't trust their

19

assertions.

I mean, I've been

I don't hold it against them in

So one of the ways of gaining that

20
21

trust would be to allow us to test the models, the

22

hypotheses, the statements in a robust and thorough

23

way.

24

RADICON study.

25

it's peer reviewed, and I respect that.

And if we could have Dr. Hoel look at the
I know Dr. Thompson has said that
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1

You know, listening to what the

2

CNSC has said about the research they're doing, I

3

mean, I don't think they're in an enviable

4

position, I think they're in a very tough position.
And they have to -- on the one

5
6

hand they want to support and help the industry

7

continue and provide electricity for all of us, and

8

on the other hand, you know, they get thorns in the

9

side like me that say I don't like being fumigated,

10

I don't like this happening to me, and all the

11

rest.
And I understand their

12
13

frustration, and I'm sure they understand my

14

frustration.

15

have full open transparent discussions.

And one of the ways around that is to

That means we, as resident

16
17

stakeholders, have to be able to stand on the same

18

footing as the industry.

19

lots of money.

20

doing this.

It's got -- it spends

I know I've spent lots of money

21

Thank you.

22

THE CHAIRPERSON:

23

Thank you,

Mr. Bourgeois.

24

Mr. Mann?

25

MR. MANN:

Following up on
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1

Ms. Swami's point about the Advisory Committee.

2

Saugeen Shores, we, in the past couple of months,

3

now have a Community Liaison Committee with regard

4

to the high level DGR.

5

Liaison Committee is 12 years too late.

6

Community Liaison Committee should have been formed

7

prior to the siting and the hosting agreement.

8

I'm wondering why ---

In my view, that Community

THE CHAIRPERSON:

9

MR. MANN:

10

In

The

And

Mr. Mann, ---

--- I’m wondering why

11

OPG did not form the Community Liaison Committee

12

way back before any siting or hosting agreement,

13

and why do we seem to be getting the short shrift

14

and -- on process in regard to the low and

15

intermediate, but high level's getting gold coast

16

treatment?

17

THE CHAIRPERSON:

I think I asked

18

a similar question this morning, which is why there

19

weren't similar committees here that there were to

20

Darlington and Pickering.
But perhaps, Ms. Swami, indulge us

21
22

just to briefly reiterate your response to that

23

question, please?
MS. SWAMI:

24
25

Laurie Swami, for the

record.
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This morning, when you asked me

1
2

about this same question, I talked about the -- and

3

I'm going to get the acronym wrong, but there was a

4

community group set up with the municipality.
We also had a very fulsome

5
6

community and consultation program, which meant

7

that we had people out in the community talking to

8

community groups, having open houses.

9

the material that Mr. Powers discussed on Saturday

And a lot of

10

of the number of interactions we had with people,

11

there did not seem to be a need early on in the

12

project for a separate committee.
I also described of how later on

13
14

and closer to when this hearing was actually taking

15

place, we certainly began to hear from residents

16

that had some concerns, and so really started to

17

think then that there was a need for such a

18

committee, and of course, now we're into the

19

hearing process.

20

in time to start moving forward with that type of

21

committee.

So this seems like a good point

22

THE CHAIRPERSON:

23

Very quickly, Mr. Mann, please.

24

MR. MANN:

25

Thank you.

Wouldn't the time be

before the hosting and siting agreement isn't that
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1

when you have to do it?

2

we're ---

Because after you do it

3

THE CHAIRPERSON:

4

exactly the question, but I think that's -- we have

5

lots of evidence to ponder the answer to that.
MR. MANN:

6

Mr. Mann, that's

And I just note Rob

7

Shave, who gave a presentation, is on our committee

8

-- liaison committee as Vice-Chair and you can see

9

how engaged he is, and it’s helpful.

10

Thank you.

11

THE CHAIRPERSON:

12

Thank you, Mr.

Mann.

13

Mr. Robertson.

14

MR. ROBERTSON:

Madam Chair, it’s

15

been a long day.

I think one thing that should be

16

done here is those of us from Saugeen Shores need

17

to welcome you to what we think is one of the best

18

communities in North America and encourage you

19

while you’re here to do two things.
One is to drive our waterfront

20
21

shoreline.

22

the last three years that runs from Port Elgin

23

along the shore to Southampton.

24

places even in California.

25

We have a new trail that was built in

I think it marvels

And secondly, one day -- and the
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1

sun will be out for the next week -- take time to

2

go to the flag in -- on High Street in Southampton

3

and walk our boardwalk.

4

that’s about a half mile from the town, High Street

5

down and back, and you’ll see why we’re all here

6

fighting so hard on behalf of our communities.

7

My question, though -- and I

8

We have a paved boardwalk

apologize for the preamble.
My question is about -- kind of

9
10

based on what Mr. Bourgeois’ problem, but it’s kind

11

of all of us that are here have suffered, I think,

12

from the same kind of lack of understanding and

13

knowledge of the process, and that is funding to

14

assist us in preparing our arguments for or against

15

our positions.

16

And out of ignorance, I didn’t

17

know that there was funding available and I’ve

18

since, of course, spoke with Northwatch people and

19

saw that they got some substantial funding to

20

assist them in bringing in independent experts.

21

So my question, really, is to Mr.

22

Powers because we’ve heard about all of the 33,000

23

documents that they’ve circulated to the community.

24

And what I’d like to know is, in any of those

25

documents, did they share the information about

INTERNATIONAL REPORTING INC.

187

1

funding for people who are interested in making

2

presentations at the Panel?

3

THE CHAIRPERSON:

4

MR. POWERS:

5

OPG?

Kevin Powers, for the

record.
We spoke about the process, but in

6
7

our newsletters and other materials, the web, we

8

did not -- because we are not the organization that

9

gives out the funds for intervenor fund, we did not

10

provide that information.

11

THE CHAIRPERSON:

12

MR. ROBERTSON:

13

it’s just about balancing the interest and I think

14

that, from our perspective, when we’re building

15

trust, we have to work together to find the truth.

16

And that would have been nice for us to know that

17

in advance, and I think OPG needs to think about

18

why we didn’t get that.

19

Thank you.

20

MS. SWAMI:

21
22

Mr. Robertson?
And Madam Chair,

Laurie Swami, for the

record.
If I could just add one thing, we

23

did put the advertisement that was placed by the

24

CEAA regarding the ability to receive funding on

25

our Web site, so that information was provided.
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1

I just add that.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

2

Thank you.

3

That’s what I was searching for, was whether that

4

link had been made.

5

Ms. Fernandez.

6

MS. FERNANDEZ:

7

The Inverhuron Committee has met

Thank you.

8

with several members of OPG on at least a couple of

9

occasions and has raised a number of questions and

10

concerns.

And my question is, following these

11

meetings, has OPG subsequently responded to your

12

questions and concerns?
THE CHAIRPERSON:

13

Ms. Fernandez, I

14

understand Mr. Hunter or Dale Palin are here to

15

answer questions on behalf of the committee.
There, hello.

16
17

way forward to the microphone again.
MS. PALIN:

18
19

You can make your

Dale Palin, for the

record.

20

The initial contacts with OPG was

21

with our chairman, which was Marti McFadzean, and I

22

know that she was at a meeting with them in -- last

23

fall in Sarnia.

24

believe, Mr. Powers.

25

contact that we were supposed to talk to, you know,

And she had a contact with, I
And he was supposed to be the
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1

any further questions.

2

And there really wasn’t any more

3

information that went back and forth until we were

4

then invited to do a tour, which was in May, I

5

think, so there was not a lot of back and forth.
We spent a lot of time looking for

6
7

information, but there wasn’t -- I don’t believe

8

there was any more dialogue between -- really,

9

between OPG and the Inverhuron Committee.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

10
11

Thank you, Ms.

Palin.

12

Ms. Fernandez?

13

MS. FERNANDEZ:

Yes, this is a

14

follow-up to Eugene Bourgeois’ very powerful

15

presentation this morning.
Many of the intervenors at these

16
17

hearings have expressed significant concerns and

18

have brought up numerous credible and differing

19

studies by other very well-qualified experts

20

opposing the views and the studies that OPG has

21

brought forward.

22

And this question is for the CNSC.

23

What process exists for the CNSC to possibly change

24

their opinion of OPG’s materials based upon the new

25

material that has been presented in the public
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1

hearings?
And in other words, what would it

2
3

take for the CNSC to state that they did not agree

4

that this application should proceed?

5

THE CHAIRPERSON:

6

DR. THOMPSON:

7
8

CNSC?

Patsy Thompson, for

the record.
When we receive the technical

9

support documents, the EIS, from the Proponent, as

10

we mentioned earlier during the hearings, we did a

11

detailed technical review using CNSC expertise and

12

expertise from outside the CNSC for certain areas.

13

The basis for our review is

14

essentially the broad scientific literature and

15

technical documents from other organizations who

16

have done work -- similar work.

17

example, when we reviewed the interventions that

18

people were submitting to the Panel, we reviewed

19

all of the submissions.

20

We also -- for

We have a large database with all

21

the submissions and all the topics that have been

22

raised, and we systematically go through all the

23

interventions, the topics, to make sure that, one,

24

we haven’t forgotten something and, secondly, to

25

verify when people bring forward information and
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1

literature references that we haven’t looked at.

2

We do go back and verify.

3

One of the things that people have

4

talked about is that, you know, they bring

5

information forward from individual scientists, for

6

example, who have divergent opinions, and I think

7

Dr. Rhodes was mentioned this morning.

8
9

Dr. Rhodes did write to me after
the hearing with his submission and what we’re

10

doing is we’re going through it, verifying it based

11

on, you know, expertise within the CNSC and the

12

scientific literature.

13

with Dr. Rhodes or writing to him and if there are

14

things that we should have taken into

15

consideration, then we will.

16

And we intend on meeting

The last thing we want is to make

17

a decision -- there was a statement earlier that

18

the CNSC’s job is to support the industry.

19

only job we have is to make sure that the

20

decisions, the recommendations to the Panel and to

21

the Commission, are based on good science.

The

22

But based on good science means

23

that we take a weight of evidence approach to the

24

science and that’s why for health, for example, we

25

rely on international committees whose job it is is

INTERNATIONAL REPORTING INC.

192

1

to bring people from all over the world with

2

different areas of expertise who challenge each

3

other while reviewing the scientific literature.
And that’s the way that advances,

4
5

you know, and knowledge happen.

That’s the way

6

that standards evolve as well.

7

don’t take a limited view.

8

view, but using the scientific evidence.

And so we just

We take a very broad

And part of that scientific

9
10

evidence is things that people bring that may not

11

fit within what people call mainstream science, so

12

we do look at it.

13

topics that the CNSC used to regulate in a certain

14

way that we’ve changed either because of new

15

science or because of issues that people have

16

raised.

And there’s been a number of

We’ve done a lot of work on

17
18

tritium.

19

tritium, not just based on the public dose but also

20

on protection of groundwater for example, because

21

people have brought those issues and we also have

22

with the Nuclear Safety and Control Act, a broader

23

mandate than we used to have.

24
25

We’ve changed the way we regulate

And we’ve made changes based on
new science on, you know, some intervenors know
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1

Mrs. Shiell, from Saskatchewan, who brought to the

2

CNSC that we were not regulating properly radium

3

and radiological biologic, BRB factor for radium.

4

We did a lot of work to address those concerns.

5

And we did change the way we did risk assessments.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

6
7

Thank you, Dr.

Thompson.

8

Ms. Fernandez?

9

MS. FERNANDEZ:

10

just wondering that there has been an overwhelming

11

preponderance of information provided here in -- on

12

the scientific basis.

13

has said that the information OPG has provided is

14

adequate.

15

move that adequate to not being adequate?

And I understand the CNSC

How much information would it take to

THE CHAIRPERSON:

16
17

Yes, I guess I’m

Ms. Fernandez,

actually I think that’s our job as the Panel.
So all CNSC can do is offer their

18
19

evidence.

20

offered your evidence, OPG has offered their

21

evidence.

22

sought our own evidence, and in the end of the day

23

will we also using a weight of evidence.

24
25

You -- all of the intervenors have

The Panel, as you heard this morning,

There are two non-registered
participants who had put their names down to ask
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1

questions.

If you could please keep your questions

2

extremely short we can squeeze you in at this

3

point.

4

Patty -- Ms. Patty Cowan?

5

Apparently, not here.

6

Michael Smith?

7
8
9
10
11
12
13

No?

Okay.

Well,

that makes that simple.
So next on our agenda is a 30minute oral intervention by Ms. Paula Lombardi.
Ms. Lombardi, please begin.
--- ORAL INTERVENTION BY SISKINDS LLP:
MS. LOMBARDI:

Thank you, Madam

Chair and the Panel.

14

Paula Lombardi, for the record.

15

I think it’s important to just

16

give a brief description of our client.

17

Bourgeois is a sheep farmer who owns and operates

18

an organic fair trade wool business known as the

19

Philosophers Wool Company.

20

Mr.

He has been living beside the

21

Nuclear Bruce facility for more than 40 years.

22

have heard Mr. Bourgeois’ comments this morning

23

about living beside the facility and the impact on

24

him and his operations and his family.

25

You

I also think it’s important that
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1

you have a brief overview of myself and my

2

colleagues so you know the areas that we come from.

3

Mr. Scott Ritchie is a partner at

4

Siskinds who specializes in class action and

5

complex litigation.

6

Queen Counsel in 1984, appointed as Fellow of the

7

American College of Trial Lawyers in 1993,

8

recipient of the 2003 Advocates Metal Award,

9

appointed as Chairman of the Board of Directors of

10

the Pacific and Western Bank of Canada, and named

11

to the Best Lawyers in Canada’s list.

12

also one of the lead counsel in the Walkerton class

13

action.

Mr. Ritchie was appointed as

And he was

I am Paula Lombardi.

14

My bio is

15

much shorter.

16

environmental, municipal, and administrative law.

17

I have advised clients on a wide range of issues

18

dealing with regulatory compliance and have been

19

involved in many environmental assessments.

20

My practice is focused on

As part of our oral submissions

21

I’d just like to give you a brief overview of a

22

summation of our submissions today.

23

will be addressing the following three points.

24
25

Mr. Ritchie

First, the proposed DGR project
breaches Canada’s Treaty obligations; secondly, the
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1

proposed DGR project breaches the principles of

2

international common law; and thirdly, it is our

3

submission that based on -- upon OPG’s own

4

definitions, the reality of the project is that it

5

is intended to be a repository for high level waste

6

and waste having long-lived radionuclides of

7

hundreds of thousands in years.

8

We also note that the request for

9

ruling on the type of waste being proposed for this

10

DGR was submitted on Thursday, October 3rd and

11

amended on Monday, October 7th to include additional

12

signatories in support of the request.
There are now 37 signatories who

13
14

signed on to this request and we respectfully

15

submit that taking into account the magnitude of

16

this request, the impact on the project, the

17

importance of a response, that this matter be dealt

18

with prior to the continuation of these hearings

19

before the end of October.
My submission will address one

20
21

main issue.

22

the preferred disposal method for intermediate and

23

low level waste.

24
25

The status quo is proven, known to be

The DGR project before you
represents the first DGR being proposed in Canada.
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1

You have heard considerable opposition to this

2

project over the past three weeks.

3

groups, environmental groups, local residents and

4

our neighbours to the southwest in Michigan have

5

all appeared before you in opposition to this

6

project.

Community

The DGR project is unprecedented

7
8

in Canada.

9

Canada.

There are no similar projects in

There are no DGRs for any type of waste

10

let alone nuclear waste that have been constructed

11

in Canada.
The proposed project is precedent

12
13

setting.

14

not just for innocuous waste, it will include

15

highly radioactive waste with long-lived

16

radionuclides and heat generating.

17

Mr. Ritchie will tell you that the DGR is

On the issue of the status quo

18

being the preferred alternative and the preferred

19

method at this point in time, the federal

20

government’s radioactive waste policy framework

21

requires that radioactive waste disposal occur in a

22

safe, environmentally sound, comprehensive, cost-

23

effective and integrated manner, all of which is

24

achieved by the status quo.

25

The status quo meets the federal
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1

policies -- the federal government’s policy

2

framework while the DGR does not.

3

accepted internationally, it is not scientifically

4

proven to be absolutely safe, and it is not cost

5

effective.

The DGR is not

OPG has identified the following

6
7

virtues of the status quo in its EIS.

It is

8

feasible, has a design life of a hundred years,

9

meaning that it could function for the next 60 or

10

so years.

11

alternative at this point in time that is not

12

demonstrably safe and effective.

13

So there is no point to force an

It accommodates both low and

14

intermediate level waste.

15

internationally as a disposal method.

16

in accordance with all regulatory requirements and

17

has a very safe history, has the ongoing support of

18

the host community, it has the ongoing support of

19

the regional community.

20

It is used
It operates

It has no adverse environmental

21

effects and it costs approximately 648 million

22

being at a minimum 275 million less than the DGR

23

and represents the least expensive option.

24

The money saved from not

25

proceeding with the DGR could be used to address
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1

some of the issues and mitigate some of the issues

2

that they are facing.
In addition, the status quo has no

3
4

noise impacts from construction, no risk to the

5

Great Lakes, no risk of impacts in the United

6

States and the property values are stabilized so

7

there’s no stigma effects from the construction of

8

the DGR.
OPG has spent almost a decade

9
10

trying to justify, through an environmental

11

assessment process, a decision that was made years

12

before this process started in 2004 when OPG signed

13

the hosting agreement with Kincardine.
This process is flawed and on

14
15

OPG’s own evidence, the status quo is the preferred

16

option before you today.

17

preferred option until science can prove the same

18

certainty as safety as the status quo has proven

19

over the past 40 years.

It will remain the

20

For the above reasons we request

21

that this Panel reject the proposed project on the

22

basis that the status quo is the preferred manner

23

of dealing with the disposal of low and

24

intermediate nuclear waste at this particular point

25

in time.
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We would also, as a courtesy, like

1
2

to advise this Panel that we will be making written

3

submissions for intervenor funding for the

4

expenses, actual expenses incurred by our client in

5

participating in this project.
I will now turn it over to Mr.

6
7

Ritchie to discuss the international obligations

8

and our breaches of the Treaty.
MR. RITCHIE:

9
10

Scott Ritchie, for

the record.

11

Thank you.

12

I want to start by making a

13

clarifying statement that arises out of the

14

evidence that’s been given.

15

we have two searches going on at this particular

16

time, one dealing with spent nuclear fuel and

17

that’s a different process that we heard about this

18

morning.

19

intermediate waste or low level waste.

20

And the simple fact is

Everything else is put into the rubric of

And I think it’s clear and I don’t

21

have to go into this evidence but it’s clear that

22

there will be waste -- refurbishment waste and

23

other kinds of waste that has high radioactivity

24

and is heat generating and it, I’m assuming, is

25

until we get an answer to the request for ruling,
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1

we’re taking the position that it is the intent of

2

OPG because they haven’t said to the contrary that

3

this high radioactive waste will also be stored in

4

this deep repository that is before you for

5

approval, or otherwise.
And so I’m not going to go into

6
7

any further detail on that because there’s evidence

8

before you and you understand the science better

9

than I do, but OPG -- I’ll just point this out --

10

has defined intermediate level waste as waste

11

having a half-life in excess of 30 years.
This incredibly imprecise

12
13

definition would mean that this proposed project is

14

intended to accommodate radioactive waste having a

15

half-life of hundreds of thousands of years in

16

waste that may be heat generating, and yet OPG

17

continues with their standard, but not helpful

18

answer, it is not intended for spent fuel.
We are awaiting a response to our

19
20

request and much will depend on the answer that is

21

given.

22

store the highly radioactive refurbishment waste in

23

this DGR, then, in our respectful submission, the

24

EIS will have to be revisited.

25

happens, no decision can be made on the present

If it is clarified that the intent is to

And until that
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1

proposal.
I want to turn to our

2
3

international obligations.

The Great Lakes Water

4

Quality Agreement -- and this was amended in 2012

5

and was ratified -- it was agreed to on September

6

7th of 2012 and ratified February 12th, 2013.

7

And I’m going to read from

8

portions of this protocol because the language that

9

is used makes it fundamentally clear that they’re

10

talking about radioactive waste, radioactivity and

11

the very type of project that is being considered

12

by this Panel.

13

And so under that agreement -- and

14

I’ll just summarize the obligations and then take

15

you through a couple of the passages that will make

16

clear what I am respectfully submitting.

17

“The Parties acknowledge the

18

importance of anticipating,

19

preventing and responding to

20

threats to the Waters of the

21

Great Lakes.

22

commit to the following

23

notification and response

24

process:...”

25

The Parties

Under Article 6, (c):
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1

“the Parties shall notify

2

each other, through the Great

3

Lakes Executive Committee, of

4

planned activities that could

5

lead to a pollution incident

6

or that could have a

7

significant cumulative impact

8

on the Waters of the Great

9

Lakes, such as:

10

(i) the storage and transfer

11

of nuclear waste or

12

radioactive materials;

13

(vi) nuclear facilities;

14

(vii) hazardous waste

15

storage;

16

(viii) treatment or disposal

17

facilities...”
The preamble to the treaty

18
19

breathes life into Article 6, and among a number of

20

reaffirming statements in the agreement are the

21

overarching principles friendship and cooperation,

22

protection, restoration and enhancement of water

23

quality in the Great Lakes that includes an

24

obligation to meaningfully consult, cooperate and

25

collaborate.
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This agreement also recognizes

1
2

that while:

3

“...the Parties are

4

responsible for decision-

5

making under this Agreement,

6

the involvement and

7

participation of State and

8

Provincial Governments,

9

Tribal Governments, First

10

Nations, Métis, Municipal

11

Governments, watershed

12

management agencies, local

13

public agencies, and the

14

Public are essential to

15

achieve the objectives of

16

this Agreement;...”

17
18

Under Article 2.3 of the protocol,
it states as follows, quote:

19

“The Parties recognize that

20

it is necessary to take

21

action to resolve existing

22

environmental problems, as

23

well as to anticipate and

24

prevent environmental

25

problems, by implementing
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1

measures that are

2

sufficiently protective to

3

achieve the purpose of this

4

Agreement.”
And then again, under Article 4.1:

5
6

“The Parties, in cooperation

7

and consultation with State

8

and Provincial Governments,

9

Tribal Governments, First

10

Nations, Métis, Municipal

11

Governments, [and the]

12

watershed [...] shall develop

13

and implement programs and

14

other measures:...”

15

To give -- as I said, breathe life

16

into the obligations that have been created by this

17

agreement.

18

Article 4.2A(4) states as follows:

19

“These programs and other

20

measures shall include, but

21

are not limited to:

22

(a) pollution abatement,

23

control, and prevention

24

programs for:...”

25

And then it specifically states
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1

under Item 4:

2

“(vi) sources of radioactive

3

materials;...”

4

The backgrounder to this

5

international agreement gets it correctly when it

6

states that:

7

“Providing notification of

8

activities that could impact

9

the Great Lakes.”

10

(As read)

It’s hard to imagine an activity

11

that has more potential for catastrophic effects to

12

the Great Lakes than the proposed DGR.

13

And the very purpose for which

14

this agreement was set up is to allow the

15

respective federal governments of each of the

16

United States and Canada, working through the

17

organization that has been created under this

18

agreement to deal with these various issues, to

19

allow input from the other side to see if standards

20

can’t be developed.

21

Now, we recognize, clearly, that

22

one side can’t dictate what another country’s going

23

to do, and that’s why the treaty has created this

24

collaboration and cooperation imperative.

25

have an obligation, in my respectful submission, to
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1

follow this process and to get the kind of

2

collaboration that is necessary to see this forward

3

under the framework of the treaty that I’m talking

4

about.
I know of no evidence before this

5
6

Panel that speaks to the question of whether the

7

treaty obligations that I have spoken to have been

8

met.

9

having consulted different people but, in my

I know that there is some vague talk of

10

respectful submission, it has to be done through

11

official channels and it has to be done through the

12

organization that has been set up under this

13

treaty.
We say that the jurisdiction for

14
15

dealing with any issue under the treaty falls

16

squarely within the jurisdiction of the federal

17

governments of both countries and the designated

18

branch responsible for enforcing our treaty

19

obligations.
OPG has no such jurisdiction or

20
21

authority.

We say that the Panel must have regard

22

for and respect the commitments made by our country

23

under this treaty.

24

OPG has said in their material

25

that -- at page 117, Section 1.5.2 of the EIS as
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1

follows:

2

"The Great Lakes Water

3

Quality Agreement was first

4

signed in 1972 and renewed in

5

1978 under the Boundary

6

Waters Treaty."

(As read)

This Agreement, quote:

7
8

“...expresses the commitment

9

of Canada and the United

10

States to restore and

11

maintain the chemical,

12

physical and biological

13

integrity of the Great Lakes

14

basin ecosystem.”

(As read)

This agreement includes objectives

15
16

and goals to be met by each nation to maintain

17

water quality in the Great Lakes and communicate

18

effectively regarding issues or progress by either

19

nation.

20

Since the DGR Project is not

21

expected to result in direct, that is, in

22

parentheses untreated, end of parentheses,

23

discharges to Lake Huron and no non-trivial effects

24

are identified to surface water quality and flow or

25

surface water quality, notification will not be

INTERNATIONAL REPORTING INC.

209

1
2

required under this agreement.
We simply say, quite simply, that

3

is not OPG's call to make based upon the clear

4

language of this agreement.

5

It's significant in this same

6

respect to note that a representative of the

7

Michigan House and a Michigan Senator travelled to

8

Kincardine for the sole purpose of opposing this

9

project and advising the Panel that a violation of

10
11

this treaty has occurred.
Michigan Senator Hopgood stated

12

before this JPR in his submissions on Monday,

13

September 30th, 2011, quote:

14

“Mr. Burnham [U.S. Trans-

15

boundary Affairs Division]

16

also notes that the also

17

noted that the [Canadian-U.S.

18

Great Lakes] Water Quality

19

Agreement requires that

20

Canada and the U.S. notify

21

each other of planned

22

activities that could lead to

23

a pollution incident or that

24

could have significant

25

cumulative impact on the
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1

waters of the Great Lakes,

2

such as the storage of

3

nuclear waste or radioactive

4

material.”

5

It seems that Canada has not

6

provided any official notice regarding OPG's

7

underground nuclear waste facility on Lake Huron,

8

an apparent violation of this Agreement.

9

While it is speculation as to what

10

position that the United States federal government

11

would take within the framework of this agreement,

12

meaningful cooperation and collaboration, it's

13

difficult to imagine that they would not want to at

14

least argue that the position of Michigan and

15

Macomb County –- that I'm going to refer to in a

16

moment –- about the distance that such deep

17

geologic repositories have to be located in terms

18

of the Great Lakes.

19

They would certainly put that

20

position, there would be discussion, there would be

21

collaboration, and there might be some kind of

22

unanimity that would come out of that process, in

23

our respectful submission.

24
25

Michigan Act 204 of 1987 deals
specifically with low level radioactive waste and
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1

imposes a prohibition against locating a DGR or any

2

waste disposal site within 10 miles of Lake Huron.
Macomb County, in May of 2008,

3
4

passed a resolution that made the same 10-mile

5

limitation mandatory, but they also took the highly

6

unusual step of citing the DGR Proposal that is

7

before you.

8

opposition to this through that process and through

9

their attendance here.

And they wanted to voice their

In addition to the treaty

10
11

obligations that mandate cooperation and

12

collaboration, there are also domestic statutory

13

obligations.

14

For example, the preamble to CEAA

15

pre-December of 2012, acknowledges that the

16

Government of Canada is committed:

17

“...to exercising leadership

18

within Canada and

19

Internationally and

20

anticipating and preventing

21

degradation of environmental

22

quality and at the same time

23

ensuring the economic

24

development is compatible

25

with the high value Canadians
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1

place on environmental

2

quality.”
Section 4.2 CEAA post-December

3
4

2012, states:

5

“The Government of Canada,

6

the Minister, the Agency,

7

federal authorities and

8

responsible authorities in

9

the administration of the Act

10

must exercise their powers in

11

a manner that protects the

12

environment and human health

13

and applies the precautionary

14

principle.”

15

To like effect, are the -– it is

16

the international common law that developed in the

17

Trail Smelter case back in the 1930s, and we have

18

set out all the authorities relative to this in our

19

paper.

20

go through all of those authorities, but the

21

principles are as the same as the principles that

22

have been enunciated in the Water Quality Treatment

23

Treaty that I have referred to.

And I'm not going to take your time now to

And it's -- the no harm principle

24
25

is cited.

I suspect it's no more than the good
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1

neighbour principle and the obligation to notify of

2

the very kinds of proposals before you so that

3

under the water quality treatment, for example, the

4

parties can sit down and meaningfully discuss

5

appropriate ways in which to deal with a proposal

6

such as this.
Both the treaty, supported by

7
8

international law, speak to the very same

9

requirement to notify, consult and collaborate.
We have only covered the critical

10
11

aspects of this proposed project in this

12

presentation, and I would refer you to our detailed

13

paper for our other submissions because time only

14

permits us to address these couple.
But the only other thing I want to

15
16

say before I close has to deal with the willing

17

host community.

18

evidence on this, and I'm only going to be very

19

brief on it.

And I know you've heard a lot of

And it's this.
That it's agreed, both

20
21

domestically and internationally, community support

22

is critical in siting a nuclear waste disposal

23

facility.

24
25

Despite OPG stating on numerous
occasions that a willing host community is the sole
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1

reason the DGR Project has been selected for the

2

Bruce Nuclear site rather than anywhere else in

3

Canada, OPG recognized that experience in other

4

countries has shown that success in siting a waste

5

disposal facility is greatly improved in situations

6

where the community supports the proposal.

7

However, OPG states that, quote:

8

“No further sites volunteer

9

to participate in feasibility

10

studies or to host the

11

facility.”
And so we started with a –- with a

12
13

proposition driven, first of all, by a so-called

14

willing host community.

15

not satisfied the rules under which this Panel is

16

operating because they failed to look meaningfully

17

for other sites.

And we say that they have

Now, we heard from William Leiss

18
19

this morning.

20

very issue and gave the example, I think, of 21

21

sites having been identified for a step one

22

discussion for the spent fuel.

23

been later narrowed to a smaller number, but it's a

24

significant number.

25

And William Leiss talked about this

And I think that's

And the juxtaposition of that
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1

process and the number of communities identified at

2

that stage is very different from what we see here.
We respectfully submit that a

3
4

willing host community being offered up by OPG is

5

tainted by money -- and you heard about that --

6

it's tainted by ambiguity, and it's tainted by

7

bias.

8

of Mr. Rod McLeod in that respect.

And I refer specifically to the submissions

Those are our submissions, and we

9
10

thank you very much.

11

--- QUESTIONS BY THE PANEL:
THE CHAIRPERSON:

12
13

Thank you, Mr.

Ritchie and Ms. Lombardi.

14

Mr. Ritchie, you spent a fair bit

15

of time in your presentation around the Great Lakes

16

Water Quality Agreement.
Are you aware of the transcript

17
18

for this hearing in which Mr. Goffin from

19

Environment Canada, in very clear terms, gave

20

evidence to the Panel as follows, quote from the

21

transcript -- when we asked about notification

22

through the Great Lakes Executive Committee under

23

the Great Lakes Water Quality Agreement, Mr. Goffin

24

replied:

25

"In this case, that

INTERNATIONAL REPORTING INC.

216

1

notification occurred on June

2

21st, 2013 following the

3

ratification in February of

4

the Agreement..."
And he's referring to the new

5
6

Agreement.
He also gave evidence to us that

7
8

in 2011 there were also discussions –-

9

collaborative discussions at the Great Lakes

10

Executive Committee level which included briefing,

11

including but not limited to, consular and embassy

12

officials, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency,

13

and the Michigan Department of Environmental

14

Quality.
So my question to you is, now that

15
16

you know that, would you alter your position that

17

the evidence regarding meeting our obligations

18

under that Agreement is vague?

19

MR. RITCHIE:

20

about that.

21

discussion.

22
23
24
25

I would say this

And I'd focus on the collaboration and

You pointed out that there was,
indeed, a notification.
I’m concerned about the balance of
that obligation being the discussion and
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1

collaboration at the level of the Joint Panel that

2

was struck under the Water Quality Treatment Act.

3

And I don’t know whether the evidence that you’ve

4

cited to me went so far as to demonstrate the kinds

5

of discussions that went on, the type of

6

collaboration that went on and whether or not there

7

was any opposition or there was any discussion

8

about ameliorating the effect of locating the DGR

9

so close to the Great Lakes, and so I think that is

10

something that has to be elaborated upon, in my

11

respectful submission.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

12

Mr. Ritchie, I

13

would refer you to the information requests

14

elicited by this Joint Review Panel on these

15

matters.
I would also refer you to

16
17

questions from the Michigan Department of

18

Environmental Quality which are on the record as

19

well as environmental -- the Environmental

20

Protection Agency, which reflect those very

21

collaborations, were forwarded -- those questions

22

were forwarded to the Panel.

23

consideration and have forwarded them to OPG.
There’s quite a bit of evidence to

24
25

We took them under

go through.
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1

There’s also been discussions --

2

further discussions in the transcript.

3

point you in those directions.

4

MR. RITCHIE:

5

THE CHAIRPERSON:

6
7
8
9
10
11
12

So I simply

Thank you.
Panel, did you

have any other questions?
Can we verify whether or not there
are any questions from participants?
Doesn’t look like it.

Okay.

So thank you very much, Mr.
Ritchie and Ms. Lombardi.

We’ll proceed now.

I note that our next scheduled

13

oral intervention was by Ms. Laura Bowman, a

14

Northwatch affiliate.

15

unforeseen circumstances, Ms. Bowman is not

16

available today and we hope to reschedule her

17

intervention to one of the three additional hearing

18

days beginning October the 28th.

19

Unfortunately, due to

Next on our schedule are 11 10-

20

minute oral statements.

The Panel will ask its

21

questions after every second presenter and will

22

consider proposed questions from registered

23

participants after our questions.

24

First on our list is a statement

25

on behalf of the Committee for Future Generations.
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1

Ms. Mihalicz, you can make your way forward.
Oh, she’s on the phone; sorry.

2
3

keep not having this noted down.
So Ms. Mihalicz, are you on the

4
5

I

phone?

Can you hear me?

6

MS. MIHALICZ:

7

THE CHAIRPERSON:

8

10 minutes.

9

when you have one minute left.

Yes.
Yes, so you have

I will give you a one-minute warning
Please proceed.

10

--- ORAL STATEMENT BY COMMITTED FOR FUTURE

11

GENERATIONS:

12

MS. MIHALICZ:

Okay.

Okay.

13

My name is Debbie Mihalicz.

My

14

presentation will illustrate that the Canadian

15

Nuclear Safety Commission and the nuclear industry,

16

including Ontario Power Generation, lack both the

17

competence and the morality to make this decision

18

on the storage of low and intermediate nuclear

19

waste.

20

The effects of decisions made by

21

Ontario Power Generation reach all the way to

22

Northern Saskatchewan, as they are one of the

23

founding members of the Nuclear Waste Management

24

Organization, or NWMO, which is trying to dump

25

Ontario’s spent reactor fuel in our backyard.
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Our committee formed in response

1
2

to the first of many NWMO atrocities against First

3

Nations and Métis spirituality.
On May 9th, 2011, Cree, Dene and

4
5

Métis elders were lured to a sacred circle for the

6

stated purpose of finding a solution to this

7

suicide.

8

liaison officers to promote nuclear waste storage

9

as the solution.

The circle was instead hijacked by NWMO

Ten (10) Elders immediately rose

10

and left, breaking the sacred circle, which is

11

serious and rarely heard of.
In June 2011, a NWMO liaison

12
13

officer at a public forum in front of 250 people

14

told a Métis youth known for his opposition to

15

nuclear waste storage that he would be in jail

16

before he even graduated, so he might as well go

17

hang himself with his Métis sash.
Elders were again deceived in July

18
19

2012 after being recruited to conduct a pipe

20

ceremony for a Federation of Saskatchewan Indian

21

Nations Youth Conference at Prince Albert National

22

Park.

23

real reason for the conference when they started

24

promoting nuclear waste storage to the youth as a

25

career opportunity.

Unbeknownst to the Elders, NWMO revealed the
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In spring of 2013, a sweat lodge

1
2

ceremony was desecrated by NWMO’s Director of

3

Aboriginal Relations, Pat Patton, who took part in

4

the ceremony only to promote nuclear waste storage

5

inside the sweat lodge.
Since formation, our committee has

6
7

shed light on the nuclear industry’s gross

8

interference in the consultation process in our

9

community.

Saskatchewan is the same nuclear oasis

10

described to your Joint Review Panel on October 3rd

11

by Cheryl Grace of the Bluewater Coalition, a

12

concept introduced by a twentieth century social

13

scientist from the United Kingdom, whose theory

14

posits that places already hosting existing nuclear

15

facilities are the most likely places where

16

radioactive waste repositories may be welcome.
Similar to the 40-year presence of

17
18

nuclear reactors in the Kincardine area, we in

19

Northern Saskatchewan at the start of the uranium

20

fuel chain are heavily influenced by six decades of

21

uranium mining.

22

multi-generational work history in Cameco’s uranium

23

mining.

24
25

Every community has families with

Large billboards on provincial
highways picture the face of the Aboriginal people
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1

and announce, “Cameco is the number 1 industrial

2

employer of Aboriginal people.”

3

The nuclear industry, namely

4

Cameco and Areva, have partnered with our most

5

sacred institutions, health, education, governance

6

and sport, injecting millions of dollars into

7

community infrastructure, schools, universities and

8

hospitals.
Cameco teamed up with the

9
10

Saskatchewan Rough Riders in a public relations

11

campaign, giving money to cancer research, recently

12

granting a terminal patient her life-long wish of a

13

red sports car.

14

reference the fact that radiation causes sickness

15

in the first place?

Who in that arena would dare

16

As a result of this influence by

17

the nuclear industry on virtually every sector of

18

our society as described in the nuclear oasis

19

concept, a sense of indebtedness has been created,

20

affecting the ability of political leaders at all

21

level to make unbiased decision in the best

22

interests of the people.

23

Recent so-called Collaboration

24

Agreements signed by northern band and municipal

25

administrations with Cameco and Areva promised jobs
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1

and hundreds of millions of dollars, influencing

2

support of the latest entry into the nuclear oasis,

3

the Nuclear Waste Management Organization, which is

4

quickly moving those administrations to adapt to

5

save management for a nuclear waste repository.
When our committee reported to the

6
7

October 3rd, 2013 CNSC hearing that Cameco signed

8

these collaborations in contravention of duty to

9

consult, CNSC President Michael Binder replied that

10

he did not want to get involved in community

11

politics.

12

Responsibility, Sean Willy, retorted that Cameco

13

and northern communities have had a 25-year

14

relationship, which speaks for itself.

15

Cameco Director of Corporate Social

This nuclear oasis extends to the

16

provincial community.

17

Premier Brad Wall stated at a large public

18

function, “You know what the best program for First

19

Nations and Métis in this province is not a program

20

at all; it’s Cameco.”

21

Last spring, Saskatchewan

First Nations and Métis. angered

22

by the Premier’s comment. subsequently held a press

23

conference to which Premier Wall replied by backing

24

up his stance, identifying Cameco as one of

25

Saskatchewan’s best corporate citizens.
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At the CNSC hearing on October 3rd,

1
2

President Michael Binder asked our committee who we

3

would trust for information on uranium mine safety,

4

and when we answered that we would only trust an

5

independent study on the health and environment,

6

Binder directed us to the government for that

7

study.
A committee member gave President

8
9

Binder these concrete examples of our Premier’s

10

relationship with Cameco and also of Prime Minister

11

Stephen Harper’s relaxing of uranium sale policy

12

for the deal with India, one of the few countries

13

left in the world refusing to sign the Non-

14

Proliferation Treaty.

Binder remained unmoved.

The history of nuclear genocide of

15
16

indigenous peoples in Canada dates back to the

17

1930s.

18

affair with the iron in 1930 when radium was

19

discovered in a domain in the Northwest

20

Territories.

21

The Canadian government began its love

Local Dene residents were hired to

22

carry burlap sacks of uranium ore from the Port

23

Radium mine to the barges on Great Bear Lake.

24

workers slept on the bags of uranium all the way to

25

Fort McMurray where it was transferred for shipment
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1

to the Port Hope refinery in Ontario.
Deline resident Cindy Kenny-Gilday

2
3

wrote:

4

“Deline is practically a

5

village of widows, most of

6

the men who worked as

7

labourers have died of some

8

form of cancer. The widows,

9

who are traditional women

10

were left to raise their

11

families with no breadwinners

12

[or] supporters.

13

left to depend on welfare and

14

other young men for their

15

traditional food source.

16

This village of young men are

17

the first generation of men

18

in the history of Dene on

19

this lake to grow up without

20

guidance from their

21

grandfathers, fathers and

22

uncles.

23

economic, spiritual [and]

24

emotional deprivation impact

25

on the community is a threat

They were

This cultural,
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1

to the survival of the one

2

and only tribe on Great Bear

3

Lake.

4

example of cultural genocide

5

I have ever seen and [it’s]

6

in my own home.

7

of Deline did not know what

8

was causing [cancer]. […]

9

The Canadian Government [did

10

not inform] that it was their

11

exposure to radiation that

12

was killing them [until 1998]

13

[…] after the people of

14

Deline had identified the

15

cause through their own

16

research.

17

Ontario lawyer who worked on

18

behalf of the Deline First

19

Nations people said it best:

20

‘We left them to die and

21

hoped they would never ask

22

any questions’."

It's the most vicious

The people

Andy Orkin, an

23

The Gunner Mine is located 25

24

kilometres from Uranium City, Saskatchewan and

25

operated from 1955 to 1964.

No efforts to
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1

decommission the facility was made when it closed.

2

The Canadian government showed their complete

3

disregard for First Nations people when they set up

4

a federally owned fish processing plant at the pier

5

on the mine site in 1971, despite knowing the

6

radioactive dangers posed by the mine and the

7

tailings.

8
9
10

Chief Victor Fern recalls his
early teen years at the fish plant in a 2006 report
titled “For Our Children’s Children”.

11

“The buildings were wide open

12

and there were no warning

13

signs [or anything].

14

mine shaft was probably about

15

50 yards from the processing

16

plant and that was wide open,

17

too.

18

every day.

19

fencing or anything.

20

the uranium processing mill

21

was wide open, so we used to

22

go in all [those] buildings,

23

not knowing [any] dangers

24

about radiation.

25

tailings pond where all the

The

We used to climb that
There was no
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1

waste went, it was fine sand

2

that we didn’t know was toxic

3

waste, and we would go and

4

play in there […]”

5

“On April 6, 2003, Cameco's

6

McArthur River uranium mine

7

[in Northern Saskatchewan]

8

suffered a cave-in and flood

9

of radioactive water.

The

10

miners who were sent in to

11

try to save the mine worked

12

without respirators or

13

radiation suits for the first

14

48 hours.

15

Good, one of the first miners

16

sent in: ‘the mine's

17

radiation alarm kept going

18

off, but the radiation

19

technician merely re-set the

20

alarm, assuring them that

21

everything was fine’.”

22

According to Bill

In June, 2012 at a NWMO open house

23

at English River First Nation, Pat Patton, NWMO

24

Director of Aboriginal Affairs gave a demonstration

25

of how the proposed Deep Geological Repository for
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1

radioactive waste is supposed to work.
Afterwards she was asked by a band

2
3

member:

4

“Since Ontario has the same

5

rock formations as Northern

6

Saskatchewan, why would you

7

go through all the added

8

expense and risk transporting

9

it across two provinces to
Saskatchewan?”

10

(As read)

Her reply was:

11
12

“The people of Toronto don’t

13

feel safe.”

14

NWMO told ---

15

THE CHAIRPERSON:

16

(As read)

Ms. Mihalicz?

Ms. Mihalicz.

17

MS. MIHALICZ:

Yes.

18

THE CHAIRPERSON:

Excuse me for

19

interrupting.

But we are actually now out of time.

20

So if you could maybe sum up as quickly as you can,

21

we’d appreciate it.

22

Thank you.

23

MS. MIHALICZ:

Okay.

In summary,

24

we have personally witnessed numerous abuses by the

25

nuclear industry on all aspects of the health and
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1

governance of our communities.

We see the same

2

thing happening in the Kincardine area with the

3

nuclear industry making payments to communities.
On the basis of my submission, the

4
5

Committee for Future Generations cites the critical

6

need for communities in the affected area of the

7

proposed DGR to be provided with quality

8

independent information on all sides of the nuclear

9

waste storage issue.

And after a suitable time

10

period of education, that they be properly

11

consulted for their free prior and informed

12

consent.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

13
14

Mihalicz.
And again, I apologize for having

15
16

Thank you, Ms.

to interrupt but we have many presentations today.
We -- if you could stay on the

17
18

line but put your phone on mute in case there are

19

questions.

20

and then after those two presenters, the Panel may

21

have questions.

We’re going to go to the next presenter

22

I understand -- sorry?

23

MS. MIHALICZ:

24

just -- I don’t even -- I’m not even sure how to

25

put my phone on mute here.

How would I -- I’m
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THE CHAIRPERSON:

1

Well, do what

2

you -- do your best.

But if you can’t that’s fine.

3

Just be aware that we can hear the background noise

4

from your phone.

5

sneeze or something, just point away from the

6

phone.

So for example, if you have to

7

So we’re going ---

8

MS. MIHALICZ:

9

possible -- would it be possible for you to phone

10

me if the Panel has questions?
THE CHAIRPERSON:

11
12

No,

unfortunately not.
Apparently they can mute your

13
14

Would it be

phone from here.

So there’s no problem.

15

MS. MIHALICZ:

Okay.

16

THE CHAIRPERSON:

So if -- yes,

17

please stay on the line and we’ll proceed to the

18

next presenter.
Apparently, our next presenter Mr.

19
20

Burns is not present.

So we will proceed with Ms.

21

Anabel Dwyer on behalf of the Lawyers’ Committee on

22

Nuclear Policy.

23

Please proceed.

24

--- ORAL STATEMENT BY LAWYERS’ COMMITTEE ON NUCLEAR

25

POLICY:
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MS. DWYER:

1
2

Good afternoon, ladies

and gentlemen.
I am an attorney from Michigan.

3
4

I’m on the board of the Lawyers’ Committee for

5

Nuclear Policy which is the U.S. branch of the

6

International Association Against Nuclear Arms.
I have been involved in nuclear

7
8

issues in the Great Lakes for many years and on

9

many different levels.

But I want to state at the

10

outset essentially what my conclusion is and make

11

two points.
First of all, I think why I’ve

12
13

been asked to speak about socio and economic issues

14

here, and by that I mean institutional problems,

15

some institutional inertia which has occurred from

16

the nuclear system since the Manhattan Project more

17

than 70 years ago.
You’re dealing now in the timespan

18
19

that pales in comparison to the hundreds of

20

thousands of -- hundreds of thousands or millions

21

of years of the danger of the radioactive waste

22

from this system.
In other words, what you’re

23
24

dealing with here are insufficiently understood

25

realities.

And I ask you not to succumb to some
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1

short-term political or corporate pressure for too

2

narrowly conceived solution to slow or low or

3

medium level nuclear waste problem.

4

need to further recommend that further production

5

of these wastes from any source must be halted

6

because they are unnecessary, unneeded, and plainly

7

unwise for security or energy.

8
9

I think you

In other words, let me just throw
this back into a whole other perspective which may

10

-- you may think is not quite proper but I will try

11

to explain my two points after I make this point.

12

I was involved in the

13

International Court of Justice decision on the

14

legality of the threat or use from nuclear weapons.

15

And the unanimous conclusion of the Court was that:

16

“There exists an obligation

17

to pursue in good faith and

18

bring to a conclusion

19

negotiations leading to

20

nuclear disarmament in all

21

its aspects under strict and

22

effective international

23

control.”

24
25

You may consider this remote from
your concerns but nuclear disarmament in all its
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1

aspects is an obligation, a legal obligation now,

2

not only through the Nuclear Non-Proliferation

3

Treaty but also as a matter of customary

4

international law and will, of course, include safe

5

and scientifically sound management of nuclear

6

wastes at all levels until a permanent solution may

7

be found.

8

of these wastes from any source.

This will involve an end to production

So first of all I want to in other

9
10

words make two points.

And I’m going to be much

11

briefer than my 10 minutes because you have heard

12

the basic arguments in the last two presentations

13

made by people with real authority.

14

reinforcing those things.

I’m merely

And my two recommendations to you

15
16

would be in order to make any kind of decision

17

here, you would have to broaden your -- the scope

18

of your deliberations in space and time.
In other words, the community that

19
20

you’ve been talking about is a very narrow

21

community.

22

You’ve talked already about other people

23

recommending that the Great Lakes Basin itself be

24

the community you're concerned about.

25

mentioned some real reasons why the community is

And I -- it can go out at all levels.

I just
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1

the planet itself.
But in order to be really down to

2
3

earth right here on the northern shore of Lake

4

Huron, I want to include a brief discussion of my

5

experience and study with the Serpent River First

6

Nation people and why it is that you are going to

7

have real and necessary intervention and

8

participation on the part of First Nations people,

9

but also why it is that the front end of the

10

nuclear system is also part of what you have to

11

consider.
In the Elliott Lake area, very

12
13

close to here as the waters flow, there were 12

14

uranium mines from the 1950s through the 1990s.

15

And nuclear waste in various forms was simply

16

abandoned when -- in the mines when they were

17

closed.
There too people just -- well,

18
19

they didn't form the dumps of the sort that you are

20

contemplating.

21

their dump sites and those natural basins were the

22

lakes.

23

They just called natural basins

Now, keep in mind, please, I'm not

24

talking about some far-off area, I'm talking about

25

wherever the direction is of Elliott Lake, which is
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1

quite close to here.
These wastes were just abandoned,

2
3

many of them in the mines when they were closed,

4

and they were -- and the waste was dumped in these

5

natural basins under licences by the Atomic Energy

6

Control Board.
And the results of this front end

7
8

of nuclear power and weapons right here in our area

9

are documented in this book, "This is my Homeland,

10

Stories of the Effects of Nuclear Industries by

11

People of Servant River First Nation and the North

12

Shore of Lake Huron".
In one instance, I will try to be

13
14

a little light about this.

The thorium was stored

15

in barrels like oil drums.

The Atomic Energy

16

Control Board came to town to supervise the move.
Apparently, the barrels were

17
18

thrown into the waste management area, again,

19

lakes, and they would not sink.

20

the authors of -- editors of the book to a member

21

of the United Steelworkers Union, one Atomic Energy

22

Control Board worker shot the barrels with a gun so

23

that they would absorb the water and eventually

24

sink.

25

As told to one of

This was joked about as AECB's new
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1

modern waste management technology.
So you may have to consider, of

2
3

course, the legacy not only what you just heard,

4

but of many instances, including these documented

5

very close from here.
And my second and last point is

6
7

that you will need to -- recommendation is that you

8

will need to use and expand upon existing studies

9

as well as help in halting further production of

10

radioactive waste if you are going to get anywhere

11

in dealing with this problem, I believe.
I want to follow-up from the

12
13

discussion you heard earlier from Mr. Ritchie and

14

Ms. Lombardi about a group of us who have proposed

15

a coalition of citizens' groups on nuclear issues

16

as requested in the two most recent biannual

17

meetings of the International Joint Commission on

18

Great Lakes Water Quality to reconstitute a nuclear

19

task force.

20

I do not think it's sufficient for

21

you to merely tell the IJC or notify them that you

22

are pursuing a licence for approval.

23

yourselves, should recommend to both the Canadian

24

and the U.S. governments that much greater follow-

25

up on the many concerns in the first IJC nuclear

You,
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1

task force is required as shown in the reports of

2

those -- of that task force called the "Inventory

3

of Radionuclides for the Great Lakes" and the

4

report of bioaccumulation of elements to accompany

5

the inventory of radionuclides in the Great Lakes

6

Basin.
So I not only want to associate

7
8

myself with the presentations you have just heard,

9

but also with many presentations, I understand,

10

that you've heard earlier, including many of the

11

groups who were part of that coalition to make a

12

presentation.
So once again, to conclude, what

13
14

you must deal with here are insufficiently

15

understood and somewhat very, in a lot of the

16

cases, grim realities.
And I ask you not to succumb to

17
18

any short-term solutions, but to work together with

19

all of us to try to end the nuclear system as a

20

whole because we do not need it, either for

21

security or energy.
I have here -- I thank you for the

22
23

opportunity to talk to you to outline some of my

24

concerns.

25

I have a copy of my presentation,
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1

hardcopy, for your convenience if you would like to

2

have that.

3

copy of this book about the testimony regarding the

4

Serpent River experience.

And I would like also to give you this

5

Thank you.

6

THE CHAIRPERSON:

7

Dwyer.
Thank you for your offer.

8
9

Thank you, Ms.

We do

rely on the transcripts for the oral statements.

10

And the provision of information that hadn't

11

already been submitted in advance through the usual

12

process is not possible at this time.

13

you for the offer.
Panel Members, did you have any

14
15

questions of either of these presenters?
Do we have any questions from --

16
17
18
19
20
21

But thank

okay.
So thank you very much, Ms. Dwyer.
Thank you very much, Ms. Mihalicz, for your time.
I think we can now proceed to our
next two scheduled oral statements.

22

Originally, we had a scheduled

23

oral statement by Mr. Pat McNamara, Mr. McNamara

24

cancelled this morning so we will proceed to the

25

next scheduled presenter, Mr. Keith Battler.
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Mr. Battler, go ahead.

1
2

--- ORAL STATEMENT BY KEITH BATTLER:
MR. BATTLER:

3

Dr. Swanson and

4

Members of the Joint Review Panel, I'd like to

5

first thank you for this opportunity to speak about

6

the OPG's Deep DGR project for low and intermediate

7

waste.
I am Keith Battler, a resident of

8
9

Kincardine for 23 years.

I have a home, raised a

10

family and intend to spend many more years here.

11

I'm involved in the support of

12

community initiatives such as the Women's House at

13

Bruce County, Bluewater Summer Playhouse,

14

Kincardine and Minor District Sports.
I've been a realtor for 23 years

15
16

and started developing condominiums in 2002.

17

date, I have done four properties totalling 50

18

individual units.

19

developing two more projects which will provide

20

another 51 units.

21

To

I am currently in the midst of

I provided an oral statement in

22

2006 scoping hearing in support of the DGR project,

23

and I’m here today to show my continued support for

24

the OPG's Deep Geological Repository for low and

25

intermediate level waste.
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1

I am aware that OPG currently

2

manages low and intermediate level waste at the

3

Bruce site on a temporary basis.

4

from Pickering, Darlington and Bruce generating

5

stations, and is stored aboveground, although some

6

of the intermediate level waste is just beneath the

7

surface in in-ground containers.
This has been a well-established

8
9

The waste comes

practice for over four decades.
I'm also aware the nuclear

10
11

industry is well regulated by the Canadian Nuclear

12

Safety Commission and must comply with set

13

standards to ensure public safety and the safety of

14

the environment.

15

I have lived, worked and raised

16

two children in the Kincardine community for over

17

two decades.

18

am not worried about my safety, my family's safety

19

or that of my neighbours and friends.

I can stand here and truthfully say I

I trust Bruce Power, OPG and the

20
21

regulators to do their job as they have for many

22

decades.

23

I am not a geologist or a

24

technical expert, but I understand the DGR will be

25

constructed in rock formations 680 metres beneath
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1

the Bruce site.

Investigation and the science of

2

showing these rocks safely accommodate the waste

3

permanently without fear of contamination to

4

groundwater, drinking water of the Lake Huron.
I walk the shoreline almost every

5
6

morning before leaving to work, so protecting the

7

shoreline and the lake is important to me.
I personally believe placing waste

8
9

600 metres beneath the surface in stable rock

10

formation is preferable as a permanent storage

11

method to what we have now.

12

the many years of sciences behind this project, and

13

I support moving forward with it.

14

like to turn my attention to my area of expertise,

15

which is selling, buying and developing real estate

16

in Kincardine.

17

I trust and believe

However, I would

I have heard some discussion here

18

and in the media around fears that the DGR Project

19

will affect property values.

20

difference in property values between Kincardine

21

and Port Elgin, as Kincardine has fallen by 33,000

22

between 2009 and 2000 and conclude -- 2012 and

23

concluded the decline must be the result of the

24

proposed DGR Project.

25

Some have cited the

As long as I have been an agent
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1

here, which is 23 years, there has always been a

2

disparity in the prices between Kincardine and

3

Saugeen Shores.

4

Elgin and Southampton.

Saugeen Shores includes both Port

Prices in Saugeen Shores have

5
6

always been higher.

7

stretch of nice beach and property values along

8

their beach is higher as a result and there are a

9

greater number of these properties, thus the

10

Saugeen Shores has a greater

average sale price is higher than in Kincardine.
I’d like to point out that when I

11
12

quote the sales average -- Kincardine sales

13

averages, these quote do not include Huron

14

Township, which is to the south in Kincardine where

15

the majority of our lakefront properties are

16

situated.

17

According to the Grey Bruce MLS

18

statistics, in 2009 the average sale price in

19

Saugeen Shores was 262,000, while the average sale

20

price in Kincardine was 232,000.

21

2013, the average sale price in Saugeen Shores is

22

275,000 and in Kincardine is 246,000.

23

Year to date in

In the past five years, values in

24

both places have not dropped, but rather risen.

25

Saugeen Shores’ average sale price is up by five
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1

percent, while Kincardine is up by six percent.
This disparity between the two

2
3

places has remained the same in the last couple of

4

years and values in both markets have levelled.

5

my opinion, this levelling is a direct result of

6

the completion of the restart at Bruce A.

In

Our Grey Bruce Real Estate Board

7
8

extends as far north to Georgian Bay-Collingwood

9

area, down to the south of Huron-Kinloss Township

10

and east to Mount Forest.

Within the Grey Bruce

11

area, there are 20 regions.

12

these 20 regions are running from the highest

13

average sale price to the lowest.

Overall values in

In 2009, Saugeen Shores was ranked

14
15

fourth out of the 20, Kincardine was ranked fifth

16

out of the 20.

17

climbed to second out of the 20 and Kincardine has

18

climbed to fourth.

19

our real estate values are probably one of the most

20

stable in all of the Grey Bruce area and there is

21

no indication of decline.

22

Year to date, Saugeen Shores has

This would indicate to me that

My experience has been that there

23

are factors around the workforce at the Bruce

24

Nuclear site which affects the happen -- what

25

happens to property values and not any particular
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1

project.

During the 1998-99 decommissioning of

2

Bruce A and the heavy water plant, property values

3

dropped by 50 percent.

4

Power took over and began refurbishing of Bruce A,

5

property values have steadily risen and as much as

6

quadrupling in some areas.

Since 2002, when Bruce

As I mentioned earlier, values

7
8

have levelled recently and as a result of Bruce A

9

construction being completion.
Ninety-five (95) percent of what

10
11

influences market values here is just like the rest

12

of Ontario; it is simply supply, demand and

13

interest rates.
I would note that the nuclear has

14
15

been here since the 1950s with Douglas Point, and

16

so nuclear waste has also been here for that length

17

of time.

18

I can assure you the DGR Project

19

is not affecting the current real estate market.

20

have personally never had any client ask me about

21

this project or express concerns that it will

22

impact the value of their property.

23

To date, all of the real estate

24

forms we deal with for buying and selling have

25

disclosures relating to windmills and windmill
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1

projects, but there’s nothing to nuclear site or

2

the DGR.
Nuclear remains the economic life

3
4

blood of our region.

5

have been investing in properties here and have

6

known they are buying near a nuclear plant.

7

have watched their investments steadily increase in

8

value.

9

employment of Bruce Power, real estate in our area

10

Since the fifties, people

They

Thanks to the consistent and reliable

still offers a sound long-term investment.
The DGR will provide approximately

11
12

200 peak construction jobs and about 40 permanent

13

operational positions, plus the economic spending.

14

This is a plus and will affect property values in a

15

positive way.

16

I support the DGR Project because

17

I believe it is a safe solution for low and

18

intermediate level waste which is currently stored

19

on a temporary basis aboveground.

20

DGR will add value to the existing nuclear industry

21

at the Bruce site and it will provide economic

22

benefits to our area.

23

I believe the

As a realtor and a developer, I do

24

not believe this project will negatively affect my

25

current investments or any potential opportunity or
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1

future developments.

I support moving forward with

2

the construction of the DGR for low and

3

intermediate level waste.

4

Thank you.

5

THE CHAIRPERSON:

6

Thank you, Mr.

Battler.
If you could just remain and we’ll

7
8

go to the next presenter, and then the Panel may

9

have some questions.
So our next presenter is Ms.

10
11

Randle-Clayton from Coldwell Banker.
(SHORT PAUSE/COURTE PAUSE)

12
13

--- ORAL STATEMENT BY COLDWELL BANKER:
MS. RANDLE-CLAYTON:

14

Good

15

afternoon, Madam Chair, Panel Members, ladies and

16

gentlemen.
My name is Charlene Randle-

17
18

Clayton, and I would like to thank you for the

19

opportunity to speak today regarding this important

20

initiative of building a Deep Geologic Repository

21

for Low and Intermediate Level Waste at the Bruce

22

Nuclear site.

23

I have been a resident for -- of

24

Kincardine for the past nine years.

When I moved

25

here, it was cold, snowy February in 2004 and
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1

Highway 21 was closed for two weeks.

My colleagues

2

told me to wait until summer and I would love it

3

here.

4

more snow, the better.

Fortunately for me, I like winter and the

However, my colleagues were right

5
6

and, as you know, as a Panel have experienced some

7

of our gorgeous fall weather to showcase the

8

attributes of Kincardine and this week in Port

9

Elgin.

There is nothing like life on a Great Lake,

10

Lake Huron, in this case, or as I refer to it,

11

Ontario’s inland ocean.
The topic today is the potential

12
13

socio-economic impact of the DGR on the surrounding

14

area.

15

Elgin and Southampton is not only popular with

16

tourists and cottagers, but also has an abundant

17

agricultural industry.

18

agriculture are key economic drivers and large

19

employers in the area.

20

The heartland surrounding Kincardine, Port

Both tourism and

It is important to understand and

21

remember that although, quote, “not everyone works

22

in nuclear”, in our communities we are all impacted

23

by the industry in many ways.

24
25

Our communities are blessed with
an abundance of organizations that support
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1

individuals and families in developing spiritually,

2

culturally, academically, emotionally and

3

physically.

4

Power, Enbridge, AREVA and many others, including

5

thousands of small businesses like my own, quote:

6

“Give back and support the

7

organizations in event in

8

carrying out their missions

9

and mandates and providing a

As good corporate citizens, OPG, Bruce

10

quality of life second to

11

none to individuals and

12

families who reside here.”
When I moved here in 2004, housing

13
14

and rental prices were significantly lower than

15

they are today.

16

refurbishment of Unit 1 and 2 at Bruce Power, both

17

of these numbers began to steadily increase to a

18

peak in 2008 and continue to hold strong.

19

With the announcement of the

Building permits for single-family

20

dwellings in the community and Municipality of

21

Kincardine went from 10.9 million in 2005 to almost

22

doubling to just under 20 million in 2008.

23

subdivisions have come to fruition with new, larger

24

and more expensive homes.

25

Infrastructure improvement
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1

projects have taken place and are currently under

2

way or proposed in Port Elgin, Southampton,

3

Kincardine and Inverhuron, which will enhance our

4

communities.
The growth of our area has led to

5
6

the development to the Penetangore Regional

7

Economic Development Commission, or PREDC, and

8

further collaborations of our Business Improvement

9

Association and Chamber of Commerce in supporting

10

and maintaining existing business as well as

11

attracting new ones.
All of our communities benefit

12
13

from vibrant downtowns with few, if any, empty

14

storefronts compared to communities of similar

15

populations elsewhere in Ontario.

16

businesses have been and are being started by young

17

entrepreneurs.

Many of these

One of the most important aspects

18
19

of my career as a realtor is to be an ambassador

20

for my community.

21

the first point of contact to someone considering

22

relocating to this area.

23

Real estate offices are often

With respect to the DGR Project,

24

the public consultation process has been, in my

25

opinion, both extensive and ongoing.

Both myself
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1

and my husband who is also a realtor have attended

2

several presentations by OPG through the local

3

Chamber of Commerce, Rotary Club, Home Show,

4

Kincardine Scottish Festival and other venues.

5

we have also received OPG newsletters as well as

6

being kept informed through the local media.

And

My husband who has been unable to

7
8

attend any of the Panel hearings as a spectator

9

because he is recuperating from surgery has been a

10

resident in this area since 1951 and a full-time

11

resident of Inverhuron, a community within 2

12

kilometres from Douglas Point, BNPD or similarly

13

Bruce Power for 25 years, from 1973 through to

14

1998.

We now however reside in Huron Township.
In discussing the DGR with him, he

15
16

has made some observations which I am going to

17

share with you.

18

and points made here over the past few weeks, this

19

is neither -- my presentation is neither a

20

statistical nor empirically proven data.

21

however a very important commentary on what drives

22

the area and what we love and cherish about living

23

in the Bruce Peninsula.

24
25

Unlike many of the presentations

It is

These observations are made about
the public dynamic, around changes at the Bruce
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1

site through the years.

2

not only public reaction, but more importantly, in

3

the current context of the public trust and

4

consequently a non-reaction to many of the changes

5

that have taken place at the plant over the years.

6

It is an observation of

In the past couple of weeks, a

7

handful of very active, community-minded people,

8

professionals, long-time residents have commented

9

on the fact that they personally have not been

10

involved in or even have attended to observe the

11

DGR hearings, but upon reflection think maybe

12

perhaps they should have.

13

All comments came from apparent

14

supporters of the project, and I can’t help but

15

think that this handful represents thousands of

16

people who also think the same thing.

17

partially because of these comments, and I am one

18

of those people by the way, that I wish to share

19

observations from the past 60 years of my husband

20

being part of this community.

21

It is

It is just human nature for us to

22

react to or oppose change.

Fear often is defined

23

as false evidence appearing real.

24

first white dome at Douglas Point, there were

25

always questions, doubt, even suspicion and what

From the very

INTERNATIONAL REPORTING INC.

253

1

ifs about the future, all rightly so.
Many of the residents in the area

2
3

by 1950 were second and third generation families.

4

It’s an area where those long-time families stay,

5

come back to and if they do leave for a while, and

6

where those families welcome all those who come and

7

who usually stay and call this home.
The technology at the start was

8
9

cutting-edge as is the research, technology and

10

tools used or to be used in designing and

11

developing the DGR project today.
But as a result of the trust that

12
13

grew out of working shoulder to shoulder with the

14

builders of this new idea back in the fifties, and

15

through education and definite and transparent

16

policies and procedures concerning public safety,

17

security and health, the residents began to trust

18

and thrive in what has always appeared to me that

19

the public’s best interests was paramount in that

20

priority and the area has prospered well and grown

21

because of that.

22

Yes, there will be objectors and

23

there always are objectors as there well should be.

24

Through that question and objection process come

25

new answers, greater insight and resolve.
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1
2

all learn from that process.
But a large portion of the

3

resident and seasonal population remain trusting

4

and satisfied that their best interests are being

5

looked after even in their absence.

6

AECL, Ontario Hydro, OPG and Bruce

7

Power and all the related government and public

8

bodies, departments, organizations have always

9

proven that they have done their best to continue

10
11

to put the public’s best interests first.
Rarely, if ever, do I hear anyone

12

suggest that that trust was misplaced.

13

that trust continues to grow and can be seen here

14

every day by the continued investment in this area

15

at all levels and in all sectors.

16

Proof of

And fortunately or unfortunately,

17

I believe it’s this trust and belief that has been

18

growing and prospering for the last fifty-some

19

years that keeps many area residents doing what

20

they do and that’s living their life trusting like

21

they have over these past 50 years and not having

22

to come here today and speak or even show up.

23

That means trusting in the process

24

and that the process will work.

25

they be criticized for that?

However, should

Absolutely not.
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1

are extremely fortunate to live in a society and a

2

country where governmental processes and framework

3

which look after making things safe for us exist.

4

This knowing and trusting of that

5

system is as so many of us locals do, may look like

6

we don’t care, don’t support the proposed DGR.

7

I simply ask that it would be a

8

mistake to assume the latter, to assume that more

9

chairs are not filled with those who are speaking

10

out than those who are not because those who are

11

not here don’t care would be a miscarriage of

12

judgment.

13

I ask you as a Panel to consider

14

that they do care, consider that they have been

15

safely cared for for over the last 50 plus years by

16

all those participants and operators and that trust

17

and belief allows them to go about looking after

18

what they have to care for and knowing that the

19

area will continue to prosper and grow as it has

20

because there are controls, checks, double checks,

21

systems and people who care along with them, making

22

the right decisions.

23

Both my husband and I support

24

moving forward with OPG’s DGR and we trust OPG as

25

well as the Canadian Nuclear Safety Commission to
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1

ensure it is constructed and operated safely on

2

behalf of our residents and the environment.

3

Thank you.

4

THE CHAIRPERSON:

5

I’ve noticed the time, and so Mr.

Thank you.

6

Battler and also Ms. Randle-Clayton, if after the

7

15-minute break if you could resume your seats at

8

the tables because there will be some questions for

9

both of you, but we will now adjourn for a break

10

and reconvene at 3:55.
Thank you.

11
12
13
14
15

--- Upon recessing at 3:38 p.m./
L’audience est suspendue à 15h38
--- Upon resuming at 3:55 p.m./
L’audience est reprise à 15h55
THE CHAIRPERSON:

16
17

everyone.
We’ll proceed with questions for

18
19

the last two presenters.
Panel Members, did you have some

20
21
22
23
24
25

Welcome back,

questions?
Dr. Archibald?
--- QUESTIONS BY THE PANEL:
MEMBER ARCHIBALD:
question to Mr. Battler.

This is a

I just wanted to get
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1

confirmation please on the inclusion on sales forms

2

and that they have no disclosures relating to the,

3

was it nuclear plants or to the DGR and only to

4

turbines and other factors.
MR. BATTLER:

5

Our forms, either

6

listing a house, listing property or selling

7

property.

8

on the nuclear plant or the DGR, but they both have

9

disclosures for windmills and windmill properties

10

None of them have any form of disclosure

or farms as you want to call it.
MEMBER ARCHIBALD:

11

Are these

12

regulated disclosures that are required in this

13

area?
MR. BATTLER:

14

They’re provided by

15

the Ontario Real Estate Association, so it’s more

16

than just this area.
MEMBER ARCHIBALD:

17
18

Thank you very

much.
MEMBER MUECKE:

19

My question goes

20

to both Ms. Randle-Clayton and Mr. Battler, in that

21

order.
Have you had an opportunity to

22
23

review the property value protection plan that is

24

proposed by OPG?

25

professional, do you think it meets industry

And if you have, as a real estate
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1

standards?
MS. RANDLE-CLAYTON:

2
3

Ms. Randle-

Clayton, for the record.
I did review briefly the property

4
5

value program that is proposed.

6

opportunity to really look at that in-depth, I will

7

be taking more time to do so.
After review, there may be some

8
9

I did not have an

recommendations that I may want to make and I would

10

be happy to submit that in writing to the Review

11

Panel.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

12

That actually,

13

Ms. Randle-Clayton becomes an undertaking is what

14

we call it, and this one will be Number 60, I

15

believe.

16

So after view of the property

17

value protection plan, please provide the Panel

18

with the results of that review.

19

that those results be provided to us prior to the

20

end of our hearings, which will be October 30th.

21

--- UNDERTAKING NO./ENGAGEMENT No. U-60:

And we would ask

22

By Ms. Randle-Clayton to the JPR

23

to provide a review of the

24

Property Value Protection Plan

25

included in the DGR Hosting
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1

Agreement.

2

THE CHAIRPERSON:

3

guess the same question to you and you may be added

4

to the undertaking.

Mr. Battler, I

5

MR. BATTLER:

It’s Keith Battler.

6

I have not reviewed it.

I really

7

don’t know anything about it so I can’t comment on

8

it at all.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

9
10

I guess

it’s up to Ms. Randle-Clayton.
Did you have further questions,

11
12

Okay.

Dr. Muecke?

13

MEMBER MUECKE:

14

THE CHAIRPERSON:

No.
I had a question

15

but it’s taking advantage of the presence of some

16

of the ministries.

17

Curtis, of Municipal Affairs and Housing, as well

18

as Mr. Laidley, of Regional Economic Development

19

Branch, of the Ministry of Agriculture and Food.

20

So my question is to Mr.

And my question to both of you is

21

does your ministry have any evidence regarding

22

effects of the proposed DGR on housing or land

23

prices, availability of housing stock or reduction

24

in new economic development opportunities?

25

Or do you have evidence regarding
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1

reduction or potential reduction in value of

2

agricultural products?
And I guess if you could comment

3
4

not only on the proposed DGR but your experience

5

with respect to the existence of Bruce Power and

6

OPG in the communities, for the last many years.
So Mr. Curtis, if I could begin

7
8

with you, please?
Apparently he’s no longer here.

9
10

Apparently -- that’s too bad because I was under

11

the impression he would be today.
Mr. Laidley, are you here?

12
13

phone?

On the

Oh, sorry, there you are.
MR. LAIDLEY:

14

Kevin Laidley with

15

the Ministry of Agriculture and Food and the

16

Ministry of Rural Affairs.
As far as question number one,

17
18

Madam Chair, I’m not aware that the Ministry of

19

Agriculture and Food or the Ministry of Rural

20

Affairs has any evidence around housing stock or

21

reduction of prices for housing stock or anything

22

of that nature.

23
24
25

And I’m just wondering if you
could -- would you mind just repeating the second?
THE CHAIRPERSON:

Yes.
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1

effects on economic development opportunities, both

2

the current situation and looking forward to the

3

proposed DGR.
MR. LAIDLEY:

4

And specific to the

5

DGR, again, I’m not aware of anything that either

6

one of our ministries would have around either past

7

or future opportunities.
Our staff tend to work with groups

8
9

such as municipalities, economic development

10

officers, other organizations, to try to help them

11

get to where they would like to be, with respect to

12

their planning.

13

And our ministry offers a number

14

of tools and resources from that respect but we

15

typically don’t, if you will, drive that process.

16

We try to provide a supportive role.

17

THE CHAIRPERSON:

Thank you.

18

Apparently Municipal Affairs will

19

be here tomorrow, so I will defer my question for

20

them until tomorrow.

21

We now have some questions from

22

participants, starting with Ms. Fernandez.

23

--- QUESTIONS BY THE PUBLIC:

24

MS. FERNANDEZ:

Thank you.

25

first presenter indicated that in Kincardine there
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1

is no need to provide a disclosure about this

2

potential DGR.

3

I wanted to ask if that presenter

4

is aware that in Saugeen Shores there is, in fact,

5

a requirement for real estate agents to provide

6

disclosure about the potential DGR2 that might be

7

located there.

8

nuclear spent fuel.

And that is the DGR to house

This disclosure is required, even

9
10

though Saugeen Shores, at present, is one of 21

11

communities in the running to house this DGR.

12

-- further, it’s my understanding that several

13

purchases have died when people have found out,

14

through this disclosure, that a potential DGR could

15

be in the town.

16

that a mortgage was refused by a Toronto mortgage

17

provider.

18

It’s

And it’s further my understanding

So I am just wondering, why is it

19

that in kin -- that real estate agents in

20

Kincardine do not have to disclose about a DGR that

21

is currently in the environmental assessment phase

22

and is the only DGR under consideration?

23

THE CHAIRPERSON:

Ms. Fernandez, I

24

will ask the question around a disclosure

25

provision, both with respect to the proposed DGR.
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1

However, your question included a number of

2

statements for which the Panel would certainly

3

require evidence before I would proceed with asking

4

any further questions based on that but I will ask

5

the question around the disclosure.
Mr. Battler, and perhaps also Ms.

6
7

Randle—Clayton, if you could comment on -- a little

8

bit further to help the Panel understand the

9

requirements for disclosure.

10

MR. BATTLER:

First, all the forms

11

we deal with are forms provided by Ontario Real

12

Estate Association.

13

lawyers that have developed various clauses for

14

various situations over the years.

They’ve been prepared by

Second of all, the comment talked

15
16

about spent fuel.

17

program that I really don’t know anything about.

18

Kincardine’s not involved in any of that hosting or

19

DGR for the spent fuel.

20

comment about that because it’s not something

21

that’s even in our area or I’m familiar with.

24
25

So I’m unable to even

THE CHAIRPERSON:

22
23

That is a different hosting

Ms. Randle—

Clayton?
MS. RANDLE—CLAYTON:

I would

second Mr. Battler’s comments.
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1

THE CHAIRPERSON:

2

MS. FERNANDEZ?

3

Ms. Fernandez?
That was my

question.

4

THE CHAIRPERSON:

5

MR. ROBERTSON:

Mr. Robertson?
Madam Chair, a

6

question for the two people from the real estate

7

industry.

8

First of all, there’s no dispute,

9

I don’t think, amongst our group anyway, that Bruce

10

Power has had a significant, positive influence on

11

all the communities in Bruce County.

12

a given in but it doesn’t necessarily mean that the

13

waste is a good idea.

I think it’s

But one of the questions I’d like

14
15

to ask and perhaps it’ll clarify some of our

16

concerns.

17

2005 to 2011.

The -- I’m referring to the census data,

There was a growth of one in their

18
19

population during that period and Saugeen Shores

20

grew from -- by 945 during the same period and I

21

just wondered if they could give an explanation why

22

that difference?

23

THE CHAIRPERSON:

Mr. Battler,

24

would you be able to provide some reason for the

25

difference between the two communities?
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MR. BATTLER:

1

I was wondering if

2

you could rephrase that, I really didn’t understand

3

the question.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

4

Yes, Mr.

5

Robertson, are you saying there was only one ---

6

MR. ROBERTSON:

Rather than make

7

it rhetorical, I’ll get right to the chase.

8

town of Kincardine grew by one, during the census

9

period, 2006 to 2011 and Saugeen Shores grew by

10
11

The

945.
And Madam, the research of that

12

census review shows that about 45 percent of those

13

945 were people like me, retirees who moved from

14

the city, and came to Saugeen Shores as a place to

15

retire and enjoy our retirement.

16

But that was the over sixty-fives.

17

There is another group of retirees that have moved

18

to Saugeen Shores that were not included in that

19

data but they would be part of the 945.

20

So what is -- what really I’m

21

trying -- the point I’m trying to make is, while

22

the Bruce has a big impact on all of our

23

communities, what’s at risk in Saugeen Shores,

24

Madam Chair, is the growth.

25

And it’s probably 60 to 70 percent
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1

of the 945 over the last five years could be

2

jeopardized by the stigma effect.

3

everyone, I think, understands that Bruce is good

4

and all those issues, but stigma can really affect

5

a town like Saugeen Shores.
It is growing as a -- as a

6
7

destination for retirees from across Ontario.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

8
9
10

And while

So I’ll direct

this primarily to Ms. Randle-Clayton, and Mr.
Battler, you can weigh in if you would like.
But the way I would paraphrase

11
12

that question is, as a real estate professional, do

13

you have any concerns regarding stigma effects on

14

the influx of particularly retirees into the

15

community of Saugeen Shores caused by the proposed

16

DGR?

17
18
19

MS. RANDLE-CLAYTON:

Charlene

Randle-Clayton, for the record.
In response to the question, which

20

I’m still a little bit confused by, our role as

21

realtors is to be ambassadors for this community,

22

both Saugeen Shores, Port Elgin and Kincardine.

23

The majority of my business is in

24

the Kincardine area and Port Elgin area.

25

Occasionally, I do do business in Southampton.
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1

we have seen an influx of retirees and new

2

families, people who are not working at Bruce

3

Power, and as I mentioned in my remarks, not

4

everyone does work there.

5

other businesses or to start up their own

6

businesses.

People come here for

I do not see the DGR being a

7
8

detriment to this area.

We promote the strengths

9

of our community, the attributes of our community

10

and I talked about the number of building permits.

11

I’ve focussed on single family residential, but

12

there are other developments for adult living, for

13

retirees.
We are seeing a significant number

14
15

of those, both in the building stages and on the

16

books in the development stages waiting for those

17

sites to be ready.

18

do not see a decline.

So my sense would be that no, I

Lake Huron, this area is Ontario’s

19
20

west coast.

It’s for people who want to be near

21

water.

22

waterfront in the country.

We have some of the most affordable

Certainly people from the GTA are

23
24

coming here.

They don’t have to deal with traffic

25

on the 400, the gridlock, they don’t have to deal
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1

with exorbitant property prices or taxes.

So

2

people will be looking to this area now and in the

3

future.
So this is the place to come.

4

I

5

want people to come here and I will do everything I

6

can to get them here.

7

THE CHAIRPERSON:

8

MR. BATTLER:

9

responses to that.

Mr. Battler?

Yes, I have three

First of all, the 965 to 1 can

10

easily be explained, that Saugeen Shores got a Wal-

11

Mart, Kincardine didn’t.

12

here, okay?

So that draws more people

13

(LAUGHTER/RIRES)

14

MR. BATTLER:

15

Not that we’re

bitter about that, but ---

16

(LAUGHTER/RIRES)

17

MR. BATTLER:

As far as retirees

18

go, predominantly in our area, there are two types

19

of retirees that move to this area.

20

seasonal person who has been coming to this area

21

for many, many years as a cottager.

22

retired from the city, they move here on a

23

permanent basis, so therefore, becoming a retiree

24

moving to this area.

25

One is the

Once they have

The second one that is increasing
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1

more and more to our area are the ones whose kids -

2

- and when I say kids, are thirty something and

3

have got a job at the Bruce nuclear power plant,

4

consequently have grandkids, so the retirees are

5

moving here to be closer to their own kids and

6

their grandkids.

7

types of retirees that we deal with in this area.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

8
9

MR. ROBERTSON:

One brief follow-

up, Madam Chair.
I’d like to know how both would

12
13

Thank you, Mr.

Battler.

10
11

That’s predominantly the two

feel if there were two DGRs in this area?
THE CHAIRPERSON:

14

Mr. Robertson,

15

what I think you’re asking is the cumulative

16

effects of the proposed DGR with the used fuel DGR.

17

Is that what you’re referring to?
MR. ROBERTSON:

18

Madam Chair, I

19

would say that prior to September of 2012, when our

20

council proposed the second DGR, DGR issues were of

21

low concern.

22

because we’re faced with that every day.

23

So I think it’s a fair question

THE CHAIRPERSON:

I’m not denying

24

your question; I’m just making sure I understood.

25

MR. ROBERTSON:

Yeah, I mean.
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1

would they feel if there were to be two DGRs in

2

this community?

3

THE CHAIRPERSON:

So both to Ms.

4

Randle-Clayton and to Mr. Battler, have you in your

5

dealings with your clients, encountered any

6

specific concerns over either the proposed DGR

7

project and/or the siting process for the used fuel

8

repository or a combination of both, or do you

9

personally have any concerns or evidence to offer

10

us regarding the potential cumulative effect of

11

both repositories being located in the broader

12

region that you serve as realtors?
So again, perhaps start this time

13
14

with you, Mr. Battler.
MR. BATTLER:

15

Direct answer to the

16

question.

17

great deal about the spent fuel so it’s hard for me

18

to comment on that because I don’t know a lot about

19

that.

20

First of all, I repeat, I don’t know a

What I can tell you is on either

21

issue, the spent fuel or the other DGR that’s being

22

proposed, I have not, from any single client buying

23

or selling any price range of real estate, heard a

24

comment, positive, negative.

25

heard a comment from anybody about that, positive

I have simply not
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1

or negative.

2

What I can tell you at present, I

3

have two, for me, large developments in the books.

4

One is a 32-unit, five storey condominium in the

5

downtown core of Kincardine, 100 percent geared at

6

retirees and senior citizens.

7

planning stage for a couple years and I’m still

8

moving forward with that planning.

I have been in the

I have another project, once again

9
10

geared towards the retirees.

11

18-unit apartment building that is at the building

12

permit stage and I am planning to go ahead 100

13

percent with both of those projects without

14

hesitation.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

15
16

It’s a three storey

Thank you, Mr.

Battler.

17

Ms. Randle-Clayton?

18

MS. RANDLE-CLAYTON:

19

Madam Chair.

Thank you,

Charlene Clayton, for the record.

20

To answer the first question, I

21

have had two clients ask me questions with regard

22

to the DGR.

23

property in Inverhuron and I made them aware of the

24

Joint Review Panel hearings that are going on and

25

that they would have the opportunity to come at any

One of those clients is looking for
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1

time and sit in and observe.
We’re working through the process.

2
3

I have been keeping them informed and up to date.

4

There were other questions that they had with

5

regard to the property.

6

process and I’m anticipating that we’re going to be

7

putting an offer on paper.
With regard to the spent fuel,

8
9
10

We’re working through that

again, just echoing Mr. Battler’s comments, I don’t
have enough information to really comment on that.
What I feel is it’s very early

11
12

stages and it would be premature to people to jump

13

to conclusions as to what may or may not happen.

14

have been involved in these processes before, I

15

worked in the public sector at Queen’s Park for 10

16

years and then for two years as a lobbyist in the

17

private sector.

18

handling both sides of what could be deemed to be a

19

quote “sensitive topic”.

20

I

So I’m very well versed in

What is most important is that we

21

provide our clients, both buyers and sellers, with

22

information to make an informed decision.

23

So I take it as my responsibility

24

to provide them with printed materials from

25

wherever I can get them or direct them to Web sites
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1

to do their own due diligence because my opinion

2

does not matter.

3

It’s up to the buyer or the seller to make the

4

final decision; I can merely provide guidance and

5

information for them.

They have to feel comfortable.

So in that regard, the second

6
7

question was from a client, but it was from their

8

friends in the city.

9

heard?

And they said, “Oh have you

They’re going to put this in the

10

neighbourhood.

11

property there”.

You really don’t want to buy

And I said, “And was that based on

12
13

a headline in one of the Toronto papers”, “Well,

14

yes it was”.
So that being said, I live here.

15
16

I do business here.

17

Battler has been here.

18

well, thriving, we’re not dying.

19

that happening.

20

My husband grew up here.

Mr.

This community is alive and
I don’t foresee

Property values are stable.

They

21

have increased over the last 10 years.

22

being said, my job is to provide information and

23

that client is also proceeding and purchasing.

24

THE CHAIRPERSON:

25

Mr. Mann?

So that

Thank you.
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1

MR. MANN:

Thank you, Dr. Swanson.

2

I think we can all agree as

3

between Kincardine, Southampton and Port Elgin,

4

Port Elgin definitely has the best sunsets.
I'm going to seek leave for the

5
6

following, Dr. Swanson.
I can remember before the nuclear

7
8

industry came to town Port Elgin was a population

9

of 2,000, Kincardine a population of 2,000,

10

Southampton a population of 1,800.

The amalgamated

11

today -- the amalgamated Kincardine is 12,000,

12

amalgamated Saugeen Shores is 12,000.
My concern is when the nuclear

13
14

industry seems inevitably to disappear within the

15

next 100 or 200 years, these two towns will become

16

ghost towns.

17

That's my concern.
My question is, since this project

18

is forever, has OPG considered the socio-economic

19

problems that will inevitably arise once the

20

nuclear industry no longer exists in our community,

21

probably within the next 100 to 200 years, while

22

leaving an abandoned DGR left behind?

23

THE CHAIRPERSON:

OPG, perhaps if

24

you can remind the Panel of the evidence regarding

25

the sequence that we would undergo when we -- at
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1

the point in time when we would get to perhaps the

2

end of life of the Bruce facility, just in general,

3

in terms of the kind of planning as a corporation

4

that you or your fellow corporations in the nuclear

5

industry may go through regarding planning in

6

advance for your departure?

7

MR. KING:

8
9

Frank King, for the

record.
Just speaking about the DGR

10

project and its long-term future, if a licence is

11

granted to construct, of course, it will be

12

constructed over a period of a number of years.

13

will go into operation for several -- many decades.

14

It

But at the time when OPG decides

15

that it's at its end of life it goes through a very

16

structured process to -- go through two more

17

licensing stages, goes through a decommissioning

18

phase, which is under a separate licence.

19

Once the repository is closed, it

20

-- after some period of time, it requires an

21

abandonment licence.

22

licence, the official name of the licence that's

23

used in our regulatory system.

24
25

That is the name of the

What happens then is the
repository is in a passively safe state.
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1

THE CHAIRPERSON:

So Mr. King, our

2

actual question is, does either -- and this really

3

more directed to OPG.
As a corporation, does OPG

4
5

include, in your general business philosophy,

6

vision practices as a corporate citizen plan in

7

advance for the day when you will not be here

8

anymore, such that we don't get the boom-bust?
I am hinting that you did have a

9
10

discussion of that in your socio-economic

11

Environmental Impact Statement, and perhaps we

12

could have a reminder of what OPG is anticipating

13

around avoidance of the boom-bust.
MS. SWAMI:

14
15

Laurie Swami, for the

record.
So the specific of what's in the

16
17

documentation -- I'll ask Tom -- sorry, Tom.

18

late in the day.

It's

19

But in terms of how we would go

20

about as an industry separate from perhaps what's

21

in the documentation, so as you know, we've talked

22

a little bit about the Pickering site.

23

be into its shutdown in 2020, and that will mean

24

that we will change the economic makeup of the

25

Pickering community to some extent with six units
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1

coming offline, a large number of employees that

2

work at our facility.
We're starting our planning phase

3
4

for that now to look at what kind of economic

5

impact that would have within the community.
So we've initiated a process to

6
7

look at what we're calling repurposing of the

8

Pickering facility and what that would look like

9

going forward.

10

opportunities.

And there are a number of

It is an industrial site, as this

11
12

one is, that you would look to what other

13

opportunities are out there to continue to have

14

some type of industrial development in the area.

15

The other comment I would make

16

with respect to energy, the energy sector,

17

currently nuclear provides a fairly significant

18

portion of the generation in this province.

19

you know, with respect to when we would stop

20

nuclear generation in this province, I think it's

21

premature to even start talking about that, let

22

alone planning for that.

23

would expect to continue for many years into the

24

future.

25

So,

That's something that I

And as we'll see with the current
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1

long-term energy plan in the province and likely in

2

the future long-term energy plan, it's an

3

expectation that nuclear generation will continue

4

for the foreseeable future for this province.

5

THE CHAIRPERSON:

6

Mr. Mann?

7

MR. MANN:

Thank you.

One industry town like

8

Port Elgin or Saugeen Shores and Kincardine are --

9

my concern for our future generations are that

10

they'll revert back to the town of 2,000, town of -

11

- in Port Elgin, town of 2,000 in Kincardine.

12

--THE CHAIRPERSON:

13
14

MR. MANN:

19

Well, it's a

devastating effect on the --THE CHAIRPERSON:

17
18

What's your

question?

15
16

And

Yes, but that's

a statement.
So we just heard Ms. Swami

20

describe an example of what OPG is doing in terms

21

of planning in Pickering.

22

that you need to know at this time, Mr. Mann?

23

MR. MANN:

Is there anything else

Well, do they -- in

24

their socio-economic reports and studies, did they

25

take into consideration that there will be nothing
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1

to replace the nuclear industry in Saugeen Shores

2

and Kincardine and, thus, be devastating to our

3

economy?
I mean, have they thought that

4
5

through?

Unlike Pickering, where they can get

6

other industry.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

7

What I think we

8

heard from Ms. Swami was a pretty clear response,

9

Mr. Mann, which is they don't anticipate the need

10

for that in the foreseeable future.
You may or may not agree, but we

11
12

got the answer from OPG.
Mr. Laidley, perhaps you could

13
14

comment also in terms of economic development and

15

diversification, whether your Ministry has, in

16

fact, been putting any emphasis on diversification,

17

in particularly in this region?
MR. LAIDLEY:

18

Kevin Laidley with

19

the Ministry of Agriculture and Food and the

20

Ministry of Rural Affairs.
I think it's fair to say, Madam

21
22

Chair, that the Ministry encourages communities to

23

look at diversification of their economy in

24

general.

25

And with respect to this
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1

particular community or communities, as it's been

2

described, our staff would be in ongoing

3

conversations with them on what their plans are and

4

encourage them to take advantage of any tools and

5

planning to get to diversification if they choose

6

to do that.
But we would definitely make them

7
8

aware of the advantages of that.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

9

Thank you.

And just as a note of information,

10
11

there was an information request about the boom-

12

bust issue.

13

might want to have a look at that response as well.

It was IR 08-369, for those of you who

That brings us to the end of the

14
15

questions.

Thank you very much, Mr. Battler, and

16

Ms. Randle-Clayton.
Our next oral statement is on

17
18

behalf of the Port Elgin Tourist Association by Mr.

19

John Miller, who is making his way forward, so

20

we'll just pause for a minute.

21

(SHORT PAUSE/COURTE PAUSE)

22

THE CHAIRPERSON:

Mr. Miller,

23

please proceed.

You have 10 minutes.

24

--- ORAL STATEMENT BY PORT ELGIN TOURIST

25

ASSOCIATION:
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MR. MILLER:

1
2

Thank you, Madam

Chair.
I am here today to represent the

3
4

Port Elgin Tourist Association.

We, like OPG, have

5

a 40-year history of operating in this beautiful

6

part of Ontario.
We have a very simple creed we

7
8

operate by.

We promote the Town of Port Elgin to

9

keep the tourist industry alive, to stand for

10

beautification and betterment of our community,

11

create fellowship and understanding within the

12

association and to play an active part in all

13

community functions aimed at attracting tourism.
I would like to thank you for the

14
15

opportunity to present at this time as part of

16

these hearings.
To this point we have been

17
18

disappointed with some of the statements that have

19

come from other groups concerning tourism.

20

believe that some of these are attempting to use

21

our tourism to justify their opinions.

22

seem to have the understanding that the best thing

23

we can do for our tourism is have a strong,

24

friendly, active community for people to come and

25

enjoy ---
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THE CHAIRPERSON:

1
2

(LAUGHTER/RIRES)

4

THE CHAIRPERSON:

--- for the sake

of our translators, that would be great.

6

Thank you.

7

MR. MILLER:

8

afternoon.

9

here.

Well it’s been a long

I don’t want to waste my 10 minutes

10

(LAUGHTER/RIRES)

11

MR. MILLER:

12

Can

I ask you to slow down just a bit ---

3

5

Mr. Miller?

Thank you, Madam

Speaker.
Our tourist does not ask why we

13
14

have a beautiful beach, they just want us to.

Most

15

of our members they’re very hands-on with their

16

business.

We meet and greet the people every day.
The unfair stories in reporting

17
18

that we have heard from many of these groups has

19

created a less than friendly atmosphere within our

20

town that is for sure.
Even as this hearing was starting,

21
22

the stories that the OPP were being used to

23

influence the hearing is simply ridiculous.

24

did receive a call from the OPP but found it only

25

to be helpful.

I too

Those clearly not in favour of the
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1

plan used it as an opportunity and another way to

2

create negativity with the process.
It is our understanding that a

3
4

long-term storage plan is a necessary part of the

5

ongoing operation in productions of power.

6

what we are talking about, a better and safer way

7

to accommodate waste.

That is

8

From the time the idea was talked

9

about a number of years ago, we have worked to keep

10

ourselves informed.

We asked questions, we went to

11

open houses, we talked to our friends and

12

neighbours.
In our business world, it’s

13
14

important not only for ourselves but for our

15

customers.

16

to the best beach in the area, up to date

17

information on what time the Trews are playing,

18

where can I get dinner, but also what’s the story

19

behind all those yellow signs.

Not only do we need to know how to get

What we have seen as always is

20
21

people do have questions and concerns, most lately

22

it’s been about the signs.
We try not to look at this as a

23
24

bad thing.

Once given an answer our customers are

25

quite happy; they’re able to enjoy the rest of
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1
2

their visit quite comfortably.
One of the difficulties we see

3

that comes with this process to this point is that

4

when given an answer, a minority of people choose

5

simply not to believe it.

6

story, this is what our tourist hears and currently

7

this is where our tourism is being hurt.

8
9

That then becomes the

We believe that the process not
only needs to be fair to all involved but also

10

needs to have a timeline with a conclusion.

11

would be a real shame in our eyes to spend months

12

and months going around in circles talking about

13

the same things over and over, hurting everyone for

14

a project that may never come to happen.

15

It

If it does happen then we look

16

forward to the opportunity to move forward in

17

working with our partners at OPG as we always have.

18

This area has always had and continues to have

19

great tourism with nuclear as a good neighbour.

20

new way of storage will not change that.

21

A

We do believe that there are

22

risks, as with any project, especially one this

23

size, but that these are and can be handled through

24

processes just like this one.

25

At this point, like our partners
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1

in the Saugeen Shores Chamber of Commerce, we can

2

see no reason for the project not to continue.

3

will, however, continue to be involved to the point

4

and stay informed so we can better serve our

5

customers, our guests and our community.

6

Thank you.

7

THE CHAIRPERSON:

8

We

Thank you, Mr.

Miller.
We’ll proceed directly to the

9
10

presentation by Mr. Storck and then after Mr.

11

Storck has completed we’ll open the floor for

12

questions, first from the Panel and then possibly

13

from participants.
So Mr. Storck, please proceed.

14
15

--- ORAL STATEMENT BY MR. PETER STORCK:
MR. STORCK:

16
17
18

Peter Storck, for the

record.
Madam Chair and Panel Members, I’m

19

a full-time resident of Saugeen Shores.

20

senior curator emeritus at a large Canadian museum

21

where I enjoyed a 30-year career in research and

22

public communication. I have a PhD in Anthropology

23

with a speciality in Environmental Archaeology.

24
25

I’m also a

As an archaeologist, my research
focused on the earliest part of the prehistoric
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record in Ontario, encompassing the latter part of

2

the ice age and involved frequent collaborative

3

work with Palaeozoic and Pleistocene geologists.

4

I’m appearing here today to ask

5

you to refuse OPG’s application for a licence to

6

construct a DGR.

7

technical reports commissioned and assembled by OPG

8

to investigate and document the feasibility of

9

safely burying nuclear waste.

I’m aware of the large number of

I’m also aware of

10

the weakness of the scientific evidence because it

11

is based -- computer modelling and analogue

12

studies.
I have no argument with the

13
14

quality of the geoscience.

Collectively, however,

15

the work is not definitive.

There are reasonable

16

doubts that deep burial can be done safely.

17

accentuated by the geological context and methods

18

of containment which, in combination, would be

19

unique in world experience, untested, new

20

technology.

Doubts

The success or failure of the

21
22

project will only become known in the future after

23

the fact.

24

for believing that burying nuclear waste would be a

25

mistake.

Finally, there are historical reasons
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I would like to remind the Panel

1
2

of some examples of human failure in the use of

3

technology, beginning with the sinking of the

4

Titanic in April of 1912, with the loss of at least

5

1,517 lives.

6

to be virtually unsinkable.

7

believed that the ship was sunk by collision with

8

an iceberg.

The Titanic was designed and thought
Today it is widely

This is only partly true.

9

Remote

10

sensing of the wreck reveals that the starboard

11

side of the hull was damaged by glancing blow which

12

split the riveted seams of the hull plates.

13

Forensic engineering analysis of the hull plates

14

and the rivets retrieved from the bow section

15

indicate that the steel was adequate but that the

16

wrought iron rivets securing the hull plates were

17

made from, quote:

18

“…substandard materials […]

19

already loaded near their

20

ultimate strength when

21

installed.”

22

Our cargo records of corporate

23

meetings indicate that in order to meet the

24

deadline for building the ship, these rivets were

25

used because others certified for the job were not
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1

available.

Thus, the Titanic sank because of a

2

cascade of small but compounding errors that

3

converged in a single event.
These errors include ad hoc

4
5

corporate decisions during the construction of the

6

ship, a course and speed of the ship despite

7

warnings of icebergs, outdated safety regulations

8

and the lack of sufficient lifeboats, insufficient

9

crew training in the handling of those boats and

10

over confidence in the design and technology behind

11

the ship.
Other more recent examples of

12
13

human error, these in the nuclear industry include

14

three major accidents at nuclear power facilities,

15

Three Mile Island, Chernobyl and Fukushima Daiichi,

16

11 other serious reactor and fuel cycle accidents

17

since 1952, as well as the Asse II DGR failure in

18

Germany.

19

Tragedies in the national -- in

20

the NASA space program should also be mentioned

21

because they occurred in one of the world’s largest

22

scientific organizations, certainly comparable to

23

the nuclear industry.

24
25

NASA tragedies include the Apollo
1 launch pad fire in 1967, 3 dead; the loss of the
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Challenger Space Shuttle in 1986, 7 dead; and the

2

loss of the Columbia Space Shuttle in 2003, 7 dead.

3

It’s also appropriate to mention

4

the tragedy closer to home, the contamination in

5

the year 2000 of public drinking water in

6

Walkerton, 7 dead, 2,300 ill.

7

All of these tragedies were caused

8

by human error in one or more of the following:

9

the misapplication of technology, faulty design,

10

organizational failure due to production or

11

political pressures, attitudes to risk management,

12

often called the normalization of risk, in essence,

13

if it worked once despite known risks it will work

14

again, failures in government licensing and

15

regulation and even human negligence.

16

Another source of human error is

17

referred to benignly as knowledge management, a

18

term arising from activities at the Bruce Facility

19

in the early 1990s after it was discovered that

20

reactor design was being stressed by inappropriate

21

modifications or maintenance.

22

These and other human errors and

23

failures will occur if we decide to bury nuclear

24

waste, guaranteed.

25

would we prefer these errors and failures to occur?

The question then becomes where
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The alternative question is do we want them to

2

happen at all?
The scale of any tragedy would

3
4

affect millions of people and unnumbered

5

generations into the future.

6

risks.

7

been discussing at these hearings fail.

We face extraordinary

This is precisely where the process we have

The EA process applied to a DGR

8
9

poses a very different problem from that concerning

10

the subdivision, an expressway, a shopping centre,

11

three examples of more usual applications.
The principal difference is that

12
13

the DGR will go through a long construction period,

14

followed by second licence application to become

15

operational, as well as numerous regulatory

16

approvals from different agencies and levels of

17

government.

18

This fragmented and multi-

19

generational process means that the design and even

20

the function of the project will not be fixed at

21

any one moment in time.

22

It also means that the Review

23

Panel is being asked to evaluate a project that

24

will only become fully defined in the future.

25

the Panel is expected to do this based only on
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knowledge available today.
Because of the unrecoverable

2
3

consequences that leak from a DGR, no uncertainty

4

should be acceptable.

5

application of calculated risk and decisions about

6

the burial of nuclear waste.

7

industry, calculated risk is measured by the number

8

of deaths or injuries per nuclear incident, the

9

number of incidents per cumulative reactor years or

We should reject the

In the nuclear

10

deep burial storage years, to mention but three.

11

This statistical approach, even

12

the most subjective approach OPG uses in the EIS

13

expressed by the phrases “not likely” or “very

14

unlikely” is an attempt to determine a threshold of

15

acceptability.
We should reject this approach and

16
17

think instead of the issue in terms of choices.

18

fact, there are two sets of choices.

19

choice between, one, a deep repository or, two,

20

other management storage options.

In

OPG faces a

Society’s choice is different; to

21
22

accept the risk of irreversible damage to the

23

environment or, two, require change in the nuclear

24

industry.

25

obvious; no risk.

For society, the choice should be
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We should be firm on this.

1

While

2

risk is often necessary in our lives, in this one

3

area of human activity, the disposal of nuclear

4

waste by burial, we should make an exception; no

5

risk.
We have heard many times at this

6
7

hearing reference to best practice and other

8

euphemisms about collective wisdom.

9

reminded that these and other phrases such as

We should be

10

“industry standard” and “international consensus”

11

are moving targets.
They change from time to time as

12
13

knowledge improves.

Each generation believes in

14

the consensus it created, yet each generation’s

15

consensus is often abandoned by the succeeding

16

generation.

17

I’m reminded of the adage that

18

change revolutions begin at the edge, not in the

19

middle or with the establishment.

20

we’ve heard several papers from the edge.

21

At this hearing,

They discuss the recycling of

22

intermediate level waste, rolling stewardship,

23

hardened surface storage at source and the

24

replacement of current reactors with fast reactors

25

that use what is now regarded as fuel waste.
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Not discussed, but worthy of

1
2

inclusion, is fuel reprocessing.

I cannot but

3

wonder if these emerging technologies would become

4

industry best practice in the future if society

5

demanded it.
Because of this possibility, we

6
7

should not presume to risk the future because of

8

our belief in today’s best practice, today’s

9

consensus.
OPG’s Environmental Impact

10
11

Statement is fatally flawed and should be rejected

12

unconditionally.

13

learned at these hearings, it would be unethical to

14

make any other decision.

15

Indeed, because of what has been

This landmark decision would

16

create an opportunity for Canadians to re-evaluate

17

the burial option from a current science

18

perspective, a concept that is now approximately 40

19

years old in Canada, and to also determine the

20

future course of the nuclear industry.

21

This, in fact, should be our

22

legacy, a change of direction that leads to more

23

efficient and cleaner nuclear energy, creating less

24

waste, while simultaneously recycling legacy waste.

25

This is the only ethical position
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we can take on behalf of future societies that will

2

become ever more dependent on nuclear energy

3

because of our depletion of the world’s petroleum

4

supply.
Your decision to reject OPG’s

5
6

proposal would also prevent a Bruce disaster from

7

being written into our history.

8

--- QUESTIONS BY THE PANEL:
THE CHAIRPERSON:

9
10

Storck.
We will now go to questions from

11
12

Thank you, Mr.

the Panel.

I have a question for Mr. Miller.
Mr. Miller, when you have visitors

13
14

who express concerns around the proposed DGR based

15

on perhaps what they’ve seen in the community, do

16

you refer them to information sources such as OPG

17

or the CNSC Web site or the Environmental

18

Assessment Agency Web site?

19

MR. MILLER:

Yes, John Miller.

20

Yes, that is exactly what we do

21

and why it’s important for us to stay informed and

22

have the resources in the public that are out

23

there.

24

do it.

25

That, of course, is our number one way to

Also, being a member of the
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community and living here like I do all the time,

2

we’re used to living with nuclear power.

3

answering these questions and asking these

4

questions the 20-odd years I’ve lived in town now

5

-- 25 years, I guess it is now.

I’ve been

6

I think that gives us a -- it

7

doesn’t have some of the fears that some of the

8

community has, but when I can honestly say I’ve

9

never had a customer that, after speaking to them

10

or directing them to these services, have not been

11

satisfied and enjoyed their stay.

12

Yes, thank you.

13

THE CHAIRPERSON:

So you answered

14

my second question, actually, which was what

15

happens when they got more information.

16

you.

So thank

I have a third question.

17

How does

18

your industry, the tourism industry, engage with

19

the broader community around topics such as this?

20

MR. MILLER:

John Miller.

21

Again, I can only speak for myself

22

and not the whole rest of the Association, but we

23

are active with OPG.

24

regularly.

25

We do meet with them

We’ve never been turned down for a

INTERNATIONAL REPORTING INC.

296

1

speaker, be it at a Chamber of Commerce event or a

2

-- well, many times in this very room under a much

3

more social condition than what we’re doing today.

4

There’s been lots of fun and entertainment had.
But again, this is how we’re able

5
6

to keep informed about what’s going on and, again,

7

perhaps alleviate some of the negatives and some of

8

the fears that are out there about -- around this

9

industry and about what we’re dealing with right

10

now.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

11
12

Miller.

13

Dr. Muecke?

14

MEMBER MUECKE:

15

Thank you, Mr.

Yes, this is to

CNSC.

16

We’ve heard from Mr. Storck and

17

from other intervenors that one of the options is

18

recycling nuclear waste.

19

feasibility of such an approach?
MR. ELDER:

20
21
22

Could you comment on the

Peter Elder, for the

record.
I guess there are two types of --

23

much more work has been done on, I’ll call it,

24

reprocessing or reuse of the nuclear fuel.

25

experience, it’s -- to my knowledge, it’s never
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1

been done, frankly, outside a country that has

2

nuclear weapons.
So it’s -- and that was just, you

3
4

know, from a economic perspective.

5

feasible.

6

So it is

It still does generate high level

7

waste because what you’re doing in reprocessing is

8

taking out all the long-lived fission products and

9

transuranics and leaving off the uranium or

10
11
12
13

plutonium that they can reuse.
So it doesn’t -- it reduces the
waste volume, but doesn’t eliminate it.
There has also been mention about

14

fast breeder reactors.

15

It’s been investigated since the 1960s.

16

This technology is not new.

Again, it has never got to the

17

point where it’s been commercially applied.

18

know, as I said, there are ideas.

19

fully eliminate waste.

20

reduce the volume of waste.

21
22

So you

Neither of them

They have the potential to

MEMBER MUECKE:

And with respect

to low or intermediate level waste?

23

MR. ELDER:

Peter Elder.

24

There are options that have been

25

explored in other countries to recycle some of the
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material from nuclear power plants.

2

can say in the Canadian perspective, when Bruce

3

Power made this idea for recycling steam

4

generators, it did not meet with a very welcome

5

reception from the public.

6

I’m -- all I

We think it’s a feasible

7

technology if it’s done safely but, again, it’s not

8

widespread done -- not done widespreadly (sic).

9

And it wouldn’t eliminate all the waste.

10

Again, it’s a way to reduce the

11

number of -- amount of waste, but it does not

12

eliminate all the waste.

13

MEMBER MUECKE:

14

THE CHAIRPERSON:

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

Thank you.
We do have one

question from participants.
Mr. Robertson?
--- QUESTIONS BY THE PUBLIC:
MR. ROBERTSON:
through you, please.

Madam Chair,

First of all to Mr. Miller.

And I just wanted to ask him a few
questions about divisiveness in our community.
And we’ve heard the testimony here

23

during the last three and a half weeks that, in

24

some cases, it’s neighbour against neighbour and

25

friend against friend.

I just wondered if you’d
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want to comment on that.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

2

So Mr. Miller, I

3

would rephrase the question to, in your experience

4

as -- both as a member of the tourism industry and

5

as a citizen -- individual citizen, have you

6

experienced such divisions?

7

MR. MILLER:

8

Yeah, again, I can speak to -- I

9

John Miller.

believe it was mentioned by one of the speakers

10

earlier, it kind of reminds me of the Walmart

11

debate.
At times, there was people that I

12
13

never thought were going to speak to each other

14

again and that was over a lot less issue than what

15

this is.

16

beyond belief.

17

with each other and it does cause serious

18

conditions when you talk about serious issues.

19

But again, we are nowhere near damaging
But yes, of course people are upset

Ken and I spend time on the golf

20

course together, so we know each other very well

21

under very different circumstances, and we've

22

talked about it over dinner before.

23

So, yes, it does cause

24

differences, but again, that's I believe what these

25

hearings are about, and my comment about moving on
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and keeping the process going would solve those

2

issues as quick as anything.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

3
4

Miller.

5

Mr. Robertson?

6

MR. ROBERTSON:

7

Thank you, Mr.

And does he feel

the same way about two DGRs?

8

THE CHAIRPERSON:

9

MR. MILLER:

Mr. Miller?

Again, Ken –- or Todd

10

-- replying to Mr. Robertson's question, we do have

11

another issue coming up here and something outside

12

of what we're looking at this scope, and I'm sure

13

there's going to be a lot more discussions and a

14

lot more talk about that.

15

But a lot of the confusion that

16

has come up over that has created more issues for

17

this group than what I think what they originally

18

had or deserve on this issue, and I think that

19

that's maybe hurting us more than before, so.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

20
21

Thank you, Mr.

Miller.

22

I beg your pardon, Mr. Robertson?

23

MR. ROBERTSON:

24
25

A very brief one

for Mr. Storck, please?
We've heard a lot about risk
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management on -- from OPG and CNSC, yet you've --

2

still concerned.
Can you just explain that, Mr.

3
4

Storck?
MR. STORCK:

5
6

Peter Storck, for the

record.

7

THE CHAIRPERSON:

Mr. Storck, I'm

8

still deciding about how to rephrase that question.
So Mr. Robertson if I understand

9
10

your question, based on Mr. Storck's evidence, when

11

he went over a number of examples of failures in

12

the past, which he would get as we all would as

13

citizens from the literature but are you asking Mr.

14

–- I should actually refer to you as Dr. Storck -–

15

in a position of anything other than as a citizen?
Because otherwise, I would direct

16
17

your question to CNSC or OPG.
MR. ROBERTSON:

18
19

Madam Chair, again

I apologize.

20

I think you've noticed that -–

21

while I'm pretty straightforward on most issues,

22

I'm not very good at any science or any risk

23

management, it's not part of my experience.

24
25

What I'm asking is, I've heard a
lot of talk about risk management from both sides
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of this thing, and I'm surprised to hear Mr. Storck

2

emphasize his concern about risk management.
I just wondered if he could expand

3
4

on that for our understanding.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

5

If you could

6

briefly review the point –- your main points, Dr.

7

Storck, that would be helpful, but keep it brief

8

because I think you were pretty clear on why you

9

are –- why you remain concerned around this

10

proposed DGR.
In other words, what I understood

11
12

you to say, and correct me if I'm wrong, is you

13

simply don't feel in –- with respect to the

14

proposed DGR –- that we have adequate risk

15

management at our disposal at this point.
Because you made it very clear

16
17

that when it comes to nuclear waste you would

18

demand no risk.

MR. STORCK:

19
20
21

Is that correct?
That's right, Madam

Chair.
Demand –- I'm not sure I'm in a

22

position to demand anything.

I think no risk is

23

the proper course.

24

three decades, and I realize our knowledge is far

25

smaller than our ignorance.

I have worked in science for

And to apply certainty
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or even approximation of certainty to this project

2

sounds to me unwise.
I also mentioned that I thought

3
4

the project was fatally flawed.
I could comment on that if you

5
6

would be willing.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

7

I think we've

8

heard a number of –- if your evidence will add

9

anything to what we've already heard -– because

10

we've had a number of presentations including the

11

first one this morning from the Inverhuron

12

Committee, that nicely summed up all of the main

13

points.
Do you feel you have anything more

14
15

to add to that?

16

MR. STORCK:

17

THE CHAIRPERSON:

18

I do.
Very well, go

ahead, Dr. Storck.
MR. STORCK:

19

When I first thought

20

of doing a presentation, I put myself in the place

21

of a Board Member and I tried to imagine what I

22

would write -– how I would write a report on these

23

hearings.

24
25

And I thought the best thing to do
would be to make a scorecard of what I thought was
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a pass or a failure on all of the different items

2

in the guidelines.

3

that.

4

And I expect you will be doing

My scorecard is 6 out of 11 items

5

in the guideline that I think fail, which I could

6

add parenthetically, is a greater risk of failure

7

than the sinking of the Titanic which lost 5 of its

8

16 watertight compartments.

9

But I have been concerned over the

10

last week and a half about the discussion which

11

seems to be slipping from, is the EIS statements

12

acceptable or not, to statements about how can we

13

move forward and if we did that what would you

14

think, and what do you think about that.

15

This worries me because I came to

16

the hearings thinking the issue was either a pass

17

or a fail, and I now am becoming more worried about

18

a conditional approval.

19

THE CHAIRPERSON:

Dr. Storck, with

20

respect, the Panel has come to absolutely no

21

decisions one way or the other, and when we ask

22

questions to explore the evidence that's all it is.

23

So we'd like to reassure you that

24

we are not using any particular paradigm whether it

25

be pass, fail or anything else.
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We are exploring the evidence, we

2

are testing it, we are gathering new evidence, and

3

then we'll go away and think really hard.

4

Mr. Mann?

5

MR. MANN:

6

This is a question for CNSC.

7

As I understand it, Duncan

Thank you, Dr. Swanson.

8

Hawthorn, the CEO of Bruce Power was certain that

9

the steam generators could be recycled.
And my question is why would

10
11

anyone consider burying something that can be

12

recycled?
THE CHAIRPERSON:

13

Mr. Mann, I

14

think we already explored that issue a little bit

15

in terms of what we just heard from Mr. Elder.
This is part of the larger

16
17

discussion that is in front of the Panel, so we've

18

got lots of evidence in terms of the pros and cons

19

around the status quo, around the proposed DGR,

20

around recycling.

21
22
23

So unless you have another
question, I'm not sure where we're going with this.
MR. MANN:

Well, it was my

24

understanding that Duncan Hawthorn would like to

25

try to recycle all the intermediate waste if he
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could, and research and develop that area as well.

2

I wondered if that was the understanding of CNSC?

3

THE CHAIRPERSON:

4

MR. ELDER:

5
6

Mr. Elder?

Peter Elder, for the

record.
So I'll try to -– there are

7

different types of intermediate level waste, I mean

8

they are radioactive for different reasons.

9

There are parts like the steam

10

generators which are largely -– if there's anything

11

there it's contamination.

12

activation of the material inside the -–

13

physically, so it's not the steel that becomes

14

radioactive, it becomes contaminated.

15

There's not a lot of

That's very different from some of

16

the other intermediate level wastes like the

17

pressure tubes that actually get irradiated and get

18

bombarded by neutrons inside the reactor and then

19

there is a capture of those neutrons which makes

20

that material itself radioactive.

21

So that you would actually have to

22

do an isotopic separation to clean the radioactive

23

zirconium from the non-radioactive zirconium.

24

technically it's a lot easier to decontaminate

25

something than to do an isotopic separation.
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That's all I wanted to add on that

1
2

point.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

3
4

Elder.
Thank you very much, Mr. Miller

5
6

and Dr. Storck.
We'll now proceed; our next 10-

7
8

Thank you, Mr.

minute oral statement is by Mr. Hugh Wright.

9

And again, we'll hear both from

10

Mr. Wright and Dorne Fitzimmons before we get to

11

the next set of questions, so yes.

12

approach and take a seat at the front.

Both of you can

13

(SHORT PAUSE/COURTE PAUSE)

14

THE CHAIRPERSON:

Mr. Wright,

15

please proceed.

16

--- ORAL STATEMENT BY MR. HUGH WRIGHT:
MR. WRIGHT:

17

Thank you, Madam

18

Chairman and Members of the Panel, ladies and

19

gentlemen.
I’ll say for the record, my name

20
21

is Hugh Wright.

The only organization I am a

22

member of the Presbyterian Church in Canada.

23

don’t speak for them, but I believe I speak with

24

confidence for 97 percent of the silent majority in

25

these parts.
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I have raised three kids, stayed

1
2

in the same hours for 35 years.

Nuclear brought me

3

here, as it did workers from all over Ontario,

4

Canada, and the world.

5

technicians, all well qualified and further

6

educated in our nuclear business in Deep River and

7

then, and now on site.

8

qualified workforce anywhere.

Top scientists, engineers,

You will not find a more

This has been a nuclear community

9
10

for over half a century.

What started at Douglas

11

Point in 1959, since then, over 100,000 workers

12

have passed through the Bruce site.
There was harmony, prosperity.

13
14

Everyone benefited, the towns, the merchants, the

15

farmers.

16

employed at the site and that was not unusual.

17

I know one farmer whose four kids were

There was mutual respect and trust

18

between the community and the nuclear plant, which

19

at peak produced one-third of Ontario’s power, 365

20

days a year, night and day, when most of you were

21

tucked up in your beds.

22

The last couple of years has seen

23

an influx of tourists and vocal part-time residents

24

to Southampton who seem hell bent on disrupting the

25

trust and respect between the community and
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1

nuclear.

They claim they are not anti-nuclear,

2

just anti-DGR.
This is absurd nonsense.

3

You’re

4

either for or against; either for nuclear in its

5

entirety or against.

6

cannot have your cake and eat it.

7

both ways.

8

Maple Leafs, I just don’t want them to win the

9

Stanley Cup, an unlikely event on any occasion.

You cannot pick and choose,
Can’t have it

It’s like saying, I love the Toronto

10

(LAUGHTER/RIRES)

11

MR. WRIGHT:

12

loves farming, but dumps his manure on somebody

13

else’s property.

Or the farmer who

14

Newcomers arrive knowing the

15

community has been nuclear for half a century.

16

would they come when they know that?

Why

Not content to enjoy the beauty

17
18

and the beach and the sunsets or to be in Rome and

19

do as the Romans do, they start a protest, a

20

campaign of fear-mongering and scare tactics,

21

attempting to lump spent fuel into the DGR project,

22

a different issue entirely, to scare the less-

23

informed among us.
They have spread misinformation

24
25

and half-truths.

I watched a little protest march.
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1

I have lived here in Southampton for 35 years and I

2

didn’t recognize any of them.
Our elected officials have been

3
4

verbally abused.

5

warning sign has been misused, plastered on

6

billboards and lawns, demeaning the town and

7

disturbing the community.
The Saugeen Residents Association

8
9

The international radioactive

has been hijacked, meant to be a lobby for the

10

town’s welfare, it has become an anti-DGR

11

mouthpiece.

12

either left or refused to renew their membership.

So much so, original members have

Check the Web site, you will not

13
14

find one original member on the executive.

15

murky business.

16

women.

It’s a

But they’re all honourable men and

17

One fellow who presented here has

18

been doing this thing for years, sneaking under the

19

umbrella of a group with no interest in nuclear

20

issues whatsoever.

21

Bruce A many years ago, gave them presentations,

22

coffee and sandwiches.

23

they were from a gardening club which he had

24

infiltrated.

25

We toured this group round

The old ladies loved it,

He wouldn’t eat the sandwiches.

INTERNATIONAL REPORTING INC.

311

1

He thought they were radioactive.

Next day, he’s

2

now in some newspaper calling Ken Talbot, the

3

Manager then, to come clean and stop hiding.

4

Really?

5

The ladies who were gardening --

6

and some of these groups took legal action to stop

7

him misusing their name.

8

what’s happened to the Saugeen Residents

9

Association.

10

And it’s something like

He may be a crank, but he’s still

here, same old moans.
That is the mentality we are

11
12

dealing with in these protests, minds completely

13

closed, the narrow-minded mentality like the people

14

who when Edison invented the electric light

15

preferred to stick to candles lest the new light

16

bulb might explode.

17

Low level waste, which is most of

18

the waste for the DGR, would not do you any harm in

19

your kitchen trash can.

20

corridors every day at work.

We pass it in the

Intermediate is different.

21

It is

22

higher, but solid pieces are cut, sealed in strong

23

containers and buried safely, and Canadian nuclear

24

has always been of the most exceptional high

25

standard.
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The DGR project, extremely and

1
2

thoroughly researched by the best nuclear

3

scientific and geological experts anywhere in the

4

world, safety precautions as in all of Canadian

5

nuclear are absolutely thorough and taken to the

6

nth degree.
Do not worry.

7
8

counterproductive.

9

created it.

10
11

It is

The waste is our baby.

We

To truck it elsewhere would be the

height of gross irresponsibility.
Why people would come to a

12

community which has been nuclear for a half a

13

century and want to change things is beyond me.

14

You won’t see many of the signs in Port Elgin or

15

Kincardine, and in Southampton, as people become

16

aware of the facts, there is much less misuse of

17

the international nuclear warning sign.

18
19
20

Their bubble has burst.

It’s all

much ado about nothing.
The hard-working silent majority,

21

the will of the people of Bruce County, common

22

sense, solid scientific research and expertise and

23

the safest location geological experts can find

24

will overcome the ejections of amateur protesters

25

and pseudoscience and bring the DGR home to where

INTERNATIONAL REPORTING INC.

313

1

it belongs, in the Bruce.

2

do.

It is the right thing to

3

And it would mean young people

4

could find work in a safe nuclear environment of

5

the Bruce and not be forced to leave the home they

6

love.
Thank you, Madam Chairman and

7
8

Panel Members for the opportunity to state, with

9

confidence, what most people want in these parts;

10

they want the DGR here in Bruce County.

11

complete trust in the process.

They have

It is that simple.

Thank you, Madam Chairman and

12
13

Panel for your patience, diligence and long

14

suffering.

You are to be commended.

15

Thank you.

16

THE CHAIRPERSON:

17

Thank you, Mr.

Wright.
We’ll ask you to stay at the table

18
19

because we will then proceed directly to Mr.

20

Fitzimmons.

21

spoken, the Panel or others may have questions.
So Mr. Fitzimmons, you also have

22
23
24
25

And then after both of you have

10 minutes.
And again, when the yellow light
comes on, you have one minute left.

Please
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1

proceed.

2

--- ORAL STATEMENT BY MR. DORNE FITZIMMONS:

3

MR. FITZIMMONS:

Dorne Fitzimmons.

4

Madam Chair, Members of this

5

Review Committee, I welcome this opportunity to

6

address this committee with a purpose of explaining

7

my interest in this project and the so-so economic

8

effects of this proposal.
Firstly, I would like to introduce

9
10

myself.

I’m a native of Kincardine and Tiverton

11

areas.

I have worked in the nuclear industry in

12

Bruce County for over 34 years.

13

In the community, I’m a former

14

Reeve of the Village of Tiverton, councillor of the

15

County of Bruce, Chair of the Board of Directors

16

for the South Bruce-Gray Health Centre, President

17

and current Treasurer of the Bruce Country

18

Historical Society.

19

I’ve also been a member of various

20

local and regional boards, such as the Bruce County

21

Children’s Aid Society, Bruce County Health Unit

22

and the BMPD Impact Advisory Committee.

23

I have also -- I also have

24

experience in municipal nuclear emergency planning

25

and I have extensive radiation protection training.
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It has been my goal to ensure that

1
2

my community share in the economic success of the

3

nuclear industry and Bruce County, whether it be

4

through direct employment or spinoffs for local

5

merchants, or for a strong assessment base, which

6

secure services for all to enjoy, while advocating

7

that all this is done in a safe manner.

8

Historically, before the nuclear

9

industry came to our community, our economy relied

10

on agriculture, tourism, small business and

11

industries, such as furniture, textiles, and even a

12

rubber company.
As these industries declined, the

13
14

nuclear industry was growing in our community.

15

Many of the displaced workers found employment at

16

the Bruce Nuclear Power Development or in small

17

businesses, which were growing because of the

18

influx of construction and operating staff.
Brand new businesses also started

19
20

to appear.

21

secure employment at the BMPD, thereby

22

supplementing their income and making their efforts

23

more viable.

24
25

Many of our farmers were also able to

This growth, over the years, has
enabled communities to provide facilities and
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1

services to our residents at a level which I

2

believe would not be possible otherwise.

3

recreational facilities, libraries, fire halls,

4

sewer and water system, and the list goes on.

New

Ontario Power Generation and Bruce

5
6

Power, along with their employees and contractors

7

have been morally and financially supportive of

8

community projects and groups.
Small business now also have the

9
10

resources to better support these projects and

11

groups.

12

economic and social effects of nuclear industry

13

cutbacks, with the closure of original Douglas

14

Point, Bruce A and heavy water plants.

Our communities have also felt the

These were rough times in our

15
16

communities, which spanned on and off for 15 years,

17

culminating in 1998 with the closure of the last

18

units at Bruce A and the heavy water plant.
These closures has -- were to have

19
20

seen thousands of nuclear workers and their

21

families relocated to either Pickering Nuclear

22

Generating Station or Darlington Nuclear Generating

23

Station.

24
25

The save Bruce A campaign began
that -- began and extended beyond Bruce County to
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1

places like Owen Sound and Goderich.

These

2

municipalities always -- also acknowledge the

3

impact these closures would have on their

4

communities.
These closures reinforce the need

5
6

to diversify our economy.

Previously, community

7

leaders, entrepreneurs and business leaders worked

8

diligently to accomplish this but limited, but much

9

appreciated success.
The Bruce Energy Centre was

10
11

promoted as using excess steam from Bruce site, as

12

an energy source for industry.

13

visionaries are still working on it today but true

14

diversification eludes us.

Many of these

And then came the optimism of the

15
16

-- with the refurbishment of Bruce A.

17

seeing the Bruce site once again being referred to

18

as the largest commercial nuclear power development

19

in the world.

20
21

We are

So what does that -- so what does
this have to do with the DGR project?

22

In order to have a strong nuclear

23

presence in Bruce County and by extension, a strong

24

economy, we also need to take responsibility for

25

the safe and long-term disposal of low and
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1

intermediate radioactive waste which is produced.
The council of the Municipality of

2
3

Kincardine and residents have acknowledged this

4

responsibility by supporting this project as

5

reflected in a poll conducted by the municipality,

6

in which 60 percent of households that responded to

7

the poll favoured the DGR project.
Why wouldn’t they?

8
9

The DGR

represents the best in international practices for

10

the safe storage of this waste.

And in the long—

11

term, the DGR is far safer than the aboveground

12

storage system that exists today.

13

The municipality has done their

14

due diligence by reviewing other technologies and

15

seeing firsthand how DGR’s are operating in other

16

countries.
Ontario Power Generation has also

17
18

initiated a comprehensive public information

19

campaign in order that the public become better

20

informed through avenues such as a Web site,

21

reports, public meetings, mailings and travelling

22

displays.

23

The information was there if you

24

were willing to access it.

As far as the economy

25

of this area is concerned, with the approval of
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1

this project we can look forward to about 25,000

2

full—time equivalent person years of employment,

3

including 80 to 200 jobs during construction, 40

4

jobs for operations, within 27 percent of these

5

jobs coming from Kincardine, 24 percent in southern

6

Bruce County and 49 percent provincially and

7

beyond.

8

Ontario Power Generation also

9

expects and we expect that materials and supplies

10

will be sourced locally and regionally as much as

11

possible, further supporting our small businesses.

12

All this together with the current

13

activities on the Bruce site, will help ensure a

14

positive future for our community.

15

has a high understanding and supports the nuclear

16

industry and the safeguards they adhere to.

17

have faith in the regulatory bodies which protect

18

the public interest.

19

The community

And I

In conclusion, I would like to say

20

that if I didn’t think this project was safe and

21

technically sound, I would not be here today.

22

stakes are too high to my family, friends,

23

community and to the nuclear energy.

24
25

The

Thank you for your time and all
the best in your deliberations.

Respectfully
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1

submitted.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

2
3

much, Mr. Fitzimmons.
Panel Members, did you have

4
5

Thank you very

questions for either of these presenters?
I actually have a couple of

6
7

questions for you, Mr. Fitzimmons.

8

--- QUESTIONS BY THE PANEL:
THE CHAIRPERSON:

9

I wrote down one

10

of your statements where you said, “True

11

diversification eludes us”.

12

upon an earlier dialogue that the Panel were having

13

around what happens or what are some of the risks

14

associated with the reliance on the nuclear

15

industry.

16

And this is -- builds

Do you have specific examples of

17

spinoff opportunities associated with the DGR, that

18

you would suggest to the Panel, you’d like to see,

19

that would assist in diversifying or at least

20

increasing the economic benefits of the project?

21

MR. FITZIMMONS:

As far as spinoff

22

opportunities for the DGR project, I’m not able to

23

think of anything right now, other than the support

24

that small business and contractors would have with

25

the building of the DGR.
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I can’t think of anything specific

1
2

as far as direct spinoffs.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

3

Mr. Laidley,

4

have you put your mind to this question yet in

5

terms of specific spinoff or induced opportunities

6

related to the proposed DGR?

7

MR. LAIDLEY:

Kevin Laidley of the

8

Ministry of Agriculture and Food and Ministry of

9

Rural Affairs.
Haven’t had a lot of chance to

10
11

think about what initial reaction would be, it

12

would be similar.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

13

And also, Mr.

14

Fitzimmons, you gave the statistics out of the EIS

15

regarding the number of jobs that come from local

16

and regional versus from beyond the region.
Would you support initiatives that

17
18

actually increased that proportion of jobs that

19

come from local and regional, and if so, do you

20

have any suggestions to offer the Panel around how

21

to increase that?
And I would also ask Mr. Wright

22
23

this question just in terms of your experience and

24

the types of opportunities that may arise based on

25

the DGR.
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MR. FITZIMMONS:

1

Not knowing the

2

full construction and operating phases that we’re

3

looking at, I have to defer back to the original

4

statement such as, you know, the influx of experts,

5

mining people, that sort of thing into the

6

community.
But also the effects it will have

7
8

on our own small businesses, whether it be for

9

aggregate materials, that sort of thing, is quite -

10

- would be quite substantial I would think.
So I’m not fully aware of all the

11
12

aspects of building this project so I really can’t

13

comment on that.

14

THE CHAIRPERSON:

15

Mr. Wright?

16

MR. WRIGHT:

17
18

Thank you.

(off mic) --- with

the DGR --THE CHAIRPERSON:

Can you press

19

your microphone button first?

20

MR. WRIGHT:

21

question regarding the effects it will have in

22

regards to what concerning area with the DGR?

23

Okay.

THE CHAIRPERSON:

Is the

Yes, the

24

specific question was there was an estimate that

25

about 49 percent of the workers would actually come
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1

from outside of the local and regional areas

2

because these are, especially during site

3

preparation and construction, often going to

4

require mining experience and ---

5

MR. WRIGHT:

Yeah.

6

THE CHAIRPERSON:

--- would you

7

have some suggestions to the Panel to offer that

8

would -- might help increase the percentage that

9

come from the local and regional area?
MR. WRIGHT:

10

Yeah.

Well in my

11

days at the site lots came from all over the world.

12

Lots came from Sudbury, lots came from eastern

13

Canada.

14

The only thing would be to get

15

people in there with the know how to start with and

16

not bring anymore in but train young people to do

17

the job, rather than what we get now is double-

18

dipping et cetera, with people.

19

the job, train young people to do it and that will

20

bring the employment to the area.

21

When people know

And also for manufacture for

22

certain things, I’m sure within a radius of maybe

23

50 miles of the plant, there are small enough

24

engineering firms who can manufacture some of the

25

pieces needed for the construction.
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1

I cannot give numbers but ---

2

THE CHAIRPERSON:

3

Thank you, Mr.

Wright.
And finally, Mr. Fitzimmons, was I

4
5

correct in hearing that you were a councillor in

6

Bruce County?

7

MR. FITZIMMONS:

8

THE CHAIRPERSON:

9

Correct.
Could you tell

us what years you were a councillor and whether

10

that coincided with some of the years involved in

11

discussions around -- in the early days back in the

12

early 2000s, around the hosting agreement and the

13

support given to the hosting agreement by

14

surrounding municipalities?
MR. FITZIMMONS:

15
16

hosting agreement took place in the 1970s.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

17
18

Actually, this

is to do with the proposed DGR and the one ---

19

MR. FITZIMMONS:

20

THE CHAIRPERSON:

21

I believe the

Oh.
--- the one that

was signed in 2004.

22

MR. FITZIMMONS:

23

THE CHAIRPERSON:

Okay.
By Kincardine

24

but subsequently had letters of support from other

25

councils.
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1

MR. FITZIMMONS:

Right.

2

THE CHAIRPERSON:

Were you a

3

councillor during -- for Bruce County during this

4

era?

5

MR. FITZIMMONS:

No.

6

THE CHAIRPERSON:

7

MEMBER ARCHIBALD:

Thank you.
I’d like to

8

address one additional question, first of all to

9

Mr. Wright.
You had expressed that municipal

10
11

officials were verbally abused.

12

personal knowledge of this?
MR. WRIGHT:

13
14

Did you have any

Yeah, to the

councillors at Saugeen Shores.
MEMBER ARCHIBALD:

15

And Mr.

16

Fitzimmons, have you experienced in the nature of

17

your municipal affairs, you’ve been on regional

18

boards, including the Bruce County Health Unit,

19

experienced any negative expression surrounding the

20

DGR project on the basis of your community

21

involvement?

22

MR. FITZIMMONS:

The experiences

23

that I referred to in my submission were previous

24

to the time that you’re referring to except for the

25

-- my work on the Bruce County Historical Society
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1

and I -- this isn’t something that we have

2

discussed at all.
MEMBER ARCHIBALD:

3

Then I misread,

4

I didn’t get the timing of your associations.

5

Sorry about that.

6

Thank you very much.

7

THE CHAIRPERSON:

So I believe we

8

do have some questions from participants, starting

9

with Mr. Robertson.

10

--- QUESTIONS BY THE PUBLIC:
MR. ROBERTSON:

11
12

Madam Chair,

through you, my question is for Mr. Wright.
And first of all, he obviously is

13
14

quite passionate about this issue and I certainly

15

respect his feelings.

16

I just want to -- I just want him

17

to know we have 750 paid members in the Southampton

18

Residents Association.

19

Southampton Residents Association paid members is

20

at an all-time high.

21

saying, we’re not done, we’re not nearly done, Mr.

22

Wright.

The last two years the

So contrary to what he’s

Now, OPG is funding millions -- or

23
24

is funding the project with millions of dollars in

25

industry.

And quite candidly, the SRA and others,
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1

have used signs as an inexpensive way to

2

communicate our concerns.

3

inexpensive thing --THE CHAIRPERSON:

4
5

It’s about the least

Mr. Robertson,

can we get to the question, please?

6

MR. ROBERTSON:

Yes, it’s coming.

7

It’s about the least expensive

8

thing we could do.

9

does he have a suggestion how we voice our

10
11
12
13

So my question to Mr. Wright,

concerns?
THE CHAIRPERSON:

Mr. Wright, I

would rephrase that a little bit.
What evidence could you put in

14

front of the Panel that would help the Panel

15

understand how such community associations like the

16

ones from Southampton could both learn from and

17

express their understandings and concerns about a

18

project like the proposed DGR?

19
20
21

MR. ROBERTSON:

Particularly,

Madam Chair, if I could --THE CHAIRPERSON:

Mr. Robertson,

22

I’ve rephrased it the way the Panel would

23

appreciate the answer.

24
25

Thank you.

MR. WRIGHT:

Are you speaking the

way organizations like Mr. Robertson’s might come
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1

across more fairly?
Yeah, stop some of the

2
3

misinterpretations.

Stop the billboards.

4

bringing people in.

They say they have got so many

5

on the Southampton Ratepayers Association, well

6

they have been bussed in.

7

original there have left, most of them have gone.

8

There’s been letters in the papers to state that

9

fact.

10

Stop

The people who were

I have spoken to people who were members and

they have jumped ship.
What has happened is the

11
12

Ratepayers Association has been packed with people

13

that -- anti-DGR people have signed up, probably

14

don’t even live in Southampton but were not

15

original members.

16

hijacked.

17

The organization has been

THE CHAIRPERSON:

So Mr. Wright,

18

just to try and keep the -- us on topic, what the

19

Panel would appreciate is if you have any evidence

20

to offer us in terms of your activities in the

21

community that would serve as an example of seeking

22

out information and sharing that information in a

23

constructive and positive way, because we

24

understand from your evidence that you have some

25

issues with respect to how it is currently being
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1

done.
So we would simply like to learn

2
3

if you have any relevant experience to share that

4

with the Panel.

5

MR. WRIGHT:

Well, I don’t check

6

the Web sites but somebody did and said all the

7

original members, at least of the executive, were

8

gone.

9

might see -- you might get quite a surprise.

And I think if you check the Web site, you

10

THE CHAIRPERSON:

Thank you.

11

I think Mr. Robertson, that’s

12

about as far as we’re going to get on that topic.

13

MR. ROBERTSON:

14

if I could just --THE CHAIRPERSON:

15
16

Yes, Madam Chair,

No, no comments.

Sorry.

17

Mr. Mann?

18

MR. MANN:

19

As a community member, I’m

Thank you, Dr. Swanson.

20

saddened by the divisiveness that is apparent.

21

It’s the best town in the world, and I hope we can

22

all work together on this.

23

My question is to Mr. Wright.

Mr.

24

Wright noted to him it was important that the low

25

and intermediate was on site already and that it

INTERNATIONAL REPORTING INC.

330

1

would be irresponsible -- the height of

2

irresponsibility, I think he said, if you sent the

3

low and intermediate elsewhere.
My question to Mr. Wright is, what

4
5

does Mr. Wright think of the fact that the high

6

level nuclear waste is going to be transported off

7

site for burial unless Kincardine in the future

8

allows the high level nuclear waste to be buried in

9

the low and intermediate DGR?

10

MR. WRIGHT:

11

I’d say that’s

another issue entirely.

12

THE CHAIRPERSON:

Mr. Wright ---

13

MR. WRIGHT:

14

THE CHAIRPERSON:

15

First of all, I decide whether the

Yeah.
--- just a sec.

16

question is actually going to be asked and I decide

17

in terms of whether I’m going to reword it or so

18

on.
I think the way I would reword it

19
20

for Mr. Mann -- Mr. Mann is saying if it’s not

21

right to send the waste away for low and

22

intermediate, how can it be right to send away the

23

used fuel.
And that’s rephrasing it a little

24
25

bit, Mr. Mann.
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So if you could just briefly

1
2

describe or explain, for the Panel’s understanding,

3

the reasoning that might be involved there.
MR. WRIGHT:

4

As far as I know, no

5

decision has been taken on the used fuel yet.

6

There are a lot of things -- the worst things

7

looking -- that you could re-use the used fuel by a

8

process which was touted long ago, somewhat far --

9

so far ago that I forget about it.
There was interest in a process to

10
11

take the used fuel; it was called Beat Swords into

12

Plowshares and it was jointly with the Americans

13

the used fuel could be used to be either

14

refurbished or made useless or used for -- there

15

was a prospect there.
There’s no, as far as I know, plan

16
17

for the used fuel to go anywhere at the moment.

18

That is another issue.
THE CHAIRPERSON:

19
20

Wright.
That ends the questioning for our

21
22

Thank you, Mr.

two presenters.

Thank you very much.

23

We’ll now proceed to the next 10-

24

minute presentation, which is from Ms. Linda Bowers

25

on behalf of the Kincardine and District Chamber of
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1

Commerce.

2

(LAUGHTER/RIRES)

3

THE CHAIRPERSON:

And Ms. Bowers,

4

apparently you are now the last presenter of the

5

afternoon because our final presenter has not

6

appeared, so...

7

--- ORAL STATEMENT BY KINCARDINE AND DISTRICT

8

CHAMBER OF COMMERCE:
MS. BOWERS:

9

Good afternoon, Dr.

10

Swanson and Joint Review Panel Members.

11

for this opportunity.

Thank you

My name is Linda Bowers.

12

I am the

13

President of the Kincardine and District Chamber of

14

Commerce.

15

I am pleased to have this

16

opportunity to express the views of the Chamber

17

membership regarding Ontario Power Generation’s

18

proposed Deep Geologic Repository for Low and

19

Intermediate Level Nuclear Waste.

20

A bit of background.

The

21

Kincardine District Chamber of Commerce’s motto is

22

"A voice for business".

23

welcome business and projects that bring socio-

24

economic benefit to our community.

25

membership is approximately 100 members strong,

The Chamber’s role is to

The Chamber’s
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1

representing businesses and organizations including

2

not-for-profit organizations and agencies from all

3

corners of the Municipality of Kincardine as well

4

as our neighbouring Municipality of Huron-Kinloss.
From golf courses to one-person

5
6

retail outlets to intimate fine dining restaurants

7

to family-run farms to 80-bed hotels to

8

manufacturers with hundreds of employees, the

9

Chamber members rely on the Chamber staff and the

10

Board of Directors to provide support in lobbying

11

the municipality and the province for better

12

business practice and to excess -- access and

13

circulate up-to-date information assisting with

14

education and customer service as well as providing

15

information regarding changes in legislation that

16

may impact their business.
In partnership with the Downtown

17
18

Kincardine Lakeside BIA, the Business Improvement

19

Association, and the Penetangore Regional Economic

20

Development Corporation, the Chamber’s mandate is

21

strengthened.

22

our members’ interests and concerns are always at

23

the forefront as we work together to sustain,

24

encourage, foster change and entice new enterprises

25

to join this amazing community.

This unique partnership ensures that
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Along with our economic

1
2

development partners, the Chamber continues to

3

interact and entice other corporate entities that

4

support the nuclear industry which, in turn,

5

creates more opportunities for other sectors to

6

prosper.

7

vibrant community.

Bottom line, a healthy, sustainable,

OPG is one of the many

8
9

corporations that has provided a wide range of

10

support and benefit to this community for more than

11

40 years, providing many jobs which, in turn,

12

results in customers and clients from the many

13

businesses as well as general community prosperity

14

and financial support for the many services and

15

community events.

16

Since OPG -- since 2004, OPG has

17

ensured that the Kincardine District Chamber Board

18

of Directors and membership were kept informed of

19

the proposal to host a Deep Geologic Repository in

20

Kincardine.

21

have been organized to provide the members and

22

general public with updates as to the status of the

23

DGR proposal.

24
25

Each year since, breakfast meetings

These meetings were well
advertised in local media.

Questions were asked;
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1

questions were answered.
Information pamphlets and

2
3

brochures were made available.

Members were

4

provided with regular updates about the regulatory

5

process and the development of the project.

6

Members were satisfied with the presentations and

7

discussions.
Additionally, there have been

8
9

representatives from OPG or the Nuclear Waste

10

Management Organization who have attended the

11

Chamber ladies’ luncheons and other special

12

gatherings.

13

by the local cable television production company

14

which featured a discussion of the DGR to provide

15

additional community awareness.

A "Chamber Chat" segment was produced

16

From newsletter mail-outs to open

17

houses, participation in special events such as the

18

Kincardine Scottish Festival, the Kincardine Home

19

Show as well as many other community trade and home

20

and garden shows, Pumpkinfest here in Port Elgin

21

and many other venues, there have been many

22

opportunities for the general public and/or the

23

Chamber members to source information, ask

24

questions and pose concerns.

25

The nuclear industry is in this
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1

community, and it didn’t just happen.

It has been

2

here since the creation of Douglas Point in the

3

late fifties.
The nuclear industry is as much a

4
5

part of and critical to the local economy as

6

agriculture and tourism.

7

supports many of the small to medium-based retail

8

commercial businesses in this community.

The nuclear industry

The nuclear waste did not just

9
10

appear.

It has been here and has not affected the

11

prosperity of the area.

12

and intermediate waste is currently stored on a

13

temporary basis at the nuclear site.

We understand that the low

In 2007, the Kincardine and

14
15

District Chamber of Commerce supported the re-

16

licensing of the Western Waste Management Facility,

17

understanding that OPG conducts its operation at

18

the waste management facility in compliance with

19

the regulations set down by the Canadian Nuclear

20

Safety Commission, holding itself to extreme high

21

standards.
OPG has a proven track record in

22
23

this community.

The Chamber has confidence in the

24

expertise and ability of OPG to continue to manage

25

the low and intermediate waste in a permanent
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1

facility with respect and care of the community and

2

the environment.

3

The Chamber has every confidence

4

that OPG will apply that experience, expertise and

5

commitment to the safety and management of the low

6

and intermediate waste.

7

The Deep Geologic Repository will

8

enhance the socio-economics of the area, providing

9

jobs during construction and subsequently during

10

operation.
In preparation of this

11
12

presentation, we undertook a survey of the Chamber

13

members to gauge the awareness and the support of

14

the proposed DGR.

15

supported my presentation here today.

The results of the survey

16

The Chamber believes that every

17

effort has been taken to keep the members and the

18

local business community informed.

19

Based on our knowledge of the

20

history and performance of OPG’s management and

21

operation of the existing waste site, and given the

22

strong partnership an involvement with the

23

community, the Kincardine and District Chamber of

24

Commerce supports OPG in the application to prepare

25

a site and construct a Deep Geologic Repository for
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1

low and intermediate level waste at the Bruce

2

nuclear site.
And further, the Chamber is

3
4

confident that OPG will operate this facility with

5

strict adherence to all regulations and standards

6

as will be required by all agencies governing such

7

a site.

8

Thank you.

9

THE CHAIRPERSON:

10

Bowers.
Panel Members, did we have any

11
12

questions?

13

--- QUESTIONS BY THE PANEL:

14
15

Thank you, Ms.

MEMBER ARCHIBALD:

I’m sure I’ll

be asking the question you wanted to ask.

16

On the basis of your membership

17

survey, would you have any idea of the percentage

18

of members that look on the OPG DGR project

19

proposal favourably?

20
21

MS. BOWERS:

Of the survey

results, oh -- should I be ---

22

THE CHAIRPERSON:

23

(LAUGHTER/RIRES)

24

THE CHAIRPERSON:

25

That’s fine.

When it’s

directly from the Panel, you don’t have to go

INTERNATIONAL REPORTING INC.

339

1

through me.

2

(LAUGHTER/RIRES)

3

MS. BOWERS:

My apologies.

I

4

would say of the survey results that we received 97

5

percent were favourable.

6

MEMBER ARCHIBALD:

7

My question was originally going

8

to be, of the silent majority we have been hearing

9

about and you’ve answered that very well.

10

Thank you.

11

THE CHAIRPERSON:

Thank you.

Ms. Bowers, I’ve

12

asked a couple of the previous presenters about

13

this too, but certainly in your position with the

14

Chamber of Commerce, I’m sure it is top of mind for

15

the Chamber which is, again, the spinoff

16

opportunities or induced opportunities associated

17

with the DGR.
Has the Chamber got to the stage

18
19

where you would be discussing specific

20

opportunities that you would be promoting or

21

seeking?

22

particular types of spinoff business opportunities

23

that the Chamber would be interested in?

24
25

Are there particular types of jobs or

MS. BOWERS:

We’re working with

the Penitangore Regional Economic Development
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1

Corporation and the BIA and the municipality

2

constantly to develop proposals or ideas to bring

3

in business.

4

we’re there to make sure that it happens.

And if it’s a spinoff for the DGR,

5

THE CHAIRPERSON:

6

had any discussions or question and answer sessions

7

with OPG regarding any concerns from the Chamber

8

around socio-economic impacts, and in particular,

9

the Panel would be interested in any evidence you

10

have on effects on transportation in terms of the

11

services around roads, traffic, traffic density,

12

the ability of the roads to absorb additional

13

traffic or any other concerns around impacts from

14

the facility.
MS. BOWERS:

15

Has the Chamber

During the

16

refurbishment at Bruce Power, we saw an influx of

17

some additional 3,500 contractors for six and a

18

half years.

19

that was brought forward, the province rebuilt the

20

majority of Highway 21 in the Kincardine to the

21

site area.

22

With all the supplies and equipment

And the municipality has a very

23

good plan in place for road development.

24

have any concerns about the roads.

25

THE CHAIRPERSON:

I don’t

Thank you, Ms.
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1

Bowers.
Do we have any questions from

2
3

participants?
In that case, it looks like we are

4
5

complete for the day.

6

Thank you, Ms. Bowers.

7

Our next scheduled hearing day is

8

tomorrow, Wednesday, October 9th.

9

session will begin at 2:00 in the afternoon with an

10

Wednesday’s

evening session beginning at 7:00.
Wednesday we’ll continue the

11
12

discussion related to socio-economic issues and

13

we’ll begin with presentations by Ontario Power

14

Generation, the Canadian Nuclear Safety Commission

15

and the Ontario Ministry of Municipal Affairs.
Thank you, everyone and have a

16
17

good evening.

18

--- Upon adjourning at 5:43 p.m./

19

L’audience est ajournée à 17h43

20
21
22
23
24
25
26
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1
2
3
C E R T I F I C A T I O N

4
5
6

I, Lynn Jefferson, a certified court reporter in

7

the Province of Ontario, hereby certify the

8

foregoing pages to be an accurate transcription of

9

my notes/records to the best of my skill and

10

ability, and I so swear.

11
12

Je, Lynn Jefferson, un sténographe officiel dans la

13

province de l’Ontario, certifie que les pages ci-

14

hautes sont une transcription conforme de mes

15

notes/enregistrements au meilleur de mes capacités,

16

et je le jure.

17
18
19
20

<signature removed>

21

Lynn Jefferson

22

Court Reporter / Sténographe

23
24
25
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